AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
6:00 p.m. Monday, December 18, 2023

The Greene County Commission will meet at the Greene County Courthouse on Monday,
December 18, 2023, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor) in the
Courthouse.

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Brad Peters
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Josh Arrowood
*Roll Call

Proclamations

Proclamation to Honor the Greene County Heritage Trust— November 2023
Proclamation to Inaugurate the 2023 Christmas Season in Greeneville and Greene County, Tennessee
Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month— January 2024

Public Hearing

Approval of Prior Minutes

Veterans Report

Financial Report from Board of Education
Reports from Solid Waste Department
Committee Minutes

Election of Notaries

Old Business

Resolutions

A. Aresolution to remove Crow Fly Lane from the official Greene County Road List (First Reading)

B. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $850 to the Sheriffs Department
for funds received from various sources for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

C. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $4,385 to the Sheriff's Department
for funds received from AAA Bail Bonding for Inmate Transportation for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

D. A resolution to appropriate $12,600 for training with Integrity K-9 for the K-9 Unit and the purchase of data
processing equipment from the Sheriffs Department Restricted Fund for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2024

E. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Jail in the amount of $14,734
for the annual allocation of the Training Equipment Grant for the FYE June 30,2024

F. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Jail in the amount of $34,327
for the annual allocation of the Mental Health Transportation Grant for the FYE June 30, 2024

G. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate an increase in the State of Tennessee
Department of Health Grant of $8,400 for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024

H. A resolution to appropriate funds to the Greene County Election Commission received as a reimbursement

from vendor supplying electronic pollbooks and software to the Greene County Election Commission

A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to reappropriate funds in the amount of $35,000 to the
UT Extension of Agriculture Department from the Soil Conservation Department for the addition of a 4-H
Position sponsored in part by TSU for the FYE June 30, 2024



J.  Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to Appropriate Funds in the amount of $610,000 to the
Emergency Medical Services Department for the purchase of two ambulances with POWERLOADS for the
FYE June 30, 2024

K. A resolution of the County Commission of Greene County, Tennessee Approving an Economic Impact Plan
for the Mosheim Crossing Development area- Exhibit A

L. Aresolution to allocate funds to monitor and enforce the obligation of businesses/entities required to report,
collect, and remit privilege taxes for providing lodging and/or accommodations to transients in Greene
County, TN

Other Business

e Appoint Nancy H. Southerland to the Library Board of Trustees as Barbara Britton will be exiting off the
board effective January 2024,

Adjournment

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Kathy Crawford

** THE GREENE COUNTY EMPLOYEE CHRISTMAS BREAKFAST IS TUESDAY, DECEMBER 19,
BEGINNING AT 8:00 A.M. IN THE GREENEVILLE FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH FAMILY CENTER**

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES AND
ANNEX HOLIDAY CLOSURES**

Friday, December 22— All Offices Closing at Noon
Saturday, December 23— County Clerk’s Office Closed
Monday, December 25— All Offices Closed
Tuesday, December 26— All Offices Closed
Saturday, December 30— County Clerk’s Office Closed
Monday, January 1, 2024— All Offices Closed

**Greene County Solid Waste Operational Hours for Christmas and New Years**

The Greene County Solid Waste Department and all the convenience centers will be closed on Monday
December 25, 2023, and on Monday January 1, 2024 (The transfer station and landfill will also be closed on both
days). We will resume normal scheduled hours at the convenience centers and business pickups on Tuesday
December 26, 2023, and Tuesday January 2, 2024.

The convenience centers that are regularly scheduled to be open from 08:00a.m.— 4:00p.m. on Saturday,
December 23, 2023, will close at 12:00 Noon.

**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING 1S
THURSDAY, JANUARY 4, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M. **

**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024**



REGULAR COUNTY COMMITTEE MEETINGS

DECEMBER 2023
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 6

MONDAY, DECEMBER 11
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 12

DATE TO BE ANNOUNCED
MONDAY, DECEMBER 18

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 22
SATURDAY, DECEMBER 23
MONDAY, DECEMBER 25
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 26

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 26
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 27
SATURDAY, DECEMBER 30

JANUARY 2024

MONDAY, JANUARY 1

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 3

TUESDAY, JANUARY 9
TUESDAY, JANUARY 9

SATURDAY, JANUARY 13
MONDAY, JANUARY 15

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16
THURSDAY, JANUARY 18
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24

FEBRUARY 2024

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 7
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 19
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 27
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 28

8:30 AM.
3:30 PM.
1:00 P.M.

3:30 PM

6:00 P.M.

8:30 AM.

8:30 AM.

1:00 P.M.
3:30 P.M.

6:00 P.M.
3:30 P.M.
8:30 AM.

3.30 P.M.
8:30 AM.
3:00 A.M.

1:00 P.M.
3:30 PM.

6:00 P.M.
8:30 AM.
8:30 A M.

BUDGET & FINANCE
EDUCATION COMMITTEE
PLANNING

911 BOARD
COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

LEAVE AT NOON- ¥z DAY OFF
COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE CLOSED
HOLIDAY

HOLIDAY

ZONING APPEALS
INSURANCE COMMITTEE
COUNTY CLERK'’S OFFICE CLOSED

HOLIDAY

BUDGET & FINANCE

PLANNING
911 BOARD

COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE CLOSED
HOLIDAY

COMMISSION MEETING
ANIMAL CONTROL
INSURANCE COMMITTEE

EDUCATION COMMITTEE
BUDGET & FINANCE
EMS BOARD

PLANNING
911 BOARD

HOLIDAY

COUNTY COMMISSION
ZONING APPEALS (IF NEEDED)
INSURANCE COMMITTEE

**THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

ANNEX

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX

ANNEX-DOWNSTAIRS
COURTHOUSE

ANNEX & COURTHOUE
ANNEX

ANNEX & COURTHOUSE
ANNEX & COURTHOUSE

ANNEX
ANNEX
ANNEX

ANNEX & COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX
ANNEX- DOWNSTAIRS

ANNEX
ANNEX & COURTHOUSE

COURTHOUSE
ANNEX
ANNEX

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX
ANNEX

ANNEX
ANNEX-DOWNSTAIRS

ANNEX & COURTHOUSE
COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX



A PROCLAMATION TO INAUGURATE THE 2023 CHRISTMAS SEASON IN
GREENEVILLE AND GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, on this day, Friday evening, the 1* of December 2023, we come
mmmmm&m hmmdmiscmmm
and the joyous recognition of the birth of Jesus Chvist; and

WHEREAS, more than 2000 years ago in fulfitiment of Biblical Scripture, a baby
was bom in Bethiehem and cltizens came from far and wide to honor and observe this
prophesied miracle; and

WHEREAS, the Shepherds who were living out in the fields nearby, heard
heeded the voices of all the angels and hnvuﬂyhommmm aiming
clothes and lying in a humble manger; and

WHEREAS, there too were wise men from the east

cales
signs and traveled from afar fo present gifts of goid, frankincense, and myrrh
wonderful celebration at the birth of the Christ Child; and

i

Wms.mmtmmbgoummmamtniamtomuoﬂn

celebration of that Holy Night so long ago, praising and proclaiming the birth of the
Prince of Peace; and

NOW, THEREFORE, We, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County,
Cal Doty, Mayor of the Town of Greeneville, do recognize each ol you that have
followed the example of the Shepherds and Wise Men, and have come from far and
wide tonight in reverent expeciation and celebration of this sacred season. We
therefore, prociaim today as the official beginning of the 2023 Christmas Season in
Greeneville and Greene Counly, Tennessee. May we join ingmciwasolidnruyhlhc
celebration of the birth of our Savior Jesus Christ and may good tidings of great joy,
MoiChMmandeeoanamallpeoph For it is our fervent hope
and prayer for al citizens 1o have a safe and joyous Merry Christmas and a prosperous
and Happy New Year.

3

g

/)/\

GREENEVILL

E N N E S § E E



GREENE COUNTY HERITAGE TRUST

tor Historic Preservation and Restoration

PROCLAMATION

Honoring the
Greene County Heritage Trust

Whereas 2023 marks the 50! Anniversary of the Greene County Heritage Trust and
Whereas the Heritage Trust was founded in 1973 for Historic Preservation & Restoration and

Wheregas Greeneville & Greene County take great pride in its numerous historic landmarks
saved in part by the work of the Greene County Heritage Trust and

Whereas the Trust honors and remembers all those early settiers through modern times as
it too preserves their stories and

Whereas the Trust will celebrate the 50% Anniversary of the first Annual Early American
Christmas Dinner on November 30, 2023 the same date as the first dinner and

Whereas the Trust Early American Christmas Dinner has set the standard for the celebration
of the Christmas Holidays in Greeneville for 50 years, we

Now Therefore, Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison, Greeneville Mayor Cal Doty do
here, by the power invested in us, proclaim December “Greene County Heritage Trust Month.”

We therefore encourage all Greene Countians to join in celebrating the Greene County
Heritage Trust and its many contributions to the Restoration, Preservation, and
Commemoration of our shared history.

In witness thereof we set our hands and seals to this proclamation,

November 30, 2023

Greene County Mayor Town of Greene)/ille Mayor



PROCLAMATION
FOR
HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH

Ke Human trafficking occurs when a person is recruited, harbored, obtained, transported, solc
traded, or exploited through force, fraud, or coercion for the purposes of sexual or labc
exploitation, involuntary servitude, debt bondage, or slavery, or when any commercial sex ac
is committed upon a minor; and

WHEREAS, the malevolent authority of the trafficker facilitates the dehumanization an
material commodification of its victims, corrupting the inherent human rights and dignity ¢
each individual; and

WHEREAS, we recognize that human trafficking disproportionately affects those mos
marginalized in our community, and cultural oppression, including racism and ethnic bias
creates additional risk for exploitation and generates unique challenges for prevention an
intervention.

WHEREAS, no community is impervious to the potential for exploitation of its most vulnerabl:
citizens; it is vitally important that all Greene County residents are equipped to recognize an
respond to the abhorrent reality of trafficking by disrupting the veil of secrecy that allows it t
thrive for the purpose of restoring hope and healing to those affected, assuring victims the
have the strength of their community to overcome their victimization experience.

THEREFORE, aligning with the State of Tennessee and the rest of the nation, Greene Count
hereby recognizes January as Human Trafficking Awareness Month. During this month, w:
remember and further our commitment to ending human trafficking in Greene County by:

. promoting awareness through fact-based community education opportunities to unit
and equip Greene County to report and respond to this crime:

2. fostering and celebrating the new and existing partnerships through fluid dialogue an
candid conversation that pave the way for increased collaborative intervention an
more robust legislation to end human trafficking and protect survivors:

3. furthering an inclusive, community-wide response in which everyone has an importar
part to play and a moral obligation to work together in collaboration toward endin
human trafficking and meeting the needs of those affected:

4. creating space to reflect upon and honor the resilience, courage, and perseverance ¢
human trafficking survivors in our community.

Now, therefore, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee do hereby proclair
the month of January 2024, as

Human Trafficking Awareness Month

aligning with the State of Tennessee and community partners across the state to remembe
the victims and survivors of this crime and further our commitment to ending human traffickin

in communities across the state and nation.
/ @ %’n’m\, (8 Ap/wmﬁ‘vz 201
Date

Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayar




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
NOVEMBER 20, 2023
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in regular session on November 20, 2023
at 6:00 p.m. at Tusculum College in the Meen Center on the 3" Floor Boardroom (Room 309).

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioner Jason Cobble gave the invocation. Commissioner
Gary Shelton led the Pledge to the Flag.

Mayor Morrison called the roll. Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers,
Burkey, Carpenter, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White were present. Commissioners Clemmer and Murray
were absent. There were 19 Commissioners present and 2 absent.

Mayor Morrison thanked Tusculum University for the use of the facility and Dr. Scott
Hummell, and Chad Grindstaff, Director of Maintenance of Tusculum University, and for
Commissioner Brad Peters for making the setup of the Commission Meeting possible. Mayor
Morrison announced that the December Commission Meeting will be held at the Greene County

Courthouse.



RECOGNATION TO
FREDDIE SAMS FOR
CONSTABLE OF THE YEAR

Mayor Morrison recognized Freddie Sams for his recent achievement for being
presented the East Tennessee Constables Association the Constable of the Year Award.

RECOGINATION TO
COMMISSIONER JOHN WADDLE

Mayor Morrison recognized Commissioner John Waddle for his recent achievement
as Director of the Mosheim Outreach Agency for being named agency of the year for the
Second Harvest Food Bank. Mayor Motrison stated that Second Harvest Food Bank covers 8

counties in East Tennessee providing food for 15,000 people just in Greene County.



PUBLIC HEARING ON TO REZONE PROPERTY OWNED BY TIMOTHY B.
TWEED FROM R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO B-3,
ARTERIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. (RESOLUTION A)

Mayor Morrison asked if there was anyone who wishes to speak for the rezoning property
owned by Timothy B. Tweed from R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-3, Arterial
Business District, (Resolution A). There was no one who spoke for Resolution A.

Mayor Morrison asked if there was anyone who wishes to speak against the rezoning
property owned by Timothy B. Tweed from R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-3,
Arterial Business District, (Resolution A). There was no one who spoke for Resolution A.

PUBLIC HEARING TO REZONE PROPERTY OWNED BY
TIMOTHY B, TWEED FROM R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
TO B-2, GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, (ALTERNATE RESOLUTION A)

Mayor Morrison asked if there was anyone who wishes to speak for the rezoning property
Owned by Timothy B, Tweed from R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-2, General
Business District. (Aternate Resolution A).

Jacob Ball spoke for the property to be rezoned from R-2 Medium density Residential
District to B-2 General Business District. A dog boarding and grooming business is planned
for the property.

Tim Tweed advised the Commission that the Alternate Resolution A to rezone the
property from R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-2, General Business District,

instead of rezoning property from R-2 Medium Denisity Residentaial District to B-3, Arterial

Business District which is Resolution A.



Mayor Morrison asked if there was anyone who wishes to speak against the rezoning
property owned by Timothy B, Tweed from R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-2,
General Business District. (Alternate Resolution A). There was no one who spoke against
Alternate Resolution A.

Aimee Eucce advised the Commission to review requirements in the county’s current
Zoning ordinance regarding campgrounds and RV parks and to consider if any change should
be made. She said she had 630 signatures on a petition asking for the issue to be looked at by
the officials. The RV campground being constructed on Woolsey College Road touched off
a series of complaints by nearby residents who brought the issue to the attention of Planning
Commission and now County Commission. She said she knew that nothing could be done
to stop the RV campground going in on Woolsey Cottage Road since it met current zoning
regulations, but she wanted the issue to be addressed for the future.

Aimee Eucce handed out information on the Zoning Classifications and the Zoning
Uses Within The Zoning Classifications, which will be included in the Commission Minutes
for the November meeting.

Tim Tweed, Building and Zoning Director stated. “There is nothing written for the
zoning regulations for road classifications or for the width of the road, or the type of the road
you are driving on.” Tim Tweed read some of the regulations that are in the zoning at this time,
which are 5 acres of ground is needed for a campground, a site plan has to be submitted to the
Planning Commission, buffer requirements and set backs are required, solid fencing or trees,
access roads have to be gravel or pavement and adequate parking, and campgrounds can’t have

excessive noise, and sanitary facilities.



County Attorney Roger Woolsey said that requirements and regulations need to be
enforced on campgrounds to pay Hotel/Motel tax.

Commissioner Bowers called on Jo Staats to speak in regards to enforcing zoning
regulations on campgrounds being next to farms that have livestock and how to preserve the
farmland.

Mayor Morrison announced that Commissioner Clemmer and Commissioner Murray
joined the Commission Meeting at 6:25 p.m.

Commissioner Carpenter called on Val LaRose from the Roby Adult Center to speak

to the Commission requesting more funds for the Roby Adult Center.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Clemmer to approve the prior minutes.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. There were 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent. Mayor Morrison announced

the prior minutes were approved.



REPORTS
VETERAN’S REPORT
FINANCIAL REPORT FROM THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORTS FROM SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT
COMMITTEE MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissioner
Bowers to approve the Veterans’ Report, Financial Report from the Board Of Education,
Reports from Solid Waste Department, and Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,
Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Veteran’s Report, Financial Report from Board

of Education, Reports from Solid Waste Department and Committee Minutes passed.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Morrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approved by the
Commission. A motion was made by Commissioners Bowers and seconded by Commissioner
Quillen to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a roll call vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. There were 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent.

The Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the notaries.



RESOLUTION A: ARESOLUTION TO REZONE CERTAIN TERRITORY
OWNED BY TIMOTHY B. TWEED FROM R-2, MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT TO B-3, ARTERIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT WITHIN THE UNICORPORATED
TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

A motion was made by Commissioner White. After making the motion, Commissioner

White withdrew his motion. Mayor Morrison announced that Resolution A has died without

a motion.



RESOLUTION A.1: ALTERNATE RESOLUTION A
A RESOLUTION TO REZONE CERTAIN TERRITORY OWNED BY
TIMOTHY B. TWEED FROM R-2, MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
TO B-2, GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED
TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

A motion was made by Commissioner White and seconded by Commissioner Parton
to approve a Resolution to rezone certain territory owned by Timothy B. Tweed from R-2,
Medium Density Residential District to B-2, General Business District within the unincorporated
Territory of Greene County, Tennessee.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following vote
was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Butkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,
Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21-aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent. The

motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY
SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR CHANGES IN REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 (THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND)
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Kiker to approve a Resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget for changes in
Revenue and Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (The General Purpose School Fund).
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a roll call vote. The following vote
was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,
Smithson, Waddle, and White vote yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent. The

motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $60,700 FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE THSO
TRAFFIC SAFETY AND NETWORK COORDINATOR GRANTS FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Murray to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds
to the Sheriff’s Department in the amount of $60,700 for the annual allocation of the THSO
Traffic Safety and Network Coordinator Grants for the FYE June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a roll call vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,

Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioner Lawing abstained. The vote was 21-

aye; 0 —nay; 1 — abstain; and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION D: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO BUDGET $3,500 IN GRANT REVENUE AND APPROPRIATIONS FOR
THE BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE BULLETPROOF VEST PARTNERSHIP

GRANT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Smithson to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to budget $3,500
in Grant Revenue and appropriations for the Bureau of Justice Assistance Bulletproof Vest
Partnership Grant for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024,

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a roll call vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White vote yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and

0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: A RESOLUTON TO APPROVE THE INTERIOCAL
COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE,
THE CITY OF TUSCULUM, TENNESSEE, THE TOWN OF GREENEVILLE,
TENNESSEE. AND THE TUSCULUM-GREENEVILLE-GREENE COUNTY,
TENNESSEE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD RELATED TO THE
GREENE VALLEY DEVELOPMENT CENTER PROPERTY

A motion was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner
Shelton to approve a Resolution to approve the Interiocal Cooperation Agreement between
Greene County, Tennessee, The City of Tusculum, Tennessee, The Town of Greeneyville,
Tennessee, and The Tusculum-Greeneville-Greene County, Tennessee Industrial Development
Board Related to the Greene Valley Development Center Property.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,
Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION F: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO AUTHORIZE THE GREENE COUNTY MAYOR TO APPLY FOR THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000,000
FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF KINSER PARK FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Parton to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to authorize the Greene
County Mayor to apply for the Body to authorize the Greene County Mayor to apply for the
Community Development Block Grant in the amount of $1,000,000 for the improvement
of Kinser Park for the FYE June 30, 2024.
Mayor Motrison called the Commission to vote by a voice vote. The following vote
was taken: Commission Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,

Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO AUTHORIZE THE GREENE COUNTY MAYOR
TO APPLY FOR A TENNESSEE AGRICULTURE ENHANCMENT PROGRAM
GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $150,000 TO CONSTRUCT AN OUTDOOR
LEARNING/DEMONSTRATION PAVILION
A motion was made by Commissioner White and seconded by Commissioner
Shelton to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to authorize the
Greene County Mayor to apply for a Tennessee Agriculture Enhancement Program Grant
in the amount of $150,000 to construct an Outdoor Learning/Demonstration Pavilion.
Anthony Shelton said that the structure would be 32 feet by 72 feet in size, will have
bathrooms, handicap accessible, and will have a concrete floor and include large garage doors.
The structure would be located on the former Takoma Hospital campus now owned by
Greene County near the corner of Corner of Coolidge Street and Takoma Avenue. The
pavilion would be used by the University of Tennessee Agricultural Extension office, 4-H
Youth Development Program, and Greene County in general.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 —nay; and 0 —

absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION H: A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE COUNTY OWNED
PROPERTY SURPLUS, OBSOLETE, OR UNUSABLE
PURSUANT TO T.C.A. 5-14-108 - EXHIBIT A

A motion was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner
Parton to approve a Resolution to declare county owned property, surplus, obsolete, or
unusable Pursuant to T.C.A. 5-14-108 — Exhibit A.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,

Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



OTHER BUSINESS
Commissioner Bowers asked for Architect David Wright to come to the Commission
Meetings to give updates on the Takoma revocation for the new Greene County Government

Offices. Mayor Morrison said that he would ask him to come.



OTHER BUSINESS
A RESOLUTION FOR THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO LOOK AT
THE RV PARK AND CAMPGROUND PROVISIONS IN THE PRESENT
ZONING ORDINANCES AND ASK THE PLANNING COMMISSION
IF THE PROVISIONS ARE STILL UP TO DATE
A motion was made by Commissioner Lawing and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution for the Planning Commission to look at the rv park
and campground provisions in the present zoning ordinances and ask the Planning
Commission if the provisions are still up to date.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,

Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commission
Anderson to adjourn the meeting.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by a voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and

0 — absent. The motion to approve the adjournment of the meeting passed.

Commissioner Chase Murray gave the Closing Prayer.

*ALL OFFICES IN THE COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
THURSDAY AND FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 23%° AND 24™ FOR THE
THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY*

**THE COUNTY CLERKS OFFICE WILL BE CLOSED ON
SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 25™

**THE GREENE COUNTY EMPLOYEE CHRISTMAS BREAKFAST IS
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 19™  BEGINNING AT 8:00 A.M.IN THE
GREENEVILLE FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH FAMILY CENTER — FLYERS
HAVE BEEN POSTED. THE DEADLINE TO PAY IF YOU PLAN ON ATTENDING
IS FRIDAY, DECEMBER 15T**

**DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT
COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE THURSDAY, DECEMBER 7" AT 12:00 P.M.**

**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE
MONDAY, DECEMBER 18™ 2023**



Ll WMl AVOS LUY Lad JA fhRA Ma9 QLL G4awml Iy VOl Qony
givvz/ 002

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

December 7, 2023

Monthly report for Novermber 2023

Electronic claims submitted: 137

Malled claims, documents, etc.: 64

Telephone calls: 295

Walk-Ins: 79

Appointments: 83

Referrals to other agencies: 31

Veteran’s Organization’s Meetings

Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990
American Legion Post 64

Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42
Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League

-l

Sincerely,
&uﬁm@@\lw

Sonja Forbes

Director/VSO



€202 ‘1S1€ 1890)00
JJoday |eloueuld
s|ooyos AjJunon ausalg)



00°0 POl -T6ETZ-TH1
000 'S'd'd - -SBETZ-THT
(¢8987'1) Aunuuy jep = +BETZ-THT
£57T85°1 Jepy - “TBETT-THL
00°00T SUOASNPAQ UOJUA WPDD - -08ETZ-THT
00'0 Aynqestq ajgesn ~OLEVT-THT
00'0 speunsnip - = -Q9ETT-THT
00°0 WN02Y SGUIAES LAJESH - - -SOETT-THT
000 SSOUT {©IIHID Iqesn - -bIETZ-THL
000 WOT/IN 3|qesn ~Z9ETT-THT
000 ayrt oA Sgensn - -TOETZ-THT
1066 SOIADT PUY SIUBLUYSILED - -09LTZ-THT
o0'0 UBLLPOOM WaPOW - ~{SETT-THL
0070 I s/ouLey SISSIUUBL - = -SSETZ-THT
000 1e0UED Aqesn = -£6£T12-TvL
00°0 SU[ 3J UUBY 3IBI0H -CSETL-THL
00°0 J@uag sngeuaqduio) - -TSETT-THY
00°0 ysuaq dwed - -0SETT-THT
4699 SU[ LRjeaH oIasu0) - -SYETZ-THT
000 1UBpDAY 3|gesn - HETT-THL
6°LBLTT 2svL - Buipuads xay - led YBPS - -SPETT-THT
89°b6 SU SI9LPEI L |RUoREN - -HHETZ-THT
000 suj AyfepI4 vesuawy - -EPETZ-THT
(oz'D 3y ajgesn - -ZHETT-THT
10°552°S SUJ JALPEs) 03 49 “IPETT-THT
000 DUBWesURL) - ~OPETT-THT
8¥°55¢C HQEIS PLGAN JudwR.NRY - - TEETTIHT
B9'ES0'Z 159 18RO NG - - -TEETTIHT
(b5 1E8"Y) SUOANQLRUOY WSWRIASY - - -O£ETZ-HT
000 uoINP3Q IRDIPIY 3240(dw3 - - -STETT-THT
000 Xel AQUNdAS [eos - -02ETT-WHT
000 Piedun puy pIRYLRIM XL aLcou] - = -OTETTWT
(€£'522'96) ajgeAed JUNCOY - - -DOTTZ-TPT
0E6TE'TSH'S6 SIUNOSTY JO SMOLANO PaLIayeq pue H25sY  [e30L
0¢°61£'TSH'S6 NeseyY [0l
$0'6¥7'069°T U3 1) Jolxd o4 dasRsIY 0) PBYD dy - -009bT-THT
88'500°09% b1 (toxuon) seap waun) - saumpuadia - - -00SHT-THT
09°0£6'p95 (jonuoD) ssouziquIndug pajepinbiiun - - -00TT-1HT
00°£92°828°T9 SINuUAAIY pewnsy = = ~00THI-THT
(00°206°2£1) XeL Apadold S1Ge3R|I00uN 104 oUBMOllY - -01STT-THE
00°£57'81€"9 3jqenody saxe| Auadold - -00STT-TbE
000 Spuny BNC wald 3ng = -OrbT1-161
000 SWBLALBAOT PO Wold ang - -0EPTI-THT
{0z°0) 3|qeARIRY SWIOITY = -OTHTT-THT
ZUSI0°LIT'TE SISNIL LI Used - -0bT1T-THT
98°100'9 ueg uf yse - ~0ETTT-THT
vueled uoRdiIIs3Qg WNOXY AIQUINN JUNCODY
100425 s0ding jessusy IYT : pung
740 1 3bed £T0T 240120 pun4 qns @ puny
WY ES:6 £20Z/8/TT pund-gns pue pund AqQ 3RS Iousieg Aq 123Ys ueeq 1Aq pageasd

pIOJMEI) BIARY

UORRONPZ J0 Pakog AJUNo] Ul

pauyaq D91 el ajedwag



00'0¢
(0c'61E°TSR'S6)

(16'989°999°0T)
{00°000'002)
(2p°855'TH29)
(688b2'0£2)

oo asoding jeseusn T “$|0L puny

3DUEjRY PUn4 PUE ‘SIDUNOSIY JO SMOYUT PILIY ‘SOIJIGRT JeaoL

sopinb3 =o)L

2bT oL ueoT - paubrsseun

peumsseun

weiB01d |00Y>S PRpU3)XT - J2S ISUJ-UON JO UORRRAQ o paubissy

- ThT- -0006£-THT
= = -0006E-TH1
- d53F -04LbE-THL

(¢9°s¥5'z8YP) BAQUIDUT WBURINAY - LONEDNP] 104 peubissy - GId- -SSIVE-THT
(o8°128'16) $$97N5 0] S96pUG - uogednp] so4 poubissy - OTT- -SSLbE-ThE
(S1°109°86T) uonEDNPI 104 PAUBISSY - -SSIVE-THE
(+1'661'6) PppeT J832e) - UoRONASUL JoJ PEOUISRY - V1O -09SPE-THT
{8E'T8H'801°2) JE3) 104 - SIURIGUINOU = -OTTPE-THT
{09°0eb'¥3S) 1E9A JURLINT - SADURIGUWINIUT - - -OTTHE-THL
(6 TEY'PET'SE) soRMqen i=\eL
00°0 BNUIADY BigejieAeunypPUIREQ 12O - -06667-T#1
(00°£z8'2£T) soxe| Apadold JuBnbuipq paLeRd - -Sb66Z-THT
(00'Z6¥'p66'S) Saxe) Auado.d JUBLIND pILIBR] - -0K66Z-TH1
(62°069'£98°91) , (ionuad) sanuRARY - - -D0S8T-THT
(00°L97'828°19) (jonuo)} suogelidoiddy - - -0018Z-TH1
SO'TZ6'p1 23SSIUUBL JO 31E3S 01 @ng - - -DESTZ-THI
(00000'052) Spuny JSYQAQ 0L 3ng - = -00STZ-TH1
Fueeg vondudsaq Wnoxy J3qUINN URCIY
|ooyag 9sodind jeseuag TP pund
T Jo 7 abed EZ0Z 12400 Pun4y gns 1 pund
WV £5:6 £707/68/11  mawlt fageq puni-qng pue punj Aq 3WYs dueleg Aq 393ys uemg :Aq pageaudy
piopwen) eiAe)y P E ] UOREJINPI JO piecy AJUNo) JUID pauyaq 597 :aweN jejdwa)



TH0 20 601) Yot B1 OOCSUZEF T OO BPL SPE) OOUOE ZZLT 000 DOUGOL ZZZ T 3NNIATY 1VO0 1 83H10 V101 0009
05 26E 1) 6L 91 [ {09°%69°%) 00000¢C 000 00000¢2¢ SenuaAsY [E50 1 8010 0BG
(00°FL) %LTT SLTLTHE'T (SZ'2£T°LT) 00°000°09¢'T 00°0 00'000°09€"T U B SUCONqLIUCD 0LSPY
000 %L9°99 00°00T (00'007) 00°008 000 00°00€ [eNPIAPUT W04 PBI3AC0DY Sabelueq 0SSbb
000 %SL'8ET (00°sLL) (00'SLL°T) 00°000°Z 000 00°'000°2 juswdnbg Jo dfes LS
000 bpng oN 00°0 000 000 000 00°0 D) 081%b
(00°269'6) %LS'ET £0°64:'TST (£6°052'€2) 00°000°S/T 00'0 00°000'SZ1 SpUNJaY SNOALEYPISIW OLTob
(88'101°T) %Eb Sk 2072591 (£6'29€'T) 00°000°E 000 00°000°€ S|eUaIeW PepPAYDY J0 e Sbivh
(00°'565°8} %95°SL 00°SLL'6 {00°SZZ'0%) 00°000°0¢ 00°0 00°000°0t s|euay/eses] ozlvh
(99'12£'88) %00°ZST (52'200°16) (52'Z00°992) 00°000°S£1 00°0 00'000°SZT pauJeg 3591931 (114224
o %6lif L albiIc BLBIvLL) OU $L5 OPE 000 OO0 PLG UPE ____ S30IAG35 INJGUID H0d SaDUVHD 1VA0L  UU0EF
wWo 00 0 000001 000 00000 1 000 000001 eI punolbypeg [euluny Ta1 £35th
000 %97 'SE 8gTIT'IET Zrav'ie) 00'b75°202 00°0 00'$25°202 PIYD-5334 SIS AUUNMWLIOD I85¢h
000 %b6'2 vE6b9°LL (99°05€£°2) 00'000°'08 00°0 00°00008 S|00YIS [ENPIAPU] LWOLS SIAI0DY 0458F
000 %ILL 00'PbT'9P (00'958°€) 00°000'0S 00°0 00°000°08 SWAISAS JORO uoneycdsues | TESEY
000 %000 00°000'T 000 00°000'T 000 00°000°T SSUIYIEI BUIPUDA oseed
000 %00°C 00'000'9 00°0 00°'000°9 000 00°000°9 ApuPRA 4o des pOTED
NI 129 Tol6 1L T6 1561 (60 Bb5) V0005 ¢ (] D0'005 € T1INU3d UNV SaSNIOLT IVIOL 0001w
TBT8FT) e 1C 161561 (60°885) 00005 ¢ 000 00005¢ US0(] SDellie)y DItiP
iz il Tolv LT GOCHE SIS LT (PG ZICELEE)  OOUULBER BT 1KY OO OUZ BES WL SAXVL VOO IVi0L  OOU0F
00 %05 1 00 OLE 0004 00 0ov 000 G0 00 Soxe] [e30 1 AoIaes U0 O6E0F
000 %000 00°000'0Z 00°0 00°000'02 000 00'000°0¢ Xe| aspx3 jueg 0zeo
{00'921} %9LE 00°ZI8Y {00°88T) 00°000°S 00°0 00'000°S X2l uua W SLT0V
{0Z'565°508} %92°1€ 68'655°795°S (IT0b'26S'D) 00°000°001°8 00°0 00°000°00T°S X S3[eS uonag |eso 01Z0b
00°0 %95°T 16'809°bC {£0'16€) 00°000'SZ 000 00°000°sZ 1330 SOXEL JO N3 U SIUSWAR £910b
(2+°599'05) %0TLE 22°0£T'€9T {€T°622°96) 00°000°092 00°0 00'000°092 AOA 18] SBXEL JO N3 Ul SiuBLLAeR 79100
(56'50€) %0b°07 0T9LLY (0g'€2T’T) 00°000°9 00°0 000009 VAL SBXE] JO N3l Ul SYUBILAR] 1S10%
000 %000 00°00T°1 000 00°001'T 00°0 00°00T'T saxe] dn-yid 0sT0%
(Z6°9£6°S) %bT'8C ST'Pb9Op (£8'SSE'8T) 00°000°59 00°0 00°000°s9 RetRd g 15aJau] ObTOF
(£T°968't) %96'7T $8'155°85 (oT'8tv¥LT) 00°000°92 000 00°000°5£ HB[D UNoUD 0ETOb
{zs'vT) %EL 0T S TA (s6°'12) 00°002 00°0 00°002 ADYaruyues uorpa||oD d3ISNIL sZ1ot
(86°ZEp'ST) %b¥ b £0°900°007 (£6'€66'6L) 00°000°081 00°0 00°000°08T YA 10L1g-SUOHIBY|0 S@8ISNL 0Z10b
(9Z'Z5"9LS) %SP'6 YO EHS'ETS'S (9¢°95¥9£S) 00°000'001‘9 00°0 00°000°001'9 Xe| Auadald uaun) 0110b
INUBAIY JUILIN) pomjeay  pazieRIun pazyedy AlA pojewmsy jejol SUSWPUIWY 353 [eUIBUQ
% 100YdS B50d1nd (eduaD bl :pund
7401 3ped €207 18q0P0 pund ans Aq
JIDLLSILTS DNUDADY
WV 62:6 £20T/8/11 PDwiL/aeq pung-qns AqQ SINUIADY JO JUdWIANS 391 tAq pajeald
piojmes eAe) sasny uoneonp3 jo pieog AJUNo) AudD pauyag D9 SweN age|dwal



GOUSCEV0 9] YeBL LC NI OIS U96FF 6L U6D Z0801) OO0 Z9CBeg 19 T00 D0 Z0C BZE 10 o1 ‘pung J0J [B30L
000 500 U DO000 GL TO'0 00 D00 52 o0 00 D00 52 53041105 §3H10 1V101 _ UUUGE
000 %000 0000052 00 00 000'SZ 000 00°000°SZ SI9JSUEI] DunerRdQ 0036¥
TGLGOE 1C) EOEEAS 95 COT POT PE ZOL EL) DO OEG Z8T 000 DOULG Z8Y THIWNUIA0D Tv8503] V101 U00ZF
000 %000 0000001 000 0000001 000 00°0000T S91A08% 150104 08976
{1+°€6£°9) %ET'TT 65°907'6F (1p°€6£°9) 00°000°95 000 6000095 JusuRLINGWISY J10Y 04/
(bE'9LSP1) %ZSbT £0°956°66 (£6'€£6'91) 00°0£6°STT 000 00°0£6'911 2981S ybnouy | [esdpad JBY0 065Lb
m 000 %00°0 00°000°S 000 00°000°S 000 00°000°S poadedIpueH S JO UoReonp3 cHILb
NOT Sba Chb b) Vo0t 6T SO LT GUS TE WL UGLZ6UEE) UUEIESUT Vo 00 OO EIE 900 ¥F TI55aNNAL 30 31V15 V101 00099
060 %000 000ZTE 000 GOOITE 000 000ZTE SR 83615 o0 0865%
(96°€¥E°0E) %4005 TV'896°1T2 (88°1£0°16) 00°000°€0€ 000 00°000'€0E SPUN4 UOREINP] 2)e1S B30 0659%
00'0 %000 00°000°T€ 000 00°000°T€ 000 00°000'TE uoReINp3 SIAAUG 0S59%
{£0°008°+2) 12bpng oN (£0°008°b2) (£0°008'$2) 000 000 000 J3ppe 1o90e) 0T9%b
(PT8I9°ETT) %E50T 19°ebT'65€°T (££°000°091) 00°EbT'6TS'T 00°0 00°€PT°67S°T ¥-21d 23235 STS9b
(£6°SBL'ELT'F) %66°62 01'2¥9°'826'62 (06°£5€°128°21} 00°000°05<°Z% 000 00°000°0S2°Zk JUSPNS Ul JUSUGSIAU] JISSAULDY 0159t
BNUAAY JuALN) pozijeay  pdzyeasun pazijeay aLA pajewns3 (v10]  SsUSWPUIUIY 153 [euIbLIO
% JOOY2S 300N [etauas) Tp] = pund
T 40 Z abeg £20T 2qo0 pury gns Aq
JUSWIERLS SNUIAY
WV 6236 £202/8/11 zawnp/a)eg PUNJ-gNS AQ SSNUSARY JO JUIUNGS 03] iAqQ pajeal)
PIOJMETD) BJARY dasn) uoneonpy 30 parog AJuno) sUlIdiD pauyeq Do SWEeN ejawia ]




%890 (TroLs’1v8) 000 88'624°S 00°98b (00°005°£48) 00'0 (00°005'£b8) RwWidinbg uogangsuy ey <24
%Iy  (CTTOTLeT) 000 8LSTL'TIIT 8£'S0¢C (00°800°652) 00'0 (00'800'652) sabieyy PO 665
%T10'8Z- (S001Z'9H) 000 (sorotr’om) 000 (00°001'9¢)} 00°0 (0000198} sjeudely puy salddns B0 664
%819z 0S°LLS'TTT 000 05°£TET6T 00°00S'ET {o0'0s2°08) 000 {00°0s2'08) atemyos TZb
%BLGLT  LLT68'LE §5°049°€ 18 66'Z81°TT (00-000'0S) 000 (0000005} punog - HooqXaL  6¥b
%00°0 {00°000°S) 00°0 00°0 00°0 {00°000°S) 000 (007000°s) Juem3 - HjooqeL 0LV
%e0'sr  (S0°090°k2) SSEST'E 0"952°59 0£'692 {00°005°THT) 000 (00°00STHT) sayddng |euomongsul  6ZH
%00'8S  (00°09£°2€) 00°000°6T 00°0v2'sT 000 (00"000'82) 00'0 (00°000'82} SIOIMIBS PAPRAUCD BYI0  B6E
%Iger  (86°S60°PT) 000 WHir'y [£4:7( 44 (00"005'81) 000 (00'005'8T) 1dinb3-seoing siedsy puy oueudue  9EE
%00°00T  00°099 000 00°099 00°0 000 000 000 sapuaby Jjeand Wim spenuoy  ZTE
%gz0z  (15°008°SS) 00°0 65°661'bT £9°189'9 (00'000°02) 00'0 (00°c00°04) uoneziiqess pudAH - uswaigdy  Z1¢
ezl (TH8p9'6vT) 00'0 65'€S6'1S £9'662'pZ (00°209'10€) 00'0 {00°209'70¢) 2/e3ip3an 12Aoduy  ZTT
%ILT9  {9b'556°6) 000 PSPP091 000 (00°000°90) 000 (00°000'97) uogesuadwo) awlojdwaun  OTC
%88°8 (00'sz22'9€) 00'0 00°LLSE 00°006 {00 00E"0b) 000 (00°00E"C¥) ouemsu] (musg 80T
%z5ee  (TP10e's9e'T) 000 65 TI6'6ETT 8t TSH'E8Z (007€12°505°€) 000 (00'€12'505°E} ouednsu] [eoipd £0C
%s8ze  (15°906°€) 00’0 65'116'T 90°'64b (oo-g18's) 000 (00°878'3) aouesnsut 3y 902
%z0'6l  (L1'STT'6L1T) 000 €8°£68'94T ¥b'816'821 (00°seT'9sy'T} 000 (oo"ezr'9sv'T} weupIgay 1|s  H0C
%ETLT  (07°€59'890'T) 00'0 08°£56'022 $6°L9€'E0T (00°209'682°T} 00°0 {00°£09°682°T) Aun3s jepos 102
%Iv'6E  (#8TC9'E9) 000 9T8LETY ST (00co0’s07) 00'¢ (00°000507) S154289) 3IMASqNs payniad-uoN 86T
%60°'Ty  (L2°€€T'TY) 00'0 £2'992°82 19'120°01 (00°000°04) 00'0 (00"c00°0L) siayoe3] HMUsgns payyy  S6T
%057l (08'€8L'evs) 000 0z°9g7'907 ETLET'ER (00°020"058) 000 (00°0Z0"058) sabepm g seuejes BLRO 68T
%09b1  (12'998050'T) 00’0 62°129°6/T 12°602'€9 {00°88b'0€7°T) 00'0 {00°88b°0£2°T) syuesissy jeuopeonpy €91
%00°0 (00°000"09) 000 000 000 (00°000°09) 00°0 (00"000°09) spenuo) papuspg Joppe sy LTT
%8101 (b2'606'HY) 00'0 97'060°S 8E'SHS'T (00°000°05) 00°0 (00°000°0S) weibaud leppe ey /1T
%59'/T  (EVPBI'bSE'ST) 000 £5°TTH'S08°E LTP0TE69'T (00'909°658°6T) 00°0 (00°909'658'61) swewpes) 97T
00TTL
ax3 acuejeq seoueiquUNdUT  saunupuadxy  sesnppuadXy yobpng squawpusy  Junowy jabpng uogdseq WNOSOY  JSqUINY JLNOJOY
1/6png possquniusun  GupuRising 3je@-03-1RSA  3}RJ-03-YIUOW papusuly yebpng
0%

jooyds asoding jesauas IPT : pund

+T 40 T 3bed £70T 19q0P0
WY 756 £202/8/11 sw) fajeq pund Aq [QO Aq AlRwwIng saIn}ipuadx3y Jo Juswnens 291 tAq pajedsd

plosmes) ejARy

9sn

uoneaNp3 jJo piecq AJuUno) U

pauyeq D97 dweN Reidwdl



%991 (20°0057) 000 86°66t 66°6bT (00°000'¢) 000 {00°000°¢) welbosd soppe 3auey  LTT
%8E9T  (8£'TP6'6EE’T) 00°0 448 324 4° T4 bO'SET’ES (00v8%'209'1) 000 (00¥81'209°1) sPpesl 91T

00€TL
%zr'0Zz  (06°£9L°9TY'E)  o¥'LTL'6 $9°8£9°058 T0'LS8'9EE (00'PET’LLT'Y) 000 {oover’zLT'y) 00ZIL ImoL
%9596  (£8°8¢1) 1TCSS'E 9689 000 (00°05£°€) 00°0 (00'05¢°¢) sjeusiel puy soddng PO 66F
%1656  (29°€65) ST'SLT'9 ETTEL'L 8THHO'L (00°00S'pT) 00’0 {00°00S°¥T) saiddns jeuomnasul - 6Tk
%000 (00'008) 000 00'0 00'0 (00°008S) 000 {00°005) 1dinb3-sa0wuss Jiedsy puy adsueuuiely  9EE
%0070 (00 00s) 00'0 000 000 (00"00s) 00°0 (00°00S) bunsa) puy uogenea  ZCE
%Iz'se  (0T'689¢) 00°0 08'0TE'EL 00°800°0T (00°000°22) 000 (00°000°22) sapuaby aead YIMm spequop  CIE
%2521 (9£'865°9) 00'0 Yo' 10P'T €€HL9 (00°000'8) 00°0 (00°000°8) uonez|iGels pugAd - Jwswamay  L1¢
%I8'ST  (91°€88'LE) 000 ¥EITITL (%5743 (00°566"vh) 00°0 (00°'566°H) aiedpay sakoidwg 712
%00'0 (00°052'7) 000 000 000 (00°052°2) 000 (oorosz'z) uogesusdwo) JuswAoldwaun  0TZ
%00'0 (00'005’S) 000 00°0 000 (00°005'S) 000 (00°005°s) ouesnsu] gusq 80T
%b6'6Z  (PE'TOT'¥BE) 000 99'491°H91 €6 LLY Ty (00°£L9T°8bS) 000 (00°£9Z'8tS) souensuy [EIps  £02
%w6ege  (02°058) 00°0 0£'85¢ L9 {00°601°1) 00'0 (00°'601°T) asuewnsur 3y 902
%50PT  (61'9£4°022) 00'0 18'b0°9¢ £5'2€8°91 (00"185'952) 00°0 (00'18¥'952) weweugay ams  H0T
%SLPE (2p'600'P9T) 000 £5'98E"8Z oV TLTET (00'96£26T) 00°0 (00'96£°z61) Aunoes lepos  T0C
%P1 LT 08'610°S 00°'0 08°6b0°TT STHS6'Y {00'000°2) 00'0 (00°000'2) SI9PRS] NSNS pauad-uoN 86T
%Ip' Iz (SE'6T6'E) 000 99'0L0'T SU'ziy {00"000s) 000 (00°000°s) sioyoea) aymusgns payiay  G6T
%ITHE  (bL'BYL'STE) 00°0 92'2UL6’ES ET'8Z6'6C {00°12£'6£5) 000 (00 122'625) sibojoyped yoseds  TLT
%0F61  (88°20L'72€) 000 9Lk LL 51'60t'6C (00'6€1'66€) 000 (00°6£1'668) sesissy leuonesnpy €97
%050z (60°010°Z6) 000 16°02£°€T §2'996'S (00'1EL'STT) 00°0 (00°1£2'STT) s1aysea) punogawoy  8CT
%ECET  (B9'99'E) 00'0 zE'Ees 99'992 (00°000°%) 000 (00°000'p) weiboud sappe ey /11
%EP'9T  (60°8T6'LH8'T) 000 16'9LE'€9E T6°CET'BLT (00°'s62°1127) 00°0 (00's62'117°0) smipesl 97T

11114 74
%ET0T (TTTYS'64Z'4T) OTPLT'SS 6L°8TP°TL0 B8£'890°T6E'T (po'sex’sev'og) oo (00"SET’LEVOE) weuboid vogonnsuy senbsy  0OTTZ €901
%00°00T  00°02E'65 00°0Z£'6S 00°0 000 000 00'0 000 wawdinba B0 064

00TTL

ax3 aduejeq sadURIqWINDUI  SAINYpuUAdxT  ssumpuadxy - 1abpng sjuswpuswy  junowy Jabpng uondnsog JUN0OIY  JAQUINN JUNOIDY
jobpng passquniuaun  Bupueasing eg-03-1eds 3jeq-03-LQuon papuawy wbpng
3O %
Jjooyas asoding jesauan IPT : pung

b1 40 7 abed £207 3qopo
WY 25:6 £202/8/T1 syl fageg punj Aq [QQ AQ Aselwns SUNIPUdx] JO Juauines 91 :Aq p23eal)
piojmesy e 195N uogeanp3 Jo piecg AJuno) auslun peuYaq DO :2weN pedwsL



%SP'Z0T  0L'0S0'T 00'0 0/°058'¢ct 000 (00°0082t) co0 (00"008°T) SAAIRG PAPRNUOD PPO  66E
%s2TE  (€2'622'T) 00°0 £L'85S 1TeLt (00'882°T) 000 {00°882'T) aseipap dhodwy  TIT
%000 (00"051) 000 000 000 (00°0sT) 000 (oo osT) vogesuadwo) usliioidwaun 012
%000 (o0'sz2) 000 000 000 {00522} 00'0 (00°522) soueunsul |usg 802
%6ty {bb0£8'9) 000 95'%19'S PIEOL'T {00'set'¢r) 000 {00°s8b'¢T) 20uensu] [P Z02
%606  (0TTT) 000 0801 o'e (00°z2) 00’0 {00°22) asuensur 1 902
%e6'9z  (R6'S1S'8) 000 TOBET'E 61296 (00'SS9'1T) 000 (00°559'17) wewaipsy es  H0T
%9T'1E  (0L¥5T'S) 000 0£68E'T 69°0%L (00'p9'L) 000 (00°v¥9°'L) Aunisg jeoos  TOZ
%991 {baor1'Zs) 00’0 9T'ZTY'0T 80°1IT'S (00°€€5'29) 00°0 (00°e€5'29} sobep g sapejeS SR 68T
%2L708  (00°ObH'8T) 000 00°09'CT 00°09T°€ (00°080°Tb) 000 (0070801} jeuuosIad |ousp  Z9T
%897e  (9€'6BT'bE) 000 ¥9'Lb9°9T 16197y (00°££6'05) 000 (00°£€6'05) Jopauig/icsiaedns  SOT
0OTIZL
%99TE (TE'TSL'SER'T)  90°9S0°¥Z 29°6¥£'998 16'69¢'91E {00°'£ST’9TL'T) 0070 (00°£ST'92L7T) weibolg UORRINPJ [RUOIIRDOA  QOETZ =0l
%79'T8E  1S'TET'Ob 00°0 15'1BEDS 06'26£°0C (00'0SZ'pT} 000 (o0'0s2tT) juawdinbg uoponasuy (euonedop  0EL
%00°0 (00 zev’en) 000 000 000 (o0-zet'zny 000 (00-z21°21) sebuey) BRO 665
%66'9€E P’ L0S'PS 6L°96%C §6'010°SL 86'809 (00°000°€2) 00°0 {00'000°c} sjeusiely puy saiddng SIRO  66%
%lseT  (1p'282'59) £T°6551C 7€°€59'T £9°05% (00"000’88) 000 {00°000'88) sayddng |euogonasu] 62
%000 (00°000°T) 000 000 00’0 (00"000'1) 00°0 {00°000°T) 1dINb3-SO0IALRS Hledsy puy UBUIURKW  9EE
%5996 (587Z9K'0T) 00'0 ST'T£0°20€ SLHTOTHT (00 peSTIE) 00'0 (00'vES TIE) SWIRISAS |00YDS JRLRO Yitm speque)  TTE
%SH'S (88'119°02) 00'0 UssIT LIEED (00°008'12) 000 (00008'12) uonez)iqels PUgAH - uawaigay  £1¢
%seZl  (90'6£5°TE) 00’0 ¥6'05¥'Y 96'T€9°T (00°0€0'9€) 00’0 (00°0€0'9¢€) Suedipaiy RAodwy  ZTT
%000 (60'002'€) 00'0 000 0070 (00002'e) 000 (0000Z°€) uopesuadwo) uawhoidwaun 072
%00'0 {00°058'2) 000 000 00°0 (00°058°2) 00°0 (00°058°2) souesnsuy |mueg 80T
%€ (TL°T8T'LOT) 00°0 82'68b°79 6b'8¥9'9T (00°2££690) 000 (00°2£L'692) soueinsul epel  £0T
%L B81vi1'T) 000 78°66 1192 {00'b22'1) 000 (00°6£2'T) uemsur 3y 902
%8pCT  {p€'8I809T) 0o 99°£T6'22 97'205'8 {00°92'€BT) 000 (00'9¥£’c81) wowaImy NS 0T
%60°'ST  {€€'649°00T) 00’0 906841 85409 (000581 T) 000 (0o'ops'8IT) Aunvss lepos 10T
%89 (STEHO'TT) 000 SL'9S6°E SG806°T (00°000°ST) 000 (00°000°sT) siayoea) aymasqns pagued-uoN 86T
%L6'TT  (S£°€00°TT) 000 ST'96b'T S2'86b (00700s°21) 00°0 (00°005°2T) SiUPRI) JIMASNS payen  S6T
%00'00T  SLTHT'OE 000 SLIHT0E 000 00'0 00°0 00°0 sebep\ g souejes Jaig 681
%00'00T SZ'0SSHT 00°0 ST°055'%T ST°055%T 000 000 000 [PuuosId¢ Pduepns  £2T
00ETL
ax3 aduejeg sazuesqundul ssunjipuadxy  ssungipuadx3y 330png SuUIWpURY junowry jabpng uondpsag N0y  IIGUUINN JUNCIIY
186png pasequmndusun  Bulpueysing 33eQ-0j-seap  3)eQ-01-IRUOK papuRwy 19b6png
%
e [o0Yyd3S Umau-n_ ereusd IvT :pungd
b1 Jo g abed €207 194010
WY 25:6 £202/8/1T swil /e pund Aq [q0 Aq Aewiung saanjipuldxd jo JuswNes N :Aq pojeaus)
plomer) ejAe)y 98N uoneanpy Jo pieog Ajuno) sudaus paupeq D91 :3wey ejdwusl



%Z0'TZ  (€8'0¢E'6h) 00°0 FAR: 4% I9°EbT's (00°'65¥'29) 0070 (00'65b'29) Aundas lenos 10T
%000 {00°000°2) 000 00'0 000 {00'000'2) 000 (00°000'27) USYpeD| AMASANS PIYMID-UON 86T
%0070 (00'000°2) 00’0 000 000 {00000°7) 000 (00°000'7) SIBYoRaL AAMISGNS paua) ST
%00'S {05'800°T£T) 00°0 05'166°8 SL'S6b'Y (00-000°08T) 000 (00°000'081) sabem 1 soueles ipo 681
%bTE  {09'291°5S) 000 0b'8y9°sT 05°SSE'8 (00°918'08) 00'0 {00'018'08) suepuslly 91
%IS¢T  {S0'6b2'658} 00'0 S6'L£€°Z81 92 0bE vL (00°£85'190'T) 000 (00°£85'1H0'T) [ouuossad adueping  £CT
%000 (00°000°1) Q00 000 000 {00°000'7) 00°0 {00°000°1T) weuboud Jappe sosaed  LTT
0ETTL
%80°8y (06°9TL'6TV) 68TIT'6 TT'Y99°88E £9'08T'EET {00'vs9'£78) 00°0 {00"¥s9'2T8) 0ZIZL €L
*£85' 10°9€T'6bT 81'060°E £5'SP1TST 00°S2L 15T {00°000'9) 000 {00°000'9) yuswdinbl yyeeH SEL
%Ip'0F  {(01°600'0) ETHHET 19°08L'C 00°SZ6'T (00'v80°01) 00’0 {0o'v8o’o1) sebleyy B0 66S
%000 (00"005'1) 000 000 00’0 {00°005'1) 000 (00°00S°T) UKo LeIS/oMSS-UT  bZS
%8 LT (L£269'6) 79169 19°0TH'1 89°££0°T (007008’TT) 00'0 {00'008'11) sieL@iels puy sayddns Jo0  66F
%ET'T8  (88VTH'T) . 00'9€9°C ZI'6hPE 4N 43 (00°005°2) 000 {00°00s°0) sajjddns [edipaiy puy sbnig - €T
%00°0 (00°051°9) 000 000 00'0 (00°051°9) 00'0 {00’051'9) SSAMIDS PIPENUOD BLRO  66E
%L6'sT  (89'€62'9) 00'sZ8 7€°e8E"T 86'699 {(00'z0s'8) 000 {00'z05'8) ARy GSE
%00°0 (00°002) 000 000 000 (00002} 000 {00°002) sabuey) je3sod  8bE
%b6v9  (05°655) 95'549 +6°09€ 96607 (00°965°T) 000 (00°965°T) uoREduNWwWe)  Z0E
%bb'ST (692986} 000 TE'L00'C 9Z'969 (00's£8'2) 000 (00'sz8'2) s:e0ipay Jehodiug  ZTT
%00'0 (00 0sp) 000 00'0 00°0 (00'05b) 000 (00°05%) uonesuadwo) Juswigdwaun  0TZ
%86°9 (00°000'T) 000 00"0ST 00°0S1 {00051} 000 {00°081'2) souminsu] |usg 80T
%S0be  (ZE'SLL'L0T) 090 89'959°SS HO'6L8'ET (00°zep'eo1) 000 (00°zepb'e91) 2uelnsu] |enpay  £0T
%s8'6e  {08°SST) 000 0Z'€0T 09'1Z (00650 000 (00'652) dueinsul ot 90T
%09'9  {0£7025'LE) 00°0 0£°965°€T 6'ETL'Y (00°£11°15) 000 (00721115} Waupmay aes  HOC
web'st  (01°760'sT) 00°0 067858 10°££6'T (00°'529'¢E) 000 {00°5£9°ce) Aumosg lepos 107
%e6  (ST'ESH'S} 0090 SL£792°S 051007 (00 91L'TY) 000 (00°912'TT) sabep 1 soueles PO 68T
%86'Te  {T1°£85'10£) 00'0 88°bTB LT 09'718'6v (00°Z1"Evb) 000 (00Z1¥'Evb) jouuosIag [oipa TET
%00'0 (00°9££'65) 00°0 000 000 (00'95L'68) 000 (00°95£'65) sapang/iosiedns  SOT
SODIAIRS LReaH OTTTL
%ETTY  (SO'9VE'9ET) 000 S6'TLT'S6 TI'STY'ST (00'619°7€7) 00°0 (00°'619'1£7) 011ZL |230L
%00°0 {co-oo1) 00°0 000 000 (00'001) 00'0 (00°00T) sobieyl JBA0 665
%00°0 {00°002) 000 00°0 000 (00°002) Q00 (00°007) sjeuaiely puy saiddng B0 66F
01TZL
axgy Idueeg sasueiqundug  sainppuadxz  sesnypuadxy wbpng sjuswpusly Junowy 136png uondidsaq JUNCHY  JSGUINN FUNCIDY
16png passquindusun  BupuesNng  9Je@-03-J9A  IRQ-0F-YIUOW pepusuy yobpng
30 %

jooyos asoding |esauaD TPT :pund

+T Jo b abed £20Z 139010
WV 256 £202/8/11 PwiL/eeqa PUNd Aq [0 Aq AleuwWnS S34NJIpUDAX] JO JuDWINeIS 291 :Aq pjeas)

plosmetD ejae

RSN

uonesnp3 jJo pieog AJuno) U3

pouysq 397 ewenN slejdwey



%bI'ST  (85'8b8) 00'0 18T 1L'SE (00°000°T) 000 (00°000°T} UOREZIIQEIS PUOAH - UswRYy /1T
%wbe Tz (SETHO'ST) 000 §9°59T’S 64'S6L°'T (00°802'+2) 00°0 {00'802*¥2) aueoipay Jeholduy  TTC
%000 (00°006) 00’0 000 000 (00°006) 000 (00°006) uopesuadwoy Juawhoduaun 01T
%0001 (00°00£'7) 00°0 00°00¢ 000 (00°000°¢} 000 (00°000°} soueunsu jeusa 80T
%520c  (TL'8b1'L6T) 000 62'815°s8 86°785'07 (00°£99'280) 000 (00°£99°82) aoueinsuf [eaipey 20T
%bz'se  (09'208) 000 0v°£91 ve'se (00°s2p) 00°0 {00°SL) souemnsur 90T
%E0¥Z  (59'806'+6} 00°0 §€'070°0€ 99'9£1°0T (00'626'v2T) 000 (00°626'veT) wewelney AGs  +0T
%oz 1z (1£:795'18) 00°0 67°8v6'TC 8£'629°L (00°115°€0T) 000 {00°T15'€0T) Aunxg lepos  TOT
%6921 (S5S1T'P) ) Sa] 0S°59p (00°000°S) 000 {00°000°s) S52YIES | NSNS pausI-uoN 86T
%8sy (9€'750'T) 000 +9°Lb6 6E'8v9 (00'000°7) 000 {00°000°2) sisyoeaj aympsqns paynse)  S6T
%y 1T (6p°1EL'22T) 000 15°268'ST L1'662'S (00'629°8ET) 000 {00°629"8ET) sabep g sauejes 1210 687
%b'st  {0670£0°0€) 000 0T'9£Z'0T 04'9€9°E (00°2bg'ob) 00°0 (00200} suesissy |euopeonpy €91
%os06  (0T'BIT'LD) 00'0 08'HH0'TT 0T'TI0'E (00°g91'68) 000 {00°€9T'65) [BulosIad |Uep €97
%z0e (92°50L°61€) 000 vL"908'8ET £E'IST'9E (00'Z15'85%) 000 (00°Z15'85%) [uUCsIRd E1pajy uogeonp  LET
%espl  (8b'66T1'T8L) 00°0 TS'68F'SET 9L'vbL' (9 (00'689°916) 000 (00'689°916) sueweuqry 62T
%00°0F  (Z0°005) 000 86°661 66'662 (00°000's) 000 (00°000°s) weiboug Joppe oiey  LTT
%ee'es  (ZeaplTIT) 000 89'€£0'95 4 a1 R 2 (00°zzesot} 000 (00'zze'891} Jopang/osivedng  SOT
o1TZLL
%0§°0Z (LV'EST'ZT6ET)  6b°L6Y'6T +0°65S'6EE 09'S8T‘TET (000zT’TSL'T) 000 (00°0zZZ’152'T) 0€TZL 120l
00b'T 00009 00'0 00'008'v 00'008'% (00'002) 0070 {00°002) awdinby alp0 0674
wLr9e  (OTHIg'E) 6b'L6b TH'88E'T 86'L€ (00°002’S) 00°0 {00'002’s) sebiey) BIRO 665
%IT9 {oe"gor'T) 00°0 0L'16 8L'6b (0000} 000 {00°005'T) aldopASq YRIS/EIARS-UL  HES
%610  (59°668) 000 SE°000°C 000 (000582} 000 {00°0s8'7) sjeusely puy sayddng PI0  66b
%bzzz  (00°00¢'/8) 000 00°000°S2 00°005CT (00'00v'2IT) 000 {00°00¥°CIT) SEOAIRS paPeNUa) PRI 66E
%gees  (00°000°TT) 00°000°6T 000 000 (00°000°0€) 00'0 {00°000°0€) Bugsay puy uonenieay  7ZE
%0L'6T  (8ELSL'T) 000 [4: x4 04 €128 (000050 000 (00'005'7) uonezigels pUgAH - uewRuy  LTC
%2Z0'Tz  (1£°9€5°11) 000 62'0L0°€ L€°9701 (0020941} 000 00°£09'+1) aseoipay hodwy  ZTZ
%00°0 (00°005) 000 00'0 000, (00°'005) 000 {00'009) uogesuadwon Juawholdwaun 012
%00°0 {00°005°€) 000 00°0 00°'0 {00"005€) 000 {00"005'€) souensuj |ewsg 80T
%8 Th  (b8'TT9'LL) 000 91°882'sS ¥S'L62'51 (00°00+'€ET) 00'0 (00°00¢’€ET) soueinsur lepen  £L0T
%90 € {£2°18D) 000 ££°901 0T'sz (00'882) 000 {00°882) aduesnsu 4N 90T
%El'ze  (bT'816'LS) 00°0 9L ¥op'9T 8b'1€5'9 {00°€Tr'pL) 00'0 (00°€TH'b2) wswamay R|s 0T
OETZL
g souejeg ssouesquiduy  senppuadx3y  saunyipusdxa obpng sjuiupuawly  junowy yabpng uond|Dsag JUN00IY  JAGUINN JUNCIDY
6png passquinousun  Buipumsing 33eq-03-4edA 33e@-03-YIUOKW pepuawy wbpng
3O %

looyds asoding |esauan I¥T :punj

$T 40 G abed £207 199010
WV 256 £202/8/11 sewi fajeq pung Aq [QO AqQ Alewwing SSINPUSIXT JO JUBLNS 01 :Aq pajeas)
piopes) ejAey esn uonesnp3 Jo pieoq AJUNoD dUSIIH pauyaq D91 =dwe) ajejdwa]



%beeR  (STEET) 00’0 SL99T'T 00’0 {(c0"00%'T) 000 (00°00b'T) wawdopasq yes/ediias-ul 25
%8661  (86'108'8) 80°Z0b $6'56L'T 00'ZHT (00°000°1T) 000 (00000°TT} sjeuaqely puy soiiddns U0 66
%89°09T b bS8V 69°281°L S0'£99°S P2 TITLZ (00°000°8) 000 (00°000°8) pARlp  SSE
%005, (000S2) 000 00°0SZ 000 {00°000°T) 00°0 (00°0007) idinb3-saojnleg sieday puy aoueusuely  9EE
%000 (00°08S) 00°0 00°0 00'0 (00°05S) 000 (00°055) sjuawded asea  0EE
%6H'8 (sT9z0'p) 00°0 SLELE ST0ST (00 00t"p) 000 {00°00v'v) sapusby JIqnd 1BtRO Yum speaque) 0TS
%0008  {00°00€) 90'EL6 $6'972 96'SL {00°005°T) 000 {00°005°T) uonedunwwe)  Z0E
%00°00T  €£°02€ 00'0 €202 16°90T 000 000 00'0 UOREZINGETS PUGAH - WPy 1T
%z (S9°€ET9'%) 000 SE6LLT 117228 {00"€sg’a) 000 (00°€5€"9) aieipaly Jokojdwiy  TTT
%00'0 {00'0ST) 00’0 000 00°0 (00°0sT) 000 (00as1) uopesuadwo) pRwAoldwaun  0TT
%000 (00'sz8) 00'0 000 00°0 {00°528) 00°0 (00's28) saueinsuy puag 80T
%869 (£1°502'££) o000 (826812 8T 6er's (00°8€0°65) 000 (00°8€0°65) ajueinsuf |eapay 20T
%92 (00°89) 000 00°€E 08'L (00°101) 000 (00'101) ;ueinsul 3y 907
%bl'sz  {€9°5¥9'22) 000 L£982°6 LETHL'T (00°Ze6'95) 000 (00Ze6°9¢E) aweey TS 0T
%Teir  (69'89L°6T) 000 TE'WEEL T8EST'T (00°€9T2D) 000 (00'€91'22) Aunoag epos 10T
%es0e (25'910%64) 000 8v'8ZLbE 29'762'01 (00°skL'eTT) 000 (00°SkLETT) sobem g ssuejes ;oo 681
%SL0E (09°S6S'EL) 000 0b'8€0°9 09'60S'T (00tE9'61) 000 {0ove9'eT) (S}ueaiss 191
%00'57  (15°085°15) 00'0 6p'€81°LT £8°LTL's (00'v££"89) 000 {0ovEL'89) [PULOSIRd Juwssassy  GET
%IFET  (6€'L6E'ETD) 00°0 19°629°€E TE(SL'CT {00220t} 00°0 (00°£20°240) jouLOSIad JenbojodAsyd b T
%000z (00°00b'7) 00°0 00°009 00°00€ (00°000°€) 00°0 (00°000c) weiboid soppet i) £L1T
%eeee  (00°449'29) 00'0 00°22E'1€ 05'0€8'2 (00°996£6) 000 (00'996°c6} sopang/osivadng  S0T
0TTTL
o%TrsT (S9'69€’£6£'T) S8 0S8'TS 05°T89°09S S6'VSS'ERT (0o0°'zo6’60t’'t)  00°0 (00°206°60%'7) 0ITTL =0
%000 {o0-000'T) 00°0 000 000 (00"000°1) 000 (000001} wawdinby BRE 06
%00°0 (00°00S) 00'0 00'0 00'0 (00°00S) 00'0 {00°00S) sabiey) QIO 665
%000 (00°000°5) 000 00’0 00°0 (00°000°5) 000 (00°000°5) uawdopAag Yers/eonesur  HTS
%IZ0T  (12°646°L) §E'99T'T bS8 6LSHT (00°000°01) 000 (00°000'01) S|eUNe puy s3ddns L0 661
%2678 {00°£98%) 00'0 00°£€9'€C 00°0 (00005'82) 000 (00°005'82) eipapy/siocog Aerqry  ZEY
%LOTLE  HT'099°0F ST'099'SH 66'6666 99'999'9 (00°000°ST) 000 (00°000'sT) SRS PRPRAUC) BIRC  66E
%IEP  (0b'ETT'ET) 00°0 09'525°01 06°€96y (00°052°€0) 000 (o0°0s54'e0) [pARY)  GSE
%00°0 (00°00T) 000 00°0 00°0 {00001) 00'c (00'001) 1dinb3-saoiatag seday puy oueuquel  9EE
%00°0 (00°000"s) 000 000 000 (00°000°s) 00°0 (00°000°5) sueynsuoy  §OE
%6566 (00°00€) SEvZa'S 89SV’ T 8T 6L (00°008°9) 000 (00"008’9} uopeownwwo)  Z0E
0TTZL
ax3 aouejeg soueMqUINDUY  saunypuadxy  sasnypuadxl wipng SUBWPUIWY  Junowy 3abpng uoRdpsaq JUNCOdY  JSGUINN JUROIDY
306png pasequnousuny  Gulpuesing  MNeg-03-1294  Lg-0)-WIUOW papuswy je6png
3O %

1o0yds asoding [e1sudd TPT - pund

7 Jo 9 abed £20Z 499000
WY 256 £202/8/TT iswlL/a3eqa pund Aq [qO Aq AJRLILINS SSINTIPUSAXI S0 JUIWNES 291 :Aq pareanry

piogmer) ejiex wesn

uonEINpP3 JO pieog AJUNo) IUIID

pauysaq D91 sswepN 2jejdwa )



%s5z6  (61°211'T) 00°001"L 18'78L"9 BL'669°S (00'000'sT) 00'0 (00'000'ST) prell  SSE
%86'7S  (¥8'SSL'TD) 000 T HHL'EL 0S'€78°C (0000057} 000 (00°000'52) saomes jebo1  TIEE
%ITPS  (00°S29'H) 00’0 00°SLb'S 000 (co'eot’oT) 000 (go001'0T) sdiysiaquai puy san@  0Z€
%00'0ZT 0070005 00'0 0070000 00°005'T {00°000°52) 000 (00°000's2) saomRs upny  S0E
%009 (OFEIT'E) 00'0 02’1543 vT9L (00'598°%) 000 (00'598°t) auexpay Jokodwa 212
%6eTZ  (S866L°9SE) 000 S1°000°26 ST'T9'1Z (00°00S'€SH) 00°0 (00°005eSH) souensul jeIipsW  L0C
%reel (08" THLT) 00'0 07’892 91'68 {00°010°2} 00°0 (00'010°2) soueinsuy g1 90T
%bs'ze  (09°965) 00'0 0b°062 05U (00°288) 00'0 (00°288) Wwswaey Es  HOT
%00'9g.  (90°ETE’ET) 00'0 b6 L8 L 10°92¢ (00°108°02) 000 (00'108'02) Aunoss |eos 10T
%TTLT  (00°0SE°TT) 000 00059 00059t (0000022} 00°0 (00°000°27) $394 S1aqUURlY BBWWWOD puy preog  T6T
%98'2¢  (£6'60v'98T) 000 £0'065'€TT 000 {00°000°00€) 000 {00°000°00€)} Aed Ayasbuot 98T
%EE'EE  {89°999'S) 000 ZEEEB'T €£'80L (00°00s'8) 000 {00°005°8) pieog o) Alenas 81T
0TEZL
%9e0L (ST'ETIT’S9) S6°64Z°T 06'9€ETST 08'+80°0PT (00°002'612) 00°0 {00'00£'612) 0SZZZ je30L
%£9°05  (56°888'Lb) S6'6b2'T 0T°198"9Y 00'6Sb'LE (00'000°26) 00°0 (00°000°26) aemyos  Tib
%5L'99  (00°SZEE) 000 00'6£99 00'SZ8'E (00'000’0T) 000 (00°000°0T) bujgey  OLp
%(9¢8  (0T668°'ET) 00’0 08°008°86 08'008'86 (00'00221T) 00'0 {00"00£'2T1) Apagpauuoy yowu  OSE
0STTL
%89°'TE {60°66Z'E€8) 00°0 16°859°BE 9'0TL'S {oo-8T6'1ZT) 000 (00'8T61ZT) 0€27L 1=0L
%000 {06'005'S) 000 000 000 {00°005°S) 000 {00°005"S) |sARll  SSE
%ITEe  (L0'1Z6) 000 £6°55% YIT {00°2LE'T) 000 (00°2LE'T) slepapy lRAodug  TT2
%000 (00p€) 000 000 000 (00'p€) 000 (oo'bg) uopesuadwod wawAoidwaun 012
%00°0 (00°0ST) 00°0 000 00°0 (00"0ST) 000 (000sT) souesnsu] |euag 802
%eLEE (00786°) 000 G0 0r5'T 00'5£9 (0ozzs‘s) 00°0 (00°z2s’s) aouesnsu] |peN  £0T
%eLve  (02'6) 000 08’y (74 {o0'¢T) 00°0 (00'¢T) souesnsul )7 S0T
%el'ee  (ve'02eEy) 000 99'9bT’Z L0°0¥S {00°£9¢"9) 000 (00°£9b9) Wwew=iRay AEs  H0T
%IT'EE  (86'8€6'E) 000 566'T LT68 (00°888°S) 00°0 (00'888'c) Aunxs jepos 10T
%00'0Z  (00°008) 000 00'002 00°00T (00°000'T) 00°0 (00°000°T) weiboyy soppey ;eaiey /11
wee'ee  (00b4929) 00'0 00°2ZE'1€ 05°0£8°L (00°996°€6) 00°0 (00°996'c6) 1opangfiosinzdns  SOE
ogeTL
%L8'ST  (TT°10T'vZS) £8'795'8 90'VSEVLT 09°€99°ZS (00'810'202) 00'0 (00°810°20£) 0zZTZL 1|0l
%00' 1T (86'v2277) 000 ({15724 00’0 (00°005'2) 00'0 {00'005°2) sebiey) B0 665
ozzLL
ax3y Iduejeg sIJjuesquimiug  sainjpuadxg  saamgipusd)q Jobpng SUSWIpURWY  Junowy 336png uondnsSd JUNC3dY  JSQWINN JUNOIDY
126png pesqumououny  Buipuesing 2jeQ@-03-4e9s  3)eQ-0)-LUOK papuswy Jabpng
30 %

looyas asoding [etaua9 IPT puny

$1 jo £ sbed €207 1990P0
WY 256 £202/8/TT R[wlL/aeq pund Aq [qO Aq Atewwng S2Unypusdxd jo Judiulels 29 :Aq pajeasd
plopmeis edey 119sn uoRednp3 jo pieog AJuno) sUsIH pauyaq D97 :owenN ajejdina)



%eT'be  (ET'042'€£9) 000 £8'S04°10Z 62°6£T' L9 (00°94b'5€8) 00°0 (00°9£p'5£8) siedipund uejsissy 6T
%IES (81°81+'9) 000 z9'185 16'062 (00000°2) 000 (00°000°2) weibayd soppe Jase)  £LT1
%ozee  (TL'STZ'2L8) 000 ST'TIL VeV 28'££5801 (00°2z6'90£"T) 000 {00°£26'90£'T) sjedpund 0T
(108 742
%zLLs  (68198°96T7) 20°'TH9'ST 60°£ZT'¥9T L0°EBE'9E (00°pES'9LY) 00°0 (00" ve9’aLy) OZEZL (€101
%000 {00°009) 00'0 00'0 00’0 (00°009) 000 {00°009) Juswdinbg uogenswwpy 102
%00°T (00°s6b) 000 00°S 000 (00°005) 00'0 (00°00S) sobleyy 12p0 665
%S {00°956'2) 60'PHE'T 16°661 88'9 {00°005°s} 00'0 (00°005°S) saiddns aayo  SEF
%ILLTT  00°0PT'T £8°€SH'S £1'982°2 bLS06'T {00°000°2} 000 (00"000°2) SaDINRS PIPRRUO) IBYI0  66E
%wbgee  (Eb°9p9°7) 00°00¢ £57€59 00°0 (00°000'p) 00°0 (00°000') [CYCITR
%L5ce (LLpTT9) DI'60b'T 19 66'L (007000'8) 00’0 (00°000'8) sabseys jegsod  8PE
%000 {00°00¢) 00°0 000 000 (00°00¢} 000 (00-00€) 1dinb3-soowuas Jieday puy eoueudulely SEE
%se'68  (00°S06) 00’0 00°565°Z 000 (00"00s‘8) 00°0 {00°005°8) sdiysiaquia puy seng  0CE
%89'78  (ST'6ZE'p) 00°08Z'T SL'06E'6T o8'eTL’] (00°000'52) 000 {00°000°52) vogesunuwoy  Z0E
%eb' 1L (00°000°7) 0055k 00°sb5 000 (00"000°2) 000 (00'000°2) busqueapy  Z0E
%991 (07°9£0°C) 000 08°bTk'1 18°7b¢ (00° 105} 000 (00'105°F) aueipaly Jododwy  ZTZ
%00°0 (00 0obT) 00'0 00'0 000 {00-orT) 00'0 (00°0¢:1) uopesuadwiod Juswhioduun 012
%00'sz  (00°05b) 000 00°0ST 00°0S1 (00-009) 000 (00009} souensu] || 80¢
%bese  (Ly'TeL'LE) 000 €5°276'¥T 69°81E'E (00°559'25) 000 (00°559°26) souesnsuy eoipay  L0C
%L0'2€  {Ov'6g) 00'0 09°871 a4 (00°8%) 00°0 {00'8s) aouesnsur 71 90¢
%987 (95°€61°ST) 000 b LEY'L 9L'659'T (00 1£9°22) 00°0 (00'1€9'22) Wy Ams  H0T
%99'T€  (£L°TST'ET) 000 £2'260'9 8591 (00°5T'6T) 00'0 (00'st2'sT) Aundas [epos  T0Z
%60 (08'896'67) 000 0Z°LZY'eT 08'95€’¢ {00'96£ %) 000 (0096 'ct) jPuuosiad [eou3 79T
%EEEE  (96°1LT'£8) 000 bO'9ES'ED 10°606°01 {00°8060ET) 00°0 (00°806°0€T) (shuesissy €01
%EE'EE  (TE'EEL'06) 00°0 89'99¢'SH LTHE'TT (00°00T'9€T) 00°0 {00°001°9¢T) JDYI0 SAjeRsIuWDY/lenwo Aunoy 10T
ozZeLL
%0Z'TE (¥9'SEE'GES) £6'1660T 6€°S9S 69E 9T°¥67'99 (00°ET6’6T2'T)  00'C (00°ET6'6TZ'T) 0I€ZL Q0L
%sz'09  (107081°¢) L6°TE8'E 20'826 16642 (000008} 000 (00°000°8) sobieyy B0 66S
%1670¢  (0b'9£9°8) 000 09°£98’¢€ 56'78% (007005°2T) 000 (00°005°21) QU - S;uednddy Jo uonebgssaul feuwy  £€5
%zLse  (Weee'Ted) 000 95°0L1°LL £5°V8R'(T (00°000°00€) 000 (00°000°00€) uoissiwWo) s3SI 0TS
%9679 (00'005'7) 00°0 00°052'v 00°0 (00"0s2'9) 000 (00°0s2'9) SONAIRS PEPRNUC) RO 66E
OTETL
ax3 aouejeq ssouelqunouz  seimpuadxy  sainyipuadxy 3ebpng SyuaWpusWY  jJunowy 3P6png uoRdpsaq JUNCOdY  JIQUINN JUNCIDY
3126pngd pasaqumousun  Supuesing IR Q-03-1e9)  3jed-03-JIUoW papuawty 126png
0% [ooyas asodind |eisuan I¥T :pund
T Jo g abed £20Z 124010
WV 256 £20T/8/11 sawy] /azeg pund Aq {qo Aq Atewwing sainMpusdxd Jo JuWNES 391 :Aq pajeasd
piojmer) ejiey H = ) uonedINp3 Jo pieodg AJuno) ausaun pauyaq Do Pwepn Iejdwa)



%09'1€  (2T'695°€) 000 8L'8b9'1 €600 (00'812°s) 00°0 {00'812'S) aiepa PAoidug 21T
%00°0 {oo0b1) 000 00'0 000 (00'0pT) 000 (0001} vogesuadwo) uswioidwaun  0TC
%000 (00050'1) 000 000 000 (00°050°T) 00’0 (00°050°T) Puensu] |guag 807
%9106 (HO'EST'HY) 000 96'06L'LT 0S'SET’9 (00°400°Z6) 000 (00'v00°z6) souelnsu] [eipol  L0Z
%0s'0s  (00°0S} 00°0 00'1S 0z'01 (ooT01) 00°0 (00°'10T) aoueinsur 3y 90T
%I18ZE  (56'98L%2) 000 §0°201°ZT s0'9TT'E {00°6889¢) 000 (00°688°9€) JouLINRY s PO
%09'1e  (p6297'ST) 000 90°050°2 £0°0S2"T (00'eTE'2T) 00 (0og1e'T0) Awinzes fepos 102
%ysZe  (HPT'SBE'HOT) 000 98'7£5'86 £6°0Z1'ST (00°856'70¢€) 000 (00°856'20€) jpuvosiad (3R 79T
%Ip'0g  (91'H85'9h) 00°'0 $'ESE0T 91°880°S {00°8€699) 000 (00°8£6°99) sopangfroansdng  SOT
01SZL
%pe'67 (L6'0L6'6E6'T) ST'6ST'OF 8L°675'081'T TS TI8'ZEE (o0o6L'09T'Y) 00°C {00°06£°091°v) OTHZL =300
%00°0 {00°000°7) 00'0 000 00°0 (00'000°2) 000 (00°000'2) swdinbz vonensiutupy  T0Z
%000z (00°008) 000 00°002 00°0 (00°000'T) 000 (00°000'1) sabley) BpO 665
%£9'TOT 007001 06°05L'S (1] ¥ or'6bE (00°000'9) 000 {00°000'9) seusiely puy soiddns R0 66
%00'00T 000 £8'ISL'EE LUSHZ'IT S5'EST'8 {00°'000'SH) 000 (00°000'sy) SIS papenuo] BPO  66€
%00°0 (00°005°0) 00°0 000 000 (000052} (] (00'005°2) PARIL  SGE
%00°0 {00°000'1) 000 00'0 000 (00°000°T) 00°0 {00°000°T) 1dinb3-so01098 Jleday puy aoueuurel  9EE
%08/ (68'867'0€) 75'98¢L 65'+16°0T 92°SL1'S (00°000°2H) 000 (00°000'2H) uogedwnuwwoy  LOE
%00°00T T2°6EE 000 TT6EE LO0°ETT 000 00'0 00°0 uonezyiqeIs PUGAH - wawaImRy  ZLTZ
%eliz (19°S6E'1€E) 000 6£°089'1T ¥g'9ze'e (00°9£0°ch) 000 (00'920°¢v) aumpay PAodwy  TTZ
%000 {o0005) 0070 000 000 (007005) 00°0 (00°005) uonesuadwo) Juswiojdusun - OTC
%Sb'E (000018} 000 00°00€ 00°00€ {00°00.'8) 000 (00°0028) ouesnsu] jgusg 80T
%z0'1E  (€5°815v2h) 000 L4'998'06T ECHTH PP {00'59€'519) 00’0 (00's8¢'s19) 3dpuainsu AP L0T
%Ee'9e (BT THR) 00°0 78'80€E 16'99 (00'058) 00°0 (00°058) auesmsur i 90¢
wobZz  {€€776629T) 000 L9'LvT'e9 90°'6H1'8T (00'018°0€2) 000 {co"or8'0€0) Juswainay RS 0T
%I0L  (EVShPYED) 00°0 IS5t 65'bZLET (00°£81°¥8T) 000 (00°£81°'¥8T) Aunoss epos 10
%067 (89'£€8'€9) 000 TET9T'9T £8'925'9 (00°000'06) 000 (00°000°06) sabem @ saueles JBIRO 681
%eTvz  (05'9£1'099) 00'0 0S'ZL1'8LT Sb'L62'9S {00°6b€"8€2) 000 (00'6bE'8EL) (S)heenes 191
1)8 2 44
ax3 souejeg sadueIquINOUI  swunupusdxy  saunupuedxa y2bpng sjudWpUDWY  junotuy ya6png uondpsag JUNO2DY  JPGUINN JUNCIDY
196png passqumousun Bwpueising 2jeQ-03-1edp 33ed-03-YWOoW papudwy 326png
30 %

[ooyd>s asodind jessusd IPT :pung

#T Jo 6 3bed €207 43oP0
WY 2516 £202/8/1T sawi) fojeq pund Aq [O Aq AlewIWRS S3JMIPUDBAXT JO NIDWINIS 291 :Aq pagessy

pioMes) BlA) RSN

uopeanp3 jo pileod AJurio) 2usduD

pauyag D91 :oweN edwa)



aT9TL

%91 (08°29S'TLET)  TT'IOE'YY 66'8SL'TED'T €T T6V'69T (00°€9°89%'E)  00'0 (00°c£9’99P°E) 019ZL 12901
BTG (8£°£90'pT) 000 29'9€6 000 (00°000'ST) 000 (00°000'sT) jusiludinby vopesdo jueld 022
%0018 (20°06T) 15969 LHETT 86°L€ (00°000'7) 000 (00°000°7) sebieyd N0 665
WITGET LIE9L'D 000 £9'€92°17 000 {00°000"S) 000 (00'000'S} sleuajely puy saliddng 80 66
%s8'6C  (§5°91T'TLT) 000 SYE8L (Y 9T L0L'TT {oocoo’0s1) 00°0 (00°000'09T) MBS puy SR YSE
%b1'8z  (86°88b°£S) 00'0 SIS £0'09%'8 (00°000°08) 000 {00"000°08) seq jugeN  bEb
%cg'97  (0£'815°888) 00°0 0E' I8V 9ZE SS'v16Z6 {00°000'ST2°T) 000 (00°000'STZ'T) foupeg STy
%7865 (68°908'SH) [1Taravaras T#°086'0E 0S'8LH'T {00°000'¥11) 000 (00°000+T1) saiddng [ewporsny 0T
%80°€ET 281926 00'Z91'EC 78°660"b1 00°92Z°1 (00°000°82) 000 00°000'82) SINAISS PAPRAUD) IBYI0  66E
%s61e  (LoTe'd) 000 £6'LLT'T 66'0EP {00000p) 000 (00°000') prRit  §SE
%0009  (00°000'7) 00°5€LT 00'59¢ 000 {00°000°5) 000 (0070005} 1dinb3-s301A19S Jjeday puy soueulule  9EE
%00'00T 2401 000 L7071 000 00°0 0600 000 uegeEZINGRIS PUGAH - Juswamdy L1
%9167  {0€'bLS'ED) 00°0 0£'£85'S YT LT (00°291'sT) 00°0 (00°zo1'61) aseopal sholdws 717
%00'0 (00°005'0) 000 00'0 000 (000057} 000 {00'005'0) uogesuadwio) wswhodwaun  0TC
%00°€ (00°058'%) 000 00°0ST 00051 (00°000's) 000 {00°000'S) oueinsu] [puag 80T
%o (pover'est) 00°0 978811 VAl T €4 (00°£00'80€) 00'0 (00"£00'80€) 2oueinsu] [eapew  L0T
%66's7  (¥1°€0L) 000 98°9%¢ 99t (00036} 000 {00°056) aoueansur 1 90T
werce  (LbTve'vl) 000 £5°698°£€ 6£'8¥L'6 (cozer'ern) 00°0 {00 zeT’2IT) Wwewamay aeys 40T
%862  (bS6LS'8P) 000 9b'088'¢€Z 96'/81'9 (oo oTH'Z72) 000 (000T%'20) Aqunoss jesos 10T
%Sseb  (ZE'S18°95) 000 89°'£28'ch 00°00¢’6 (00°€$9°00T) 00’0 (00°+9°00T} sabep g sauejes a0 681
wzeer  (95°852°048) 00'0 vb 045 0SE L¥'0L0'b6 (00°628°022'1) 00°0 (o0"628'022'1) jeuuossad jeipoisny 99T
019ZL
%s6'0¢  (1Z2'919'00%) 06'6Z6'T 6€929°2LT 19°697°9F (oo'TZZ’08S) 000 {oo'1ZT’08S) 0ISTL 1=30L
%00°0 {00°000°€) 00'0 00°0 0’0 (00°000°c) 00'0 {00"000°c) wswdinb3 uonenswupy 10/
%56'958 bL'PBL'E 00°0 v ¥8T'Y 6T LLTY (00°00%) 000 (00 00S) sobieyy 10 665
%000 (00005'1) 000 000 00°0 (00'005°T) 00°0 (00°005°T} sleusjel puy souddns Do 66F
%0059 (00°004) ¥8'589 9TH19 LL19 (000002} 000 (00°000'2) sonddns aoly0  SEF
%e9'1  (00°001'p) 90T ¥6559 00°0 (000009} 000 (00°000') salddng Buissaooid e 1T
%ETPT  (00°806°4T) 000 00765 000 (00°005°2€) 000 (00°005'2€) SB0IAJRS PRPRNUO) BN  66€
%00°0 (00°00S'y) 000 00’0 000 (00°00S'p) 00'0 (00°005'%) PrRl]  SSE
%000 {00°000'1) 000 00°0 000 (00'000'1) 000 (00°000'T) sdinb3-seoinag Jleday puy oueuuely  9EE
%000 (00°019'T) 000 00°0 coo ©o 0191} 000 (oo'019'1T) sdisIoqudW puy seng  07E
01SZL
ax3 aduejeg ssoueiquindug  saunjpusdxy  saamipuadxy 196png sjudWpUdWY  Junowy 396png uondPsag JUNO2JY  JSqUINN JUNODY
w6png passqunauaun  Gupumsing 9jeQg-c3-Jess  31ed-03-UCH p3pudwy R6png
0,
gPSh jooips asoding jesouss IPT . pung
1 4o 0T abed £20Z 12qoP0
WY 76:6 £Z0Z/8/TT swi /eq pun4 Aq [qO Aq Areunung saJnipuadx3 jo Juswdiels 291 1Aq pajess)

pIOMBID BlARY uesn uogeonps jo preog AJuUNoY U

pauyaq D97 :dweN ayejdwa)



%6EET  (£9'200°22) 000 £E°9TL°9 68'80€‘C (00°612'82) 000 (00'612°82) aeoipap wAoduy  Z1Z
%000 (00°00Z'8) 000 00°0 000 {00°002°€) 000 (00°002°c) uonesuadwo) Juswhoidwaun  OTZ
%F90T  (00°00£°9) 000 00082 00°0SL {00°050°4) 000 {00050°2) souensu] [uag 80T
%sT'0E  (06'156°69€) 000 OT'€ET/LST Lb'6eE’0 (00'580°126) 000 (00°580°1ZS) Joue.nsul |IpR 20T
%ge'oz  (25°180°T) 000 8b'L8E 95'¢L {00°69%'1) 000 (00°69v°1) duensur yn 902
wheer  (E6°0SE'8PT) 000 L0°0ST'Sh €€7£85'ST (00" 181'€6T) 000 (00" 184'€6T) wawandy es  H0T
%£0'€z  (b9'pL0'06) 00'0 9£°/66'9 86°050°6 {00"ze0'LTT) 000 (00zeo'z1T) Aunoas lepos 10T
%IeZE  {8£888'TLI) 00°0 19'2€5°28 94'99£'8T {00°T2b'ss2) 00'0 {00'1ZK'S52) sobep, g sauees B0 681
%01z {£0°€SS'STI'T) 00'0 £6°0b6’T0E £8°18£'0T1T (00'v6b"LTH'T) 00’0 (00v6b'£14'T) sionugsng  9bT
%59 (9€2E9'CD) 000 $9°990°8 ¥2'909'7T (00°10£°£0€) 000 (eo10£'£08) (Spweyssyy  ZHT

0TLZL
%LL0E  (8TTET'918) LY P98'P6 STPP6'£9T 0 SHY'T9 (o0 Tv0'6LT'T)  00°0 (00" TFO'6LT'T) 0Z9ZZ =230
%000 (00'0S2'b) 000 000 00°0 (00°052'p) 000 (00'05£°p) Jwewdinby scueumuel 2T/
%99°L (z€105'201) o' 09’z £C'858 ET'BES (00"000'17T1) 000 (00'000°TTT) 3By PRO 665
%ee'eL  (00°000°9) £€°£89'ST £9°918 48174 (00°005°22) 000 (00°005°27) sjeuel puy salddns a0 660
%99t (00°005°6) 85'8¢8°C 19T 98°989 (0000051} 000 (00°000°6T) speq Asauydel puy weldinbs 8T
%6E'8  (00°80E’S) ¥8°£0L'6 97°$86'81 0T'6/8'€ (00°000'vE} 00°0 (00°000°pE) SRS PEpRNUO) a0 66E
%000 (60°005) 00’0 000 00’0 (007008} 000 {00'009) prRY)  SSE
%9y (0€'V9T'62) 8L°0¥9'bT 6619 S9HTT (00°000°05) 000 {00°000°05) idinb3-seo1AI5G Jjedoy puy Soueusel  9EE
%eo'0s  (6€71£2°86) LE'TIVOP +2'908°09 L8°692°21 (00°000°002) 00°0 (00'000°002) Jping-se0Ai0S Jjeday puy aoueusiuel  GEE
%00'00T 000 vo'b10’e 9€°S86'T 88'019 (00°000°) 00°0 (00°000’s) RS Apune  6Z€
%EY'TL  {(00°00Y) £5'988 LPETT 862 (00°00%'1) 000 (00"00t'T) uoneonwwoy  Z0E
%eebr (S€°09E'S) 000 5922’1 96°61r (00°€80°2) 00'0 (00'€B0"Z) aleipaly Bhodug  Z2TT
%0070 {00"085) 000 00°0 000 (0008¢) 000 (co'08g) uopesuadwod wawhodwsun 01T
%00°0 {00059'1) 000 00°0 00°0 {00°059°T) 000 (00'059'T) dueinsul ewsg 807
%eb'6T  (6ZLLT'ED) 000 12712506 058989 {00°669'€0T) 000 (00°669°€0T) oueinsuy Dipal  Z0T
%000¢  {00ZIT) 00°0 00'8h 09'6 (00"091) 000 (00"091) soueinsul 31 90Z
%eZ'ST  {ZGLEV'LE) 00°0 '0E92T 79451’ (00°890°05) 000 (00°890°05) juswaimRy 3388 07
%90'7Z  (01°'610°02) 000 06'69¢’L L9°S6L'T (00°s8E’€E) 600 (00°58£"€€) Aumas jewos 10T
%S0'TT  (02°908°HE) 000 08'9T6'T6 02'6£6'TT (00'sz£'9¢p) 000 (00°'sz2'9¢ck) JoUUSIad Soueuaquiey /9T
%8'0€  (09'758'S2) 000 Ok ¥6b'11 09°€48'C (00°9b€'L£) 00'0 (00'obe’2E) jpuvosiad jeousp 29T
%LL0e  (91°188'bh) 000 pEETS’sT 9b'ESE'y {00's6£'v9) 00'0 (00°s6£'9) lopaagfiesiuadng  SOT

0T79ZL

ax3 souejeqg suURIqUINOUT  suNpuadx3  ssampusdxg 3e6png SUIWPUSWY  Junowy JB6png uondpsag JUNOdJIY  JBqINY JUNODIDY
whpngd pasequinouaun Guipueysyng 9jeg-03-1Res 33eg-0}-YIUOW popuawy bpng
3O %
loolps ssoding |esoudn TPT :pung

$1 Jo 11 obed £20T 1390P0
WY 75:6 £20Z/8/11 sl fajeq Pung Aq [qO Aq Alewiung saanypuadxy Jo Juswajels 917 :Aq pajeaud

paoymes) ejde)

11950

uoREJNP3 J0 pleog AJunod) UL

pouyaq D97 :aweN Aejdwiay



%E6'TE  {06°TOE'SHY) 00°0 (1194 Yardod Z1'9Z2'¥01 (00°5T0’8H6) (00°09+'617) {o0's55'824) sabem g seueles Joupo 681
%8941 (90°86£'ZT) 000 ¥6'102°2 TT'S6E {00°000'5T) {00°000'sT) 000 [PuUUOSI3d [EoUBp 79T
00EEL
%S50°0z {(0T'88r’Es) 00'0 08" 'ET L8899 {00'1£6'91T) [1X) (00°TE6'9TT) 0I8TL el
%ShLT (ZEP98) 00°0 89281 LL6F {00'2+0'T) 00°0 (00¢#0'1) ueopa LAoduy  CTZ
%000 (005} 00°0 000 00°0 {0052} 000 (00'ss) uogesuaduro) wawhodwaun  0TZ
%000 (00°00¢) 00 000 00'0 (00"00¢) 000 (00°00¢) souesnsuj @usg 80T
%600 (26°£¥9°52) 000 80°05¥9 ¥Z'605'T (00860°2€) 000 (00°860°Z€) uesnsu] [P L0T
%8> {00°L1) 00 00°¢t 4 (00°627) 000 (00'62) sueINSuI 37 907
%62z (26'T61°S) 00'0 80°680'1 St (00°7899) 000 (00°'T89"9) uswasy a1ms 0T
% LT (88°969'E) 000 t4gc:7i S8TIZ (008st'v) 000 (00°824'%) Aunxes lepos  T0Z
%2107 (91°669'S) 000 ¥8'£25T 9T'85Z'y (oogzz’zs) 000 (oo cze’zs) sabepm W sdeles Bp0 68T
0T8TL
%68z (06'P60'EELT)  TLOVE'90T 8€'SHS'DS6 PT'SEQTTE (00'186'682’E) 00’0 (00°'T86'682°€) 0TLTL [eI0L
%P9 (WP EVYE) 000 95'955'S 000 (00°000°6) 000 (00°000'6) Juawdinbg uopeuodsued| 677
%8L'89  (zr0o19'sT) 00°08b"L 88'606°9¢ 11°9€9°T (00°000°05) 000 (00°000°05) ssbieyd DO 665
%S0 (00°06H0T) 2T'6E9°9 8709 000 (0000521} 00°0 (00°00s°21) sjeusIel puy seyddns BIO  66F
%ETTS  (b'BPI'SL) CeLT'se $8'958°88 ST'S09°vE (00'6££'66T) 000 (00'622'66T) syed spIRA  ESP
%00°00T  00°0 8Z'TH6'TH TLLS0'T 000 (00°000°st) 000 (00°000'SH) ssqnppuy sanl  (OSb
%688 (CO0DOTT) $6'889°C 90'TIE Y 0'8EL (00"000'81) 00°0 (0000081} auewugny €%
%ss'67  (00°6€8°2ZS) 000 007191 65°LYE'S (00°000's£) 000 (00°000'5£) aujosen  Seb
%6EES  (bLESST) bS'ob8'T TL°060°T ST'95p (00°005°s) 000 (00°005°S) so)ddng afeiles  $Zb
%z0'LT  (06'982°965) 00'0 0T'ETL18 19°VST'Sh (00°000'08v) 000 (00°c00'08) prdpsIa b
%0009  (00'002) 00°00€ 000 000 (00°008) 000 (00"00S) SSDIAIDS papRIU0) JIIR0  G6E
%0S'ST  (18°€0L'S) 000 6T°960°T L6'E92 (00'05£°9) 000 (00"05£9) preyl GGE
%00°0 (00°00£) 000 000 00'0 (00°00€) 20’0 (00"00¢) sieyuay  TSE
%eb1s  {00Zv0'L) 000 00'85b°£ 00°0SL'T (00°00S¥T) 000 (00°00S°v1) SIJAI3S |Quaq Puy (EJPIN  OFE
%0005 (00°000°F) 1£868' 69'10T 000 (0000078} 000 {00°000'8) HOIIA-SNAIRS Jieday puy oueuuely  8EE
%00°00T 000 SObEP'E §6°595°T T5°0gh (00°000's) 00°0 (00°000’s) aomas Apune 62€
%Z1'86  (26'9h) 90°6€8'T 20619 06°082 (60°005°2) 000 (00°005°D) vonenwwe)  £0€
%00°00T 0€£°S 000 0g's [+[389 000 00°0 [1e1) UOREeZIIGERS PUGAH - JuawInay LI
0TLZL
axy soueeg sIouRIquIndLy  saanyipuadxy  saamypuddxy 1°bpng SJUSWpURWY  Junowy Jafipng uondiasaqg JUNCIJY  JIGUINYN JUNOCIOY
906pna pasequmduoun GuipuelsiIng  23eQ-03-JRSA  SIRA-03-LIUOW papuswyY ybpng
JO %

looyas asoding [erauaD I :pund

1 Jo g1 abey €202 190120

WY Z5:6 £20Z/8/1%
plogmeld eiAey

LWy /aeg
198N

pund Aq [qo Aq Aewwuins sainlipusdxy jo JuWNEIS
UORLINPT JO pieog AJUNno) SUIIIY

91 1Aq pajeas)
psuyaq D97 :PweN ejdwal



%88 {£27¢55'Y) 0¢0 [ xard. 4 59261 (00°000°s} 000 (00°000'S) SI9YoRa} yMASGNG peyniad)  S6T
%6967  (8e7LES°LB) 000 29°294'12 06'64S'8 (00°000°601) 00'0 (00°0006'60T) s|Esissy jeuoneonpy  £91
%5991 (9°€9.°269) 00’0 9E"98E'6ET 81'€59°69 (00°051°2€8) 00°001'8 (00°05Z'sv8) siayesl 911
%ST'EE  (2S'eL8'vT) 000 BP'9LE'L [A% 23! (00r0sz'T2) 000 {00'0s2'zn) Jopaligfiosiuadns 50T
00vEL
%TL LT (E8°604'8ST'T) v PTE'ST €2'88L'vTY 8S"9EL LT (00'cZ5°209°t) 000 {00°€z5T09°T) 00£EL |230L
%0c9e  (8500£'2E) 08'681°9 9'612'2T bT'RIE'E (00012'0S) (00°005°¥%) (0o'otz'0E} sabieyd B0 665
%8'T9  (b2°0019) 00°0 9/°668'6 8879 (00°000°91) {o0054) (00°05¢’sT) Juslidojsraq YEIS/AIIAIRS-UT TS
%ES'HZ  (SBTEG'VE) ST'HISL 00°cp8'E P1'9€8°T 000629k} (00°068') {0000V TH) sie1alel puy salddng B0 66
%Ib'sy  (68'94£'ST) £8'9b'Y 82'9/9'8 £9'20£’9 (00°006°82) (00°005°S) {00"00v'€T) salddng jeuononnsuy 624
%00°00T 000 99°€L1'T pE'9Z8 0Z'6¥T (00000'7) (00'000'2) 000 ssyddng pooy b
%b0'6c  (167709°2T) 00'0 6Z'120'8 0L'%Lb'y (0z°c£9°02) (00°000°T) (0z'€r9'sT) Prell  SS€
%0070 (00'000'02) 000 00'0 000 (00°000°02) 00°0 (00'000°02) sueynsuod  80€
%00°0 (00"00p) 00'0 00°0 00°0 (00"001) {0000t} 000 uonesunukuoy  Z0E
%00°00T 85°SE 00’0 89°5E 1091 00°0 000 Q00 UORRZIIQRIS PHGAH - JuawRiney  ZLTZ
%¢£8°62  (06°SST°0T) 000 1818y V09T Lesr'pt) (00°'s¥¥'y) (1£'82001) aseoipay soAoidwa  ZTC
%00°0 (00°00S) 00°0 000 00°0 (00°00S} (00°005) 00'0 uopesuadwo) Juswhoidwaun  01Z
%00'00I  00°00€ 0070 00°00€ 00°C 00°0 000 000 souesnsul [Busa 807
%6401 (8L88T'pL20) 000 LTHBT'EE TESSTTT (s0'vbb'20£) 88'ZL'067 (£6°981'865}) souelnsu] [Py L0T
%00°00T 95°C 00'0 957 $5°0 00°0 00'0 000 oouesnsur 9y 90T
%6147  (25°£59'€S) 00°0 #5°5€0°0C ST'160°8 (90°€69'€s) (88'116'9) (81°18£°99) wowemay aels 0T
%09'TE  {bE'196'6E) 00°0 979’81 98°SHT'9 (86'CTH'8S) (00°98¢'sT) (86°LE0'EH) Aunoas jepos 10T
00EEL
ax3y aoueeg saduelquniul  sainjpuadxg  saumipuadxy 1°6png Sjusuwpuswy junowy 3abpng uondipseq WNOXDY  SIqUINN JUNCDY
38bpng passqunousun Guipuesing Sjeg-03-1ed)  Ieq-03-YJuonW papuawy J9b6png
30 %

jo0Yy>s asoding JeJausn IvT : pund

1 40 £1 3bed £707 12qOP0
WY ZS:6 £20Z/8/11 pwyL/aeq pund Aq [0 Aq Alewwns S3JN)Ipuadx3 JO JUIWSIEIS 991 1Aq pajeas)

piojmen) ejhey Hesn

uonednp3 Jo pieog AJuno) auaaum

pauya@ Do ewey ajejdwa)



%oE¥Z (TS0E8’€08'9b) 09°0EF'YIS 89°SOD'09Y'YT ST OPEDIT'S (00°£92'8Z8'39) 00'0 {00"292'828°19) g ipuny Joj [0l
%0z {ZS0ER’E08’OY) 09°0EP'YIS 88°S00°09t'vT ET°OVE'OTT’S (00°297’828'19) 00’0 (00°£9z'928°19) (LT
%0Ebz (ZS0E8'E08'oY) 09°0EV'¥9S 88°S00°09%'PT ETOVEIIT'S (00°£97'828°19) o000 (00°£92878°19) leoL
‘S80°T  SZT'86Z6Y 00°0 8T86T'PS o0°0 {00'000°S) 000 (00"000°s) 00T9L |@I0L
%00°00T  LO0'ZES'LE 00°0 L0'ees’se 000 000 000 000 wswdinb3 30 064
%0000T  TT'99L°9T 00°0 TC°99L'9T 000 000 000 000 suawwaaoidwy buiping /07
%00'0 (00°000°s) 000 000 000 {00°000°S) 000 (00°000°S) spaupry  H0E

00T9L
%ST8T (€8°89E’€PZ'T)  66°6SE STPIP'SLT S8 ETH'STT (00'EPT'6TS'T)  00'0 {00'Ev1’61S'T) OOYEL 190L
%00'0¢  {1T€09'D) 66'65¢ 66°06Z 66"062 (6T°H52'E) (6T'HS7'E) 000 sa1ddns [euorpnasul 64
%OT'bT  (99°850SHT) 000 ST'S08°€Z S0°'SE6'L (18'98'891) (18°586'9) {00'88°191) sapuaby Jiqngd JaWRo M spenuo)y  BTE
%Ee'Le (8o'w8) 000 76'L2¢ 96'€91 (000021} 000 {00"002'1) UOREZIIEIS PUGAH - JWawRIRSY  LTT
%z5'9T (8570 00’0 W6TET 65°E0T'T (00°001 1) 00°00T (00°002'v1) aueapapy sohodwy  Z1T
%00°00T  00°0 000 00°0 000 00°0 00°0v8 (00"0b8) uonesuadwon wawAoidwaun  QTZ
%00°0 (o000b'c) 00'0 000 000 (00'005'¢) 00°0 (00 00p) aoueunsyf jeuag 807
%89°LZ  {90'TH0'8HT) 00’0 $6'859'95 6L°0EL'HT (00°002'02) 000 (00°002'40T) soueJnsuf [ipeW  Z0C
%9tz {29'610) 000 81°'s0T 8E'ST (00'sze) 000 (00°s2€) souesmsu Y1 907
%08 Pl (Z8'6b2°20) c0'0 8b'055'CT £1°676's (00°008'v8) 00004 (00°005"58) wawauey s H0Z
%891 {6L°6E1°05) 00°0 12'096'6 9L 8TL'Y (00°007°09) 00°005 (00°009'69) Anag jepos 10T
%9yl (08'18Ct) 00'0 0T'8TL S1°90¢ (00'000's) 000 (00°000°s} SO AIMNSANS pSyed-uoN 86T
00vEL
g souejeg seueIqUNDU]  saimypuadx3  saJnypusdxl wbpng SUBWPUSWY  junowy Ja6png uondinssg JUNOY  LAqUINN JUNOIDY
196png pasoqunousup  Bugpuesing BleQ-03-1ESA  BIRQ-0)-YIUOW papuaWwy yabpng
%
= jooyds asoding jelauan TPT :pund
+T1 40 pT Sbed €£T0T 9000
WV 75:6 £202/8/11 owy /ajea punyj Aq [O Aq Aewing $3Injpuddxy Jo Juswanels 291 tAq pageasy
piojmel) BiARY 19SS uoneanpg jo pieog AJuno) auRIYH pauljaq 991 Pwep 3jejdua]



spsfaid [e1spad [00URS

TPT sjel pung

00°0
(6+"1Z8°09S'E2) saduefeg pungj pue ‘s30UnosaY Jo SMOLUT pessayed ‘sSnyger [molL
(69°852°'799s) seunby  |eoL
(SE'£50°005°T) paubisseuny 0006€
0L'6¥6'HZ6 uogEdNP3 104 PAPILGSSY SSSPE
(¥£°250°552°T) 483, Jolld - SSuesquiIrouy 0zZThE
(0£"£652€8°E) 189N JUALINY - SDURIUINOUT OLTHE
(08°T90'869°LT) sopiigen el
(¥R 2EL'£E0'E) (joQuoD) sonuaasy 00582
{96'8TE9bR"pT) {1onuoD) suoneudoddy 00182
000 POy T6€TC
08101 s3n( uoRepossy T6E1Z
000 AYUnusy JeA ¥BETZ
(00'09) SUOIPNERQ UOIUN PPRLD 08ETT
000 Aunqesxa a1gesn 0LETZ
00°0 Jleunsnty 99ETZ
000 Junoooy sbuies WesH SSETZ
00'¢ SSRUI] (©20L) BjgesN $9ETC
00'¢ WOT/AN 3iGesn Z9€12
00°0T 307 [oA 3igens 19€12
00°0 SIIADT pUY SUBLIYSILIED 09€12Z
00052 9 SIBULIRY 399SIUUL SGETT
veLTY J30Ue 2\gesn £SETT
00°0 SUT 3y LR S0RI0H Faty 14
(£8°65%) [euaq uoweduio) 1SE1L
(z5'£02) syauag dwed 0SETT
000 WapDY 2Kqesn WETT
05'2€S J5¥L - buipuads xay - 2leq YIRS SKETZ
8569 SUL SINPE3 [euoiIeN pHETE
(1922) A gesn WELZ
(e1°¢60°01) Su[ ssLpes] 03 49 etz
(£9'98) 1|95 PHAAH Juawaunay ZEET2
000 159 32219 NT0b £33 ¢4
(£6°959) SUONNQLIUOD) UBLRBINRY DEETZ
00'0 uomNpaq 3.eaipaly 3akoidwy SZ€TZ
000 xel Aunag |2pos (1743 ¥4
000 piedun puy PRYYIM Xe | 3wo3u] (1) £ 74
(£0°108°¢) algeied SURoDY 00112
64" 1T9'095°ET SIUNOSIY JO SMOIND PALUDJIQ PUE SIISSY 2301
GY IT809S'ET KPSy (9oL
1€°09b'€St Ju3 s1) Jollq Jog anissay o) phD da 0091
17°881°878°E (10£uoD) Jea) WaLN - SIMIpURdX3 00SbT
0€'265°2€8°E (toquoD) saauRIGUINCUT parepInbiir 0021
96°81E€'9H8'pT SINUIAY PAJRUINIST 00TH1
SEHOE SUBLLLLIBADS) JSQ Wial4 3Ng OELTT
SL°08E'TIS SVPSNUL Yum ysed ObITT
(6£'8217) sueg uT ysed oSIIT
ouejeg buipuz UORALDEI(Q JWNOITY JIQUINNIUBOIDY
spRltug RSP 100LPS THPT :pungd
} 4o | oBed £20Z 139990
WY 95:6 £202/8/1T PuwL/®ed PIZURURUNS 3BSYS dURjRG pazuewiwng Ag pageasd
plojmes) eiey LISy uopEINp3 jo pieog Auno susvig 193YS Fdueeg pauyaq D97 PweN Jejdway



TV'ESO'EEE’T

(TE9PETLS'T)  %9P0T TLTI8S'808'TT (¥8'LEL'LE0E) 96°8TE 9V 'PT ¥S'S9T'ET6'TT TPT ipung to04 [er0L
TY'ESO'EE6’T

(TE'9PE’'TLS'T) %IV 0T T1'185'808'TT (r82€L'LE0E) 96°STE'9P8'PT ¥S'S9T'ETE'TT =01
000

000 %00°0 LSTHE'ILT 000 LSTHEILT LS'TVE'ILT a3e15 ybnodyt |esspad Jawio 065LP we
000

00°0 %00°0 LL VYT 000 LLvob'ee LYy ULIH DY Bl BNJSIY UBIIBUWY bObLY 0oL
000

000 %000 9L'560°2T 000 9£°560°ZT 9£°560°CT UBID Y Ue|d SNJSAY UEILBWY oy 106
000

(€0°TST9ST'T) %IZ'61 TU61T'92T'8 (65°15€'2e6 T} 0£'0£%'850°01 0/°044'850'01 ueID DY UB|ld 3NISDY ULIBWY 10bLp ££6
00°0

(95v66'5L) %208k LP6LE'SHT (z0'00£'vET) 6v°6£9'6/Z 6+'6£9°6LC uawdopaaq Joid Somoyuasi3 6814 00T
000

00'0 %0070 00°000°€TZ 0070 00°000°€1Z 00'000°€TZ uoRedNp3 |einy 8rTLb 008
000

(1£°6£0'01) %E6'6¢ 68°ESY'PE (TT°91Lp1) 00°0L1°6% 00'0£1'6b SjueID J00YISAId uoneonp [endds SbILb 016
00'0

{6€°620'p81) %867C T8'8r5'89€'T (8T°201'80V) 00'95692£'T 00956'9££L'T 0] slueln - uonednpy (epads 32024 006
TES0'EL6'T

(ev 210'6€T) %TSHT ST'£50°06S'T (10'66£'915) 9T'T5¥ 9012 bL86E'ELT onp3 (2007 0L SUesS T 3L iy 017
000

(0Tveo'e) %L6'EZ 85°€LT1'00T (£6'€951¢) 19°20L°TET 18°L0L'TET 0] SjueI) diseq - NP3 |BUOREDOA 1€TLY 008
00°0

00'0 %00°001 000 000 00°0 000 supas) ainypuadxg 08T 001

BnuUBADY JUBLIND paz|(esy pazijeasun pozijeay AlA pojewns] |;o)l SsjuBWpUBWY uonduosag uompuURy pund-gng

% /353 lewibuo
spafold jeIapad Poyds THT 1 pund
7 Jo 7 2bed €202 $3q020 pazieWWNG
WY #0:01 £20Z/8/TT pwil /3jeq POZIIEWIUNG SANUIADY JO JUIWIBJE]S USWINEIS NUIADY 1Aq pajess)

plojme.D ejiey Hasn

uonesnp3 Jo pleog AJUno) aulaIH

pauyaq 397 :alueN Aedwa)



%68'61  (£9'8TC'LS} 000 EETITHT TEE8Y'S 0o 1’12} 000 (00" 1HH'1L) oWy e H0T
%65¢1  (65°2€6'6h) 000 TH'859°0T 86'PZI'y (0016509} 000 (00'165°09) Aunoss jepos  TOZ
%80't (0b°S95°11) 00'0 01'Z6v 0197z (057¢5021) 00°0 (05°£50'2%) SIaypes) aIMisang payniad-uoN 861
%10V (Sport's) 000 i 14 0c"9bt (06°59%°S) 000 (06°S9%°S) SiLPRI| ANNNSANS pouy  G6T
%000 {00°009'2) 000 000 000 (00°009'7) 00°0 (00'009'D) sabepm, g saueles B0 681
%08'8T  (08'96€'6L) 000 02'55p'8T 9¢'THT'B (00°z58'26) 00’0 (poz58°'L6) 1sibojoyred Yads T/
%95'8c  (£9'€9L'161) 000 LE19g£°0TT 78'€SS'TY (00°001°2Z15) 000 (00-001°ZIE) sjuessissy jevoneonpl €971
wlo'sT  (2£'82L'T20) 000 89°0PE'6€ ¥E'0£9°6T (00'690°292) 00’0 {00°690'792) s;pyea) 91T
weiboiq uogeonpg |edads  OOZTL
%zT'er (reTEV'PIZ'Y)  0§L9L'8TT 60°G0T'9ST'T 19°509°0¥Z (ev'soL’68t’s) (zvesg'9tL’t)  (10°£18°TLL'E) ureibold uopPNpsuT enbay 0OTTZ [e30L
%9b"9 (00°6££4'8b2'T) 10°£8569 66°£9'91 66°LLT'ET {00°000°5£€°T) (00'000°s8) (00°000°052'T) wawdinbg uononuysu] senbay 72
%ZETYT  01°69¢£'TZ 000 01°698'TL 000 (00°005°05) 00'0 {00°005°05) speudel puy saiddns RRO 660
%6178 (96'S9'69) orzoT b9 TEY0ZE T5'6SE {00°000°06€) {00'000°06T) (00°000°002) alemyos TLb
%868y  (65'985'8SE) 60°Z80'6Y b'9L1S6C SY8ET LY (z15b8'70L) (2t'8€£'89) (0£°905'¥€9) saljddng jeuomonnsul - 6Z¢
%000 (pL8r6'1E) 000 000 000 (rL'8r6°1€) 000 (b2'8b6'15) SSOIAISS pAenUO) PO 66E
%000 (00°000'%) 00°0 00'0 00'0 (00000p) (00°000'y) 00°0 PAURIOI-UON - SIYDL QNS Jod spu)  OZE
%00°0 (00000'9) 00’0 000 €00 (00°0009) (00-000'9) 000 POYIHRY - SISYPRIL NS Jog P 69E
%00°00T 000 000 80°0 00°0 000 000 00°0 UOREZNIGRIS PUGAH - WawaInsy /1T
%6’ T (66'99ST€E) 00'0 +6°€87'p 8v°£98'T (£6°058°5€} (00°'000'sT) (£6'058'02} ueoipap LAodws  TTZ
%ey'ez  (00°00S'h) 000 00°00£"1 000 (co00Z’9) (00002'1) (00°005"¢) uonesuadwo) JuawAodusun  0TZ
%000 (00°009's) 000 00’0 000 (00009's) (00°009'2) (00°000°s) soueInsul {2usQ 807
%e6'vz  (1£/80'562) 000 69'b00'86 $0'910°SZ (00"Z60'E6E) (c0°000's61) (00Z60°86T) uesnsu] eoipaly  L0Z
%E6'EE  (9€7E9¢€) 000 $9°981 60°vb (00°0sS) (00"052) (0000£) uesnsur N 90T
%el 07 {(660L6'VOT) 00°0 64°L06761 19°29L'8 (81°9£8°¥8T) (00°000'¢8) (81°8£8'70T) wewamay NeIs 40T
wUTE  (2he81'8et) 000 0T°€11'97 69'¥9C'L (Z5'00€'¥b1) (00°000'79) (z5°00£'Z8) Aunoas epes 10T
%00°0 {¥6'998°bT) 000 00’0 000 (b6°998b1) 000 (b6'998'4T) sIaipea) ayuasqns paymad  S6T
%EL'S (T+°622'6£9) 000 65'CHETH £1°909°22 (00°€£0°122) 000 (00'£20'124) sofiep g saueles oo 68T
%85'z¢  (S5°S8B'GEE) 00'0 SHPIT'66 (1'297'9¢ (00°0006ED) (00°000'65) (00°000°08€) sueysissy jeuogeanpy €91
%EL9T  (8Z'499°258) 000 TLSEE'TLT 010082 (00'000°pZ0'T) (00°000556) (00°000'62) seyeat  9TT
welboid uopongsuy Jenhdy  00TTL
ax3 aouejeq seouesqundul  saamipuadxy  seampupuadq 16png SjusipuawWY junowy abpng uondsaq JUNOIY  JqUINY JUNCIDY
@6png passqundusufn  BupueIIND ajeg-0j-iea) )eq-03-yjuonW papuswy wbpng
JO %

s1fouy |es3pag jooyds YT i pund

S 4o 1 obeq £707 129010
Wv 80:0F £Z0Z/8/1T Pwi) /areq pung Aq [qO AQ Alewwng SINJIPUDIAXT JO JUUNEIS 291 :Aq pajeas)
piojmer) ejiey HE ) uonednp3 JO paroyg AJuno) 3UID paUYRQ DO Pwep ejdwa)



%eTee  (8L°0LE'vb) 000 5°62T'T BE'TES'S (00°00599) 000 (00°005'99) sopangfiosmisdng  SOT
wesboud ucionnsur senbay  0TZZL
%9 Tz  {(9T°9¥T'THY) 86'8HY'TT 9€°9TP'8T ¥97ILUL’L (05°1T0Z9T) (00°S99'tST) (05'9s€'LT) Hoddng Juspms PO 0ETTL 130l
%Py (0bE£58) 000 09'92b'9 £b°6¢E¢E (00'000°01) 0070 (00 0000T) JuswdopPasq yeis/omes-ur  bTS
%Z6'sk  (0T'ETZOT) 86'8Fb'TT 8L2E'T 0T'¥6€ (00°000°0€) (00°000'62) {o0"000°T) sjeusiely puy saliddns BIRO 664
%00°0 (00"00001) 000 00'0 000 {00"000'0T) 000 {00"000'01) [ETCIT R
%oT'TT (60" IbE'E} 00'0 15°891 L0778 (00015'T) {0005¢'T) (00'091) aseoipad JoAodw  ¢1Z
%00'0 (007001) 00'0 00'0 . 000 (00"001) (o0"001) 000 uonesuadwo) JuawAodwaun  OTZ
%000 {00°0ST) 000 000 0070 (00°0ST} (00°0sT) 000 ouesnsu] [usg 80T
%LTTE (00°0TT'VT) 000 00°06€°9 0S°£65'T (00°005°02) (00"005°02) 000 oueinsu[ [expey 20T
%o0'ze  (0Z01) 00'0 og'h firad ! (00°sT) {00'sT) 00°0 souelnsuI 1 907
%6v 0T (22°0ST°L) 00 8L'6k8 bLZ2ZE (00007'8) (00°006'2) (00°000) wowuny A|s 0T
%I8'TT  (6p'6LE'S) 000 1502 01592 (00°00T'9) (00°059's) {00°05%) Aunasg jepos  TOC
%b6'L (05-98v'se) 00°0 00°090°€ 00°0 (05958} {00°000'€€E) (0s°9ps’s) sabem g ssueles BLRO 68T
%991 (99'12S'Lh) 000 Y86 LUGEL'Y (00°000°25) (00°000°£5) 000 PuUosIad ouepiny  £TT
Hoddns juapms 19410  OETTL
%zL0r  (66'SES'LIT) 9T 9TH'9E 9Z'6ES b Z0"06S'E (15°T6£'86T) 000 (1s"16£'36T) weiboid UOREINPT [BUOCREIOA  OOETL (=301
%867 (90°0££'9%) 00°0SH'bT 86°€LV'T 86°ELYT woys9'el) 000 b0ps9’es) ewdinb3 uononisul [euoRedor  0LL
%96'26  (E8°/5L98) 68'0BE'ST 8T'SYE'6T ¥0'91T'T {00'v8b'16} 000 (00'+85'16) sieusjel puy saliddng 21p0  66¢
%g0'/8  (01'8bE'D) ££'S85"9 00'02L'® 000 (Lb'Es9'ee) 00°0 (£'€59°€E) saljddng jeuopongsul - 62
welbold uoReEdNp3 [EUOREIOA  QDETL
YL6VZ (LE°E68°L66) ELEIET TLTBY’6TE 9L°6SZ'6T1 (19°8¢6°62E'T) 000 (19°8€6'6Z€'T) weifoud uopeonpy ePads  0OZTL IMWOL
%OT'SET  69'PLE'T 000 6b'6E1°6 Y63t (08+929) 000 (08'v9£'9) Juswdinb3 uogeanpy epads  STL
%8z'ty  (00°000'T) 10°€02 000 000 (10°e02'T) 00°0 (1o'€02’1) sjeuajely puy salddns ;10 66
%1625  (88'907°1) ZL099°T 00°0 000 (09°298°7) 00°0 {09'798'7) sayddng jeuomongsur 67
%000 (o0v0s2) 00°0 000 000 (00°052) 060 {00°052) SIUAIRG PADENUOD IR0 66E
%00'00T  00°0 000 00°0S9'E1 000 (00"0S9’€T)} 000 (00°059'€T) Jdinb3-sadiaseg Jjeday puy soueuduien  GEE
%68'6 (sze1Z'081) 00'0 SL°08L'6T §5'996°L1 {00°000'007) 000 {00'000°002) sapuaby aleaud yam spenuoy  2TE
%L LY (TE'TLETD) 000 69°Z76b'C 047496 (00'90°pT) 0070 (004901} uexpaly sdhojdwy 2T
%207y (80°859) 00°0 26'9Lb 000 (0o'ssT'T) 00°0 (00°SET'T) uopesusdwo) wawAodwaun  OTC
%Eb'ST  (00°0TT'H) 000 00°0SZ 00°00€ (007098°r) 000 (00'098') ueinsuf jEusg 807
%85°0€  (££°£6¥'081) 000 £2'905°6L 65°+88'LT (00°000°092) 000 (00'000'092) aduensuy [@ipaw 0T
%8598 (56°962) 000 SO°TLT LbE (00°89%) 000 (0o-89v) auesnsur 3y 907
wesbiold uoneonpy [eweds 00ZTL
ax3y aouejeg sosuRIqunOuy  saunjpuadxy  saungipuadxy 196png SJUBWpURWY jJunowy Jobpng uondpsaqg JUNOIIY  JRQUINN JUNOIDY
P6png pasaqunousun  BujpuessIng  91eQ-03-1e3)  eg-03-YIUOW papuswy 3°6png
30 %

spofold [e1apag |ooyds ZPT :pund

S Jo 7 abed £207 199010
WY 80:0T £20Z/8/11 Puny fayeq pun4 Aq [q0 AQ AJewWUING SIINNPUIAXT JO JUILANEIS 951 :Aq pajess)

psoymen elAe)

Hosn

uoeInpg Jo pieog AQuUno) UJIH

psuysq@ DO PweN ejdwal



%00°0 (00-008) 000 00°0 000 {00°00S) 000 {00°005) seusgely puy sayddng RO 66F
%00'0 (00°0S2) 00’0 000 000 (00'052) 000 {00052) SONRG paenuo) BYRD  66€
%00°0 (00 000°8) 000 000 00'0 (00°000'8) 000 {00°000'8) presl  SSE
%00°0 (00°05) 000 00'0 00°0 {00°08) 000 (00705} sabsey) jsod  SVE
%000 (00'0%) 000 000 00°0 (00°08) 000 {o005) 1dinb3-seniates Jleday puy oueusuel  9€E
%e9'sz  (00°STY'br) 000 00°62£°ST 00°SLY'S (00'000°09) 000 (60000°09) sauaby eALd M senuod  ZTE
%OSET  (60°2£9'p) 00'0 16'62L 89'60€ (00 20%'s) 000 {00°20t'S) aueipa PAodwz  €TIT
%000 (00281} 000 Q0’0 00°0 (00°281) 000 (00°¢81) vogesuadwo) wswihojdwsun - 0TZ
%60'TE  (00'599) 000 00°00€ 00051 {00'596) 00°0 (00°596) souelnsu] |musq  80¢
%587¢  (88°ELL'ES) 000 T1°926°ST S€686°C (00°00£°69) 00'0 (00°002'69) suensu] [eped £0C
%vegr  (9£'£9) 000 $9°9 0e'9 {00'v6) 000 {(00°v6) ddueansu; yn  90¢
%b6'2T  (81°€95'87) 000 W'y 6T TEL'T {00°2082¢) 000 (00°£08'2¢) juswaigay As K0T
%O0S'El  (Z1°686'6T) 000 89°0Z1°E 60HZE'T {00011’} 000 (ooor1'ed) Aunasg |epos  10Z
%0€¢T  (06°bLb'99) 000 OT'TOG'EY STZI0'S {00"92€0R) 000 (00"9£€°08) sabep g saueies B0 68T
wocez  (09°0€L'¢T) 00°0 OrPEb 1T 09°€£8'T {00's¢e'eE) 00°0 {00°'szz'se) (Sumanes 191
%5241 (90°SET'EET) 0o'0 6 6L LT L6'vL8'ET (00°s88'09T) 000 (00°s88°091) [puuostad leapaly  TET
wesboid uoneanpy [epads  0TTTL
%Ly’  {(0v'688°ESE) 90790'sS £0°0Z0°212 TLLLT'E0T {6v°1£6°529) (00°000°6¢} (6v'1L679LS) weiboid uopongsur seinbay 01ZZL 1MoL
%00°0 (00'000°T) 000 00'0 000 (00°000°T) 000 {00°000'T) juswdinba AP0 064
%0b'9 (00°001'€2) 00'¢ 00'009'1 00'008T {00'000°52) (00°000'%2) {00°000'T) sebiey) opQ 665
%es'08  (€1°S07'9T) L1°0S0°ZY 0£°986'b2 25'0L0°TT {00'zpe’es) (00'000'52) {00°ZHT'8S) Juawdoppnag yYeas/aoiames-ul YIS
%07’V (6h'652'8) 68'TTO0ET 118492 20 {6¥'6£b'bT) 00'0 (6v'654'pT) S{euNeN puy saIddns B0 661
%9671 (S0°shb'0T) 000 6555’1 9T'THT {00"000°21) 000 {00"000'Z1) pAlL  SSE
%652'8¢  (06°89£€) 00°0 0T IET'C 99801 {00°005°S) 000 (00°005's) asenipap hoidwa  ZTC
%000 {00°062) 000 00'0 000 {00"062) 00'0 {00°062) uonesuadwio) juswioidwsun 01T
%00'0 (007009} 00’0 000 000 (00°009) 000 (60°009) 9oueinsu [EIUeq 80T
%86'0€  (E€°266'9€) 000 £9°209°91 88865 (00'009°€S) 000 (00°009'e%) aouesnsu] jedlpaid 0T
%2e'se  (bEZE) 00°0 99'/T (184 {00°05) 00'0 (00°0%) soueinsur 3y 90T
%ee'ze  (01°657°02) 00°0 06°0b6'6 Ob961'S (00°002"0€) 00°0 {00"00Z°0) uewauny ms  HOT
%56 (bSTeo’er) 000 9’ £25'8 12°00S'y (oo0ss'12) 00'0 {00°055°12) Aunass [ewos  T0Z
%b0'cr  (£0°TH6'PST) 000 £6'850°L11 2£'9967L9 (00°000'2£2) 000 (00°000'2£D) sabem g sauees saipg 687
%r9ze  (00°80Z°02) 00°0 00'Z6L'6 00'8P¥'C (00000°0€) 000 (00°000°05) (siuepnss 191
weiboid uogonnsuy Jeinbay  oTeLL
axg souejeg ssouRIqUINDU]  saunjpuadxy  seunqipusdxy 3a6png sjusuwipually junowy jebpng uonRdidsSag JUN0JDY  JaqUinN JUNCIDY
196png pasoqumusun Guipueasing  IRQ-03-1e97  3JeQ-03-YIuoW pspuawy ysbpng
JO %

spoaloid {esopad jooyds ¥T I pund

5 Jo ¢ obed £20T Q0P0
Wv 80:0T £20Z/8/TT awiL/aleq pund Aq [qO Aq Alewwing SInjIpuddxy JO Jusudels 291 :Aq pajeal)

plojmer) ejiey

SN

uoneINp3 jJo piecg AJuno) suslin

pauysq D91 :owepN ejdwal



AepngQ [ende) Jemboy  00T9L

%90t  (19°6ZT'64) 00°0 99'00SZ LLyv8'T (£T'0EL'T8) {00°005°) (£zoet’sL) uoneuodsuel]  QTLZZ 0L
%000 (£z°88578€) Q0’0 000 000 (L2'885°8¢E) 000 {£Z'885'8E) Wwawdinby uoneyodsuery 62/
%00°0 {007005'0) 000 000 000 (00°005'2) (00°005'2) 000 sabieyy PR0 665
%bT9 {8 gst) 000 e 60°€C (00°005) 000 (00°00S) aueapsl Riodwz 21T
%ST'9 (55°8LE°€) 000 SHIZT §5°€9T {00°009°€) 000 {00°005°€) uswamy Aws  HOT
%96°€ (4: ¥4 e 4] 000 8148 £€°29 {oc0"00z'D) 000 {o0002'2) Awndas lepos  T0OT
%629 (61°181°2¢) 000 18°09T°C 08'565'T (00°TvE'vE) 00’0 {00°2¥E"VE) spaugsng  9bT
uogeyodsuell QTLZZ
%00'00T £8°8¥0°T 000 £8'8Y0°C 000 00'0 00°0 00°0 jueld jo uonesado  0T9ZL I€w0L
%0000T  65'/Z 000 65'4T 000 000 000 00°0 alepop eholdwg 212
%00°00T  00'8IT 000 00°811 000 00'0 00°0 00'0 Aunxos epos  T0Z
%00'00T  8Z'€06'T 000 87°€06’1 600 000 00'0 000 jouuosiad [eipassny 99T
juejd jo uoneiado  0T9ZTL
%I8'1E  (T0Y89°0E) 00°0 66°STE'YT TTLLS'E (00°000°5%) 00'0 (00°000°S¥) ABojouyag  0SZZZ 1=eA0L
%000 (00°000°T) 000 000 000 (00'000'T) 000 (00"000°T) pARlL  GSE
%bb T {£9°€60°T) 000 £€°'THT SO'SE (00's€2'T) 000 {o0sez'D) aleolpajy hodw3z  ZTZ
%000 {00°001) 000 000 00'0 (00001} 000 (0o"0o1) uogesuadwo] jewAodwaun 01
%00'0 (o0°0s1) 000 000 000 (o00S1} 00°0 {0o'0sT) ueinsuy |ewea BOZ
%sTve  (00°89C'S) 000 00'CELT 00°€89 (00000'8) 000 {00'000°8) ouesnsuf jeoipaid L0T
%0000 {00°6) 00°0 00'9 0zt (00'sT) 000 {00's1) Joueinsur 3y 90C
%8z0r  (88'T6Y'D) 000 T1200'T 8L°1ST (00°005°0) 000 (00°005°?) ewsipay Aes  HOT
%ZT0f  {99'S6E'T) 000 YEH09 88'6b1 (00°000°2) 000 (00°000°D) Aundag fepos 10T
%527 (08°bL1°0T) 00°0 07'528'6 0£'95v°C (00"000°0€) 000 (00°000°CE) [PULOSRd Je3ndwo) jeuomnnsul - SET
ABojouydal 0STZL
%LS'ST  (98TES'T) 00°0 4724 00°0 {00°000°€) 00’0 (00°000°€) weibold voNeONp3 [RUOREIOA  0EZTL 1=I0L
%{SST {98265 000 $T°L9p 00°0 (00"000'€) 000 {00°000°€) Juswdoasg yeisfeomins-ul LS
wesbold uonedNp3 |EUONEIOA  OETTL
%L9'TC  (£9'6TE'T6E) 8L66Z'TT 05°€9Z°L6 T0TE6'9E (56°T88°00S) 00'0 (s6'288'00S) wesbosg uoneonpy |eads OZTTL 1w0L
%00'00T 000 8L740L'0T £6°(89 £6°£89 (52°26€"11) 000 (s2°z6e'1T) juewdinby mpo  06Z
%sz¢el  (20°€66) 000 86'90C 000 {00°002'1) 000 (00°002°T) ssbieyd RO 665
%z19  (9v'885°7) 00°S6S ¥£'00S°E TLL6b (0z'+859) 00'0 (0Z'+89'9) wawdopasg yas/eones-ur  HES
weibouid uoneinpy [epeds  0ZZZL
mg aouejeg ssoueaqunouy  sasmipuadiy  saanypuadiy 1°6png SJUWPUIWY  Junowy Jobpng uondpPsog UNG2DY  JRGUINN JUNOIDY
whpng posoqumudun  Gupuersing jeQ-03-1BdX  312A-03-YIUOW pepuaury 19bpng
30 %

spafoud jesopad [o0Yyos YT [ pund

G Jo  abed £20T 12qop0
WY 80:0T £20Z/8/11 PwLL/9Ra puny Aq [qo Aq Alewwung sainipuadxd Jo JURUNNS 91 1Aq pojeald
piojmer) BIARY uasn uoneanpy jo pieog AJUnod AUIVIH pauysg D9 ‘ewe) ajejdwa]



%LSTS  {ZO"EDE'D6T’L)  OE°L6S'TES'E 6S'STY'ETR’E 890$0°Z60°T (06'8TE’9p8'YY) (ZP'€SO'EE6'T)  (bS'SIT'ET6TT) [d49 (pung Jod [e30L

%£s'1S  (L0E08'06T’L)  OEL6STEV'E 65 8TH'ETS'E 89'0S0°260°T (96'8TE'OYE'YT) (Tv'es0'ses'T)  (PS'SIT'ETETT) legoL
%IS'TS (L0°E0E'06T'L) DT L6STERE 65'9IV'EZ8‘E 89°050°260°C (96'81E’9V8YT) (T'eEsO’ee6’T)  (pS'SOZ'ET6°TT) =L
%000  {00°000°¥6) 00'0 0’0 000 (00'000°v6) (00°000'0%) (00°000°v8) MQ siogsuell  00T66 €30l
%00°0 (00°000'v6) 000 000 oo'o (00°000°b6) (00"000°0T) (00°000¥8) oy paapll H0S

O sigjsuell OOTG66
°%08'28 (£0°886°£9/) 66'BET 965 86°6Y0'TEG’T L6'TTE'SLS'T (00°2£2'56Z9) 00°0 {00°£LLT'S6T'9) Aepng jeyde) sejnfey 0OTYL eloL
%IEPe  (ES'€€9'2ST) £0°0££°SS5°C 0b'089°pT1L'T LETIB'ELST {00'vb9'228'y) 000 {0o'pbe'Les'y) wswdinby voeRdp ueld 024
%ET'TL  (09'bSEDIS) 26'806°060°T 85'69€'91C 00°00S’T (00°£€9°£9L'F) 000 (00°£€9°29L'T) uomonisuc) Buiping 90

Aepyng [eyde) senbay  00T9L

ax3 aouejeqg seoueiquinduy  seamupuadx3y  saunypuadx3y wh6png sJPWpUdWyY juncwy Yobpng uondsaqg JUN0JDY  JIGIUNN JUNODY
1°6png passqunduaun  GuipueIsing  23eQ-0)-1e3A  93RQ-03-YIUOW popuawy 336phg
30 %
spalold [esapay jooyds THT :pund
G Jo § abeq £T0T 499010
WY 80:0T £20Z/8/11 [w/e3eq pund Aq [qO Aq Alewwng saunypuadxd Jo Juawales 91 :Aq pajeasd

piomel) ejiey oSN uogednp3 Jo paeog AJUNOY U pauyag Do swen ANejdwag



00°0 BRIR) NU) {344 9)30] puny

(zz'ovz'Z¥s’'s) soue|eg pundg PUE ‘SI0INOSIY JO SMOPUT PAUIIJ ‘SONMIIGer] (308
(88'£28°580°E) sagnba |@oL
(£2°0b6'6L8T) 395 JSUL-UON SO uogesRd( J0d PIPLSSY = - -OLSPE-EPT
(68'sec'0LT) 1ea, Jold - SSouRIGWINUZ - - OUWEERT
(9e"249'sg) 2T JEALM) - SDIURIGUINDL] = = -0TTPE-EPT
(yE9TH'9SL'Y) sSuqen =0l
(86°069'085) (loxuon) senuanay = - -00SET-EPT
00°6022LT*p) {1ou0D) suoneudoiddy - - -00T8Z-EFT
(sTeLn) Aupgesiq 3igesn - = -DLETZERT
(08°22) 3y I0A 3Kgensn - - -T9ETZ-EHT
{cztan) 1=uaq uoluedwo) - - -TSETZ-EbT
(0z'%) yriagesn - - -THETZ-EPT
{ze09¢) SU Joyaes] 03 19 < = -THETC-ERT
0070 SUOQNGLOUOD JUSWRIRSY < - -QEETT-ELT
000 uemnpeQ 2eAPalN 3d40idurl = - -SZEIT-EPT
00°0 x| Aundeg (21005 - - -QTETZ-EPT
000 pledu puy PIBYLRIM XBL W0ou] - - -QIETZ-EMT
(25°€£8°7) dlqedeq sUNCY = = -00TTZ-EHT
TOrTIYE'L RIN0SIY JO SMOPIND PILIJ3A PUR NISSY  |ROL
TTOVTTVOL SRSy |yl
69'889°09¢ . 343 SIA Jold 104 BBSY 0L POYD dx3 - = -00SHT-£HT
£5°685'888 (jloguaD) e, udwn) - sasrgpuadxy = = -00S¥T-E¥T
97" 169°SE {1anuon) seoueIqUINOU] patepinbifin = = -00TPT-EVT
00'602°TLT Y $SINUIADY pRjens] = = -00TPI-£HT
000 SpUNY RO Wiy ang - - -OWPIT-ER]
000 SUBWRLIBAY SBLRO Wl 3ng - = -OfPTT-EHT
000 3{qEAS39Y SIUNCOY = = ~OTHIT-EFT
$9°506'€8E°7 3YSTUL YUM YseDd < = -ObITT-E¥T
66'661°'L jueg uf ysed - = -OEITT-EbT
vuRjeg uondLDSIQ WNONY J3qWNN U0y
BLAARD [eQuUad EVT: puni
140 1 3beg £70Z 54000 pung ns g pund
Wd £p:2T €202/8/T1 Pwis/aqeq pund-qns pue pund Aq 3ea4s ouejeg AQ 199yS aouemq :Aq pxeasy

plopery ejAey 49sn UORRONPZ )0 paeog AUN0Y U PauYaq DD e aejdus |



(29'05£°9%5) %T6'ET TO'8TS'TI6S’E  (86°069°08S) 00°60Z°TLT'Y 00°0 00°60Z°TLT'Y €1 ;pung 104 j230L
wo %000 o 000 T00 000 000 THIISNVIL DNIIVI3d0 1V10L O006%
000 Y0P ON 000 000 000 000 000 Sigjsuel] bunersao ~00B6Y
3 U000 — OO LIV E0OC INJWNGIADD 1va3033 1W10L O00ZF
Tao9sce) %999 00F05 57 {0095¢'E) 0009878 000 0009887 T30 - vasn PIZ%
(1 6¥T'69) %b1'TI 0F'692'925 (09'9vL'TL) 00'910°665 000 00°9T0°665 1sepjeaug £T1LY
000 %00°0 00'Z2E°10€ 000 00'ZZE’10€ 000 00°ZZE'T0E SAMPOWILLOD YASA r4q 924
(0g'z6E' L1} %80°TT ST'65£°L18°T (S8'£56°922) 00'EIZHH0'T 000 00 ETT 0T LPUM-HU0RIS 43927
T %000 UO0OUBBCE ] DO U8B ¢E 0G0 U0 088 ¢t TS553NNAL 30 11LVIS IVIOL U009%
000 ; i ) i SIS oo [0000S DZsor
WIIEETO 90 tZeh (6 Ctl1b)  \OGLeZev) 0 000 T 000 00000 1 SNNIATYE 19001 93010 19101 U00FF
(ST 09¢) To0pg ON (ST09E) (ST09E) 000 000 000 ] 01
(£9°'166°02) %8ELETY (18'€LE°TH) (18°€LE°Th) 00°000°T 000 00°000°T paweg 153:93u] (11882
? 000 OOBIGPPE T S3JIAU35 INJUHID 804 5108VHD TVL0L COUER
(Z0E55 16) TalB L £6 604 80% (Z0°¢5516) 00 €92 00v 000 00°E9Z 00% SRS AN ey ~ GZGlF
(00 vP8'ET) %9T1°ST 00'S8b°EET (00°v+8°€C} 00'62£°£ST 000 00'6zE ST 15epjER.g WO SWOodU] £TSEY
{52°€50°02) Y%bi'€T SL£8p'S9 ($2°€50'02) 00°TH5°S8 000 00°T¥S5'58 SINpy-SIUSLLAR] LpuUN] zsep
(S2'050'001) %b6'6T SLYELTOb (§2'050°001) 00'58/°105 000 00°58£°10S USIPIYD-SIUSLUABY Lpun] 1258b
SNUBIAIY JUBLIND pazijeaiun pazgjeay AlLA pajewns3 [e3ol SuBuIpuswy 353 _N-_n_.._o

eualaje) (eguad 1348 : pung

T Jo 1 3bed £207 BQOPO0 pund gns Aq

JUSWIIEIS SNUAATY
WY 0T:0T £202/8/T1 owiL/xneq pund-qns Aq SaNUIAIY JO JUBLRIELS 91 AQ pajeas)
plopmen) ejiey PE ] UOREINPF JO PIROg AJUNOD U pauyad D91 i2tueyN Rejawd)



%STZT  (TETL6'LPT'E) 9T LYI'SE £¥°685'888 SY'v65 TSP {o0'60Z’TL1'Y) 000 {00 60zTLT'Y) b1 :pun4 Jod |0L
o%STZZ  (TETL6'LbT'E)  OTLVY'SE £°685'a88 SY'¥65TSY (o0'60zzLT'Y) 000 (00°60T°TLT V) 1201
onsTTz  (TETL6'LYT'E) 9T LVY'SE £°685'988 SPY6STSY (00'60Z°ZLT'Y)  00'0 (00'60Z°2LT'Y) =L
%STTC (TEZLE'LYT'E) 9L Lb9'SE £b°685888 SY'P6S'TSY (00°60T°Z4TY} 000 (00°60T°2LT'Y) VMBS pood DOTEL (30L
%0€'S (88£¥b'0T2) 008t 21's01°2T [<4:Ti %] (00°'1£5'822) 00°0 {00'145'822) Wawidinbg axwies pooy 014
%0L'65T  §5'/95°€ 26°5L8'e £2'769'7 80°807 (00°000'9) 00°0 (00"000'9) ssbuey) JoI0 665
%00'00T  TET 00°0 152 1€ 000 000 000 voissiwwe) sgewsn) OIS
%000 (00'86L'21) 00°0 000 000 (0086421} 00'0 (o0'862'21) sfeujely puy soddng Joyo  66F
%000 {00'zZE'10E) 000 00'0 000 (00°zze'108) 00°0 {00°Zze'10£) sagipowwo) - epsfl - 69
%00°0 (00°000€) 000 000 000 (00°000°€} 000 {(00"000°¢) sayddns awo  SEP
%bS €T (69°6TH'S89'D) 60’0 1£°8£8°9Z8 00°E62'SEY {(00'852°215"€) 000 (00°852°T15'€) SeDIARS PaPeRUO) BP0  66E
%576 (PE'bL) 00°0 99°'576 SO'bST {00'000°1) 00°0 (00°000°T) RAell  SSGE
%SLv6  (06'792) 00°000'T 052€L'E co'o (00°000°S) 00'0 (00°000'5) suo4 puy Assuogess ‘bunuid  6HE
%000 (00°000°€) 00°0 00'0 000 {00"000°€) 000 (00°000°€) sebiey) [e3sod  8bE
%L5'8ZT  00°000°0Y P6'ESL (T 90'9bT'LT 8'6LE'E {00°000°5£) 000 (00°000's€) idinb3-sao1nies nedsy puy ueuduiel  9EE
%0691  (Z§'T0+'S) 00°0 8°860°T 9vLT (00°005°9) 000 (00°005'9} uogeounwwo)y  /0€
%barze (14°58€) 000 65'VET eTse (00029} 000 (000z9) uenpay sdodwa  ZTZ
%000 {000€) 00’0 00°0 00'0 (00°0¢) 00°0 (00°0£) uonesuadwo) Juswhoidwaun  0TZ
%00'00T  00°0 00’0 00°0ST 00°0ST (00'0ST) 000 (00"0ST) ueInsuy Eusg 80T
%wszse  (Z1256'S) 000 89'THT'E $9°0ZL (00°00Z6) 000 (00°002's) ouesnsu] jeipsn  £0Z
%000 {006} 00’0 009 rda (00°sT) 000 (00'sT) sueinsur gl 90T
%liTy  (L6'¢L0P'D) 00°0 €0°S6L'1 8CIIE (00'c0Z’v) 00'0 (00°€02'p) wuagey s HOT
%9p'6E  (b6'8ES'T) 000 90'€00°T 19°0ST (00'2¥5'D) 000 (00'2¥5°0) Aunxs jepos 10T
%izzy  (0B'L8Y'ED) 000 rarq CA 08'9£0°€ {00°000'1H) 000 {00000 1) {Buuossad s ¢9T

00TEL
g aouejeg seJuBRIqUINOUT  SseJnupuadxz  saunypuadxl whpng SsUIWpUBWY  jJunowy 326png uondPSag WNOXY  JSGUINN JUNCOOY

96png possqumouaun Guipuelsing 31eQ-03-JEDA  912Q-03-YIUOW papudwy J26png

30 %
eule)e) |BNua) EPT :puny
1 40 T abeg £207 1990320

Wd T2t £20Z/8/11 i /aeq pund Aq GO Aq AleWWNS SAUNPUIAXT JO JUIWARLS 291 :Aq pajeas)
piojmer) ejAey esn uonEINp3 jo paeog Auno) susdly pauysq 3O SweN ajejdway



s09[0ag [e3de) uopeInpy LLT Sj20] puny

000
(ov'eer’ssT'et) PVuejeg pund pue SIIN0SAY JO SMOPUT PAUIIJ ‘SORINGRTT [0l
(£z°90€'9TT’E) sapnby 301
00°56£'525791 paubisseun 1afipng - -0006E-LL1
(69'8£6'210°'T) paubisseun - - -D00BE-LLT
(00°T715'5¢8) sasoding £5U0 403 PIYILISIY - - -06SPE-LLT
{00°000°000°ST) 31D - SWafo.d JEIdE) Jod PIPIRSY - AU -S8SPE-LLE
(61€68°¢8L°T) dea Jolid - SRoURIGUINUT = - -02TrE-LLT
(6£°852'59) 4E9A JUALND - SOURIQUWINUZ - - -OTTVELLT
(£1°288'8€6°6T) senuuqen Mol
(00°668°01) saxe) Auado.d Jusnbuifaq pa1sjeq - - -SPBEZ-LLT
(00°€29°955'T) soxe) Apiadad Juaun) peLseg - - -0bBEZ-LLI
(15°€€8'2£2) {lonuon) sonuasay - -00882-LL1
{00°StHET6LT) (joguo)) suoneudo.ddy - ~D0TBT-LLT
(z9°180'061) 3jqeAed QUROIDY = = -DOTTZ-4LT
OY'8BT'SST'ET SS2UNOSIY JO SMOUING PR Pue SISSY P00
O 88L’SST'ET eSSy (@01
PE'ILE LYE 3U3 SiA Joud Jod sy oL phuy A - -009bT-LL1
762892 {100uc)) 1824 JUALND - SUMIPLAd] - -Q0SKT-£LT
6£'852'S9 {(10quon} ssouesqunul pagepinbiiun - -00ZH¥-LLT
00°059'£8€"T SONUBASY pjBWRST = -00THI-LLT
{00'€z5'ce) xe) Aadold 3)QEDOUN JOJ BIUBMOIY - -0TSTT-LLT
00'¥86'069°'T slqeaay saxe| Apedosd . -DOSTTLLT
000 SIUBUNLIRACS A0 WO 3nQ - -OEPTT-LLT
00°0 3qRAIOFY SUNDAY = OTPTTI-LLT
SE09Z'TET'BT 3NSIL UM USED = -OBPTIT-4LT
ueey uoRUIISI JURCNY JOqQUINN JUNODY
spefoud (e3de) uonesnpl LLT: pungd
1 Jo 1 3bed €20T 439010 pung gns g puny
Wd 02:1 €20Z/€T/TT 2wiLL/Rq pund-ans pue pund Aq 3oys Fouejeg Aq 1ays ouera :AQ pajeasd

piojmen; epfen uasn

uenesnp3 Jo paeog AUnc) 3udY

pauYsq 09 eweN ejdwdL



Tewseln) SobT LT G-I 6PT'T (35°££8 £ET) 00'059'Z85T 000 00°0S9'ZBE'T =
TS 1) VobO EUE GO0 0F] . \GLZ09U8) U0 000 UL 000 BOOO0 0 SIINIAJH WOO T UIHI0 1VIOL  O00%Y
000 32bpng ON (S0'E6TST) (SO'E6T'ST) 00'0 00'0 000 SpunpY oSl 0T
(S0'9ST'ST) %042 bLPIP'ST) (b2 PTIP'SH) 00°000°02 000 00'000°02 pau.e3 Isasu] (114872
R CTA 9] LA BC PCPOUBL T CLGeC ZLL) DO USD Z0E T T00 BOUS0 208 T SINVL VOO 1101 000UV
000 000 00000 000 DO000 [e] GUOo0E W|oXg A0eg  0CL0F
00°0 %61, 80°091°1 {z6'68) 00°052°T 00°0 00'0S2'T JBYI0 SOXEL JO NarT Wi juSuwAed  ESTOb
(89'11€) %bL'T9 798t (8£°£19) 00°000'T 000 00°000°T AJ[QN €207 SaXe] JOo NI Ul JusliAed Z910v
(ezes) %69°65 20161 (£6'802) 00°0S€E 00'0 00°0SE VAL S3XB[ JO Nay] U| SJUSWAR] 1910%
(9LbLE°T) %6795 L0'8LTE (£6'122'F) 00°005°Z 000 00°00S°Z Mjeuag R 1saBWI  OpTOp
(609211} %BEELS 60°£86°C {(I16°2I0'%) 00°000°L Q0’0 00°000°L AL NI 0gT0P
(SE'E) %066 S0'SH (56'p) 0005 00°0 00°0§ Anansjued UORDSIOD IS SZTOY
(8E'68'S) %L 18 £0°20T"y (£6'£6€81) 00°005°7Z 00'0 00°005°Z2 B3, I0U4-SUONDII0) SPIISNUL OZTOb
{6£°0£9°6bT) %0E"TT LTSTESLTT (€L T29'66T) 00°000°6Z€'T 00°0 00°000°SZE"T Xe) Apa00id wauny  OTTOb
INUSAIY JuUBLIND pazijeay pazieasun pozijesy ALA pojewys3 |0l SJUBUIpUdWY s3 jeulbuo
% SPaloLd [eude) LeReanpy L1 ipung
140 1 abeg €T0T 49900 puny gns Aq
JUSWIDIR]S ANUDASY
WV 9p:0T £Z0/ET/TT will /a3eq pungd-qns Aq SONUdAdY jO JuaIALIS 291 'Aq pajeas)
PIOJMELY) BIARY I8N uonedNp3 JO preog AJUNQD 3ULH pauyaq Do ‘JweN ajedway



%05'0 (6T vOO'STB'LT)  6E'8SL'SY ZET8I'PT 65°¥98'S (00°St'€16'2T) 00'0 {00°SH¥'ET6'LT) Ly ipund 103 {Q01
%050 (6T+OO’STB'LT) 6EBSL'SY TETBIPT 65'¥98’s (00°'SHP'ET6'LT) 0070 {00°St¥'E16°LT) rejoL
%0s0  (6Z'POO'ET'LT) 6E°8SL'S9 ZE'T8I'PT 65'V98°S (00'SHP'ET6°4T)  00'0 (00°SHY'ET6°LT) =01
%0s'0 (09'9LT'ETVLT) 6E'SSL'SY T10°0T¥'PT 65p98’S (00°SYY'ET6°LT) 000 {00 s¥r'ET6'LT) 00ET6 [e30L
%000 (00000095} 000 000 000 (00°000°09S) 000 {00°000°095) wawdinbz uojepodsued) 67
%600 (00°sp1°208'91) 6€'85L'T1 19'1b5°C 191552 (00°spr'128'91) 00'0 (00°s¥¥'128°91) QualwesAoidwy buppng  £0Z
%6021 (09°1€1'82) 000 0p'898°C 8622¢'c (007000°2€) 000 {00°000°2¢) uoissuwo) spsnl] 0TS
%0yl (00°000°8TH) 00°000°vS 00700081 000 (00"000°00S) 000 (00°000°00S) spayry  HOE

spofold [eyide) uoneonpl  ODET6
%00'00T TE'TLT 00'0 TETLT 00°0 00'0 00'0 000 0TEZL I|oL
%00'00T  TE'TLT 00°0 1€2LC 000 000 00°0 000 uoissuwoy s3] 0TS
OTEZL
axgy avuejeg sssuRsqNOUg  sainypuadxy  saunyipuadxa yebpng sjuslWpusWY junowy Jabpng uondidsa@ JUN0IIY  JSQUINN JUNOCIDY

jefipng passqumouaun Gupuesing  3jeg-03-1edA  31eQ-03-YUoKW pepuawy wbpng

JO %
s3oefoid [epde) uonednp3 LLT i pund
T jo 1 abed £202 199010

Wd 12T £202/€T/TT [un g fajed pund Aq [qO Aq AlRWWINgG S3UINJIPUSAXI JO JUWNEAS 791 :Aq pajeaud
plopmer) ejAey H =2 uoneanp3 Jo piesg AQUNo) suIH pauysqQ D91 eweN ejdwal



0cse 806591 0 T8¢ 774013 €LET 00¥¢ 0T¥Yy 0¢L6T | ¥'0TC6lT 00¢8 08YT [44 2] ! £0S 8CL 60°€EV6C | L6'0L9T | SIVLOL
Sd1 sa N SNOL # S1VO sS4l Sa1 Sa1 Sd1 sg1 D SNOL # # SNOL SNOL

0¢se 88595 £9°S 14914 €46 0E9T 3414 120

L6 €8 0cLeT 8'S LT 9¢ 88'89 599 0¢

008T 086 ovLL £€0'C 1¢ 0¢ ) r 44 Sr'9v 6¢

0959 0¢sc ve'l w 67 89°09T 86'TL 8¢

08TLT T0'C SLT 090T 79°ve LT T€ £9°€TC 95°08T Lz

[4 x4 ve LE Ev'veT S6°CL 44

*EC

ovec 00vZ 00EVT 80°L 91 9¢ 9t E€E'EL [44

0te6 081 8€'S 0s S9 87'8ST 25°89 1z

0zvet [4r4 €S 09901 69°€T LT o 10181 64°9€T 0¢

0zTe LT'T S8 9€'0T s 91 /44 85'8TT TTL L1

0816 LLT LET 008T [4h 1C 1€ Tv'SCT €79 91

086¢ 90'€ 1474 0v98 v6'S 91 LT SE9TT 6L°LE ST

0zsL 0081 L9 or Ly €v'eLT weL T

080L 0¢L8 90'8T 9¢ f4a4 9¢'081 6EEVT €T

0coe 9T°¢ 88T ocret [4:h74 ST [44 88°00T Tv'L9 o1

0947 08YT S6°0T 91 S¢ €S°6VT 9¢'SS 6

090¢ €T'T 8L 00¢L 998 91 Le 67'TET 9¢'0S 8

00SY 00V 090¢ LTS 1574 0S PELST 18 TL L

00T<T 8T 8ST 0007t 95'ST o€ 144 '8t 8'CEl 9

08, 0858 €Ce LT S¢ €V’ 0T €979 €

006T LY'T 8¢T 659 8T 0€ 10¢et 60°59 4

081¢€ 819 16¥ 00€8 L0°S TC o€ L6LTT £€8'T9 T
JHIM 1331S 1HO1IEM | INNOD 10 SSvyd NOILV1S €¢, \ON

IDON34  [LHOM /NIL| HOLVIavy YL JHIL aisn 1lvd ANV ‘d’'N'O 000 JILSY1d | /43dd0D | Oow3d 'sng SAQVOT |Y3I4SNVYL| SNOL J1va

A1SVM dI10S ALNNOJ IN3IIUD




1911 Z8'1S 6T’ TV 60°€Z 1Y10L1 ANVYD
8LV 8LV SANId 1SIM
18'ST 18°ST ANIIYD 1SIM
10°S 10°S NMOLYINTIVM
9T°L 9T, IAISANNNS
€L°L €L°L SANVT "LS
€€'S €€'S O3NOoY
0 MNNVEIHO
89°€ 89°€ a1vNOGdIN
€9°'S €9°'S N33YD ISYOH
29°0T 29'0T QYVNY3IH 1VH
78°'S Z8'S ANOLSAIYD
b 01 vv°01 sng3ia
4% r4% YOHONV SSOYD
20°'S 20°'S SONIYdS ¥v3I1D
9Z°S 9Z'S NOLATIIVE
69°8T 69'8T NO.L4V
1viol AVAIYd| AVASHNHL| AvASaNGIm AVAsinit AVANOW ETNE )
€202/€/T1  |€202/2/11 €20z/1/11 TZ/T/1T 40 ¥3am

AVQ 43d SNOL HO1DVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHHIAD




¥8°SS¢ 9'SS o 8€ 6S'€E S0t ST'¥8 1Y10L ANVYD
L'S L8 SINIM 1SIM
9€'EE 2T'stT v2°8T ANIIYD 1SIM
vb°ST 8€'L 90°8 NMOLYINTVM
v9°TT €89 18V JAISANNNS
10°€T L9°9 vE9 SAINVT "1S
9T"¥T 98°'S €8 O3NOY
ST'9 ST'9 MNVEIHO
v0°'TT €SP 159 dilvNOa>\
9'6T €8'9 16°€ 98'8 NIIYD ISYOH
€8'€T €L°CT T'11 QYVN3H 1VH
r4: 94 r4: 94 ANOLSAIYD
L8°(2 66'CT 6T Nsng3ia
€v'L €v'L YOHINV SSOY)
Wy wy SONIYdS V31D
LY ET L0'9 VL NOLATTIVE
8¢ e 89°ST NO.1dv
V10l AVAIY4| AVASHYNHL| AVASINGIM AVasint AVANOW Y3ILNID
€202/0T/TIT |€202/6/TT €20¢/8/T1 €z0z/L/TT €c0z/9/11 €2/9/1T 40 ¥3IM

AVA ¥3d SNOL HO1IDVdNO)D

HLSVAA dI'TOS ALNNOD AINHAAD)




8L'v9¢ 80°LS €9°'TY VL€ 10'vv 286 1V10L1 ANVYD
TO'€T 12's 8L SANId 1SIM
L'LE LTET 137874 ANIIYD 1SIM
€121 S0'9 809 NMOLYINTYM
Ly'0T L QT'€E IAISANNNS
L L SAINVT "1S
€L°TT L8V 98°L O3noY
6€'9 6€'9 INVEIHO
€S'TT 8T'S GE'9 a1vYNOQ>W
80°0¢ L9 0V 9€'6 M33YD ISHOH
€9'€ SY'TIT 8T'ZT QYVN3IH TVH
86°€T 8S°S '8 INOLSAIYD
LT'92 €0'ZT AN Nsngia
v6'€T €5°S 17’8 YOHINV SSOYD
29'S 29'S SONIYdS ¥VI1D
65T ST'9 A NOLATTIVE
19'S€E 6€°02 ST NOL4V
V101 AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM AVasini AVANOW ETRNER)
€202/LT/TT |€20C¢/9T/TT |€T0T/ST/IT |€202/¥T/IT |€20C/€T/1T €Z/ET/TT 403IM

AVAd ¥3d SNOL HO1IVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANATID




Avd

ONINIOSINVHL

404
a3ison

6'6v¢ 6C°€9 0 0s 1A\ WA LS°68 TV101 ANVYD
s0'8 S0°8 SANId 1SIM
veisy v8°0¢ 6'v¢ AN33FYD 1SIM
L9°'ST S0°L 29’8 NMOLYINTVM
v8'L STt 69V JAISANNNS
96°6 (474 vs'L SAINIVT °1S
LECT S8°t (AR} O3NOY
vL's vLs JANVE3H0
€L°0T 66t vLs d1IVNOQPIN
[44 v8'L L8V 6C°6 A33UD ISYOH
88°9¢ LLYVT IT'et QYdVN3H TVH
vl VL8 INOLSATYD
A% T4 LLL 'St AsSng3a
S0°L S0°L HJOHONY SSOY)
T4 % STy SONIYS ¥v3I1d
86 80°L viLe NO.1A3ITIVE
€8'IE 8T'V1 S9°/LT NOl1V
1v10l Avdalyd AVASHNHL| AVASINGIM Avasini AVANOW d31NID
€20¢/ve/TT |€z0Z/€2/T1  |€T0T/TT/TT |€202/12/1T |€202/02/11 €2/02/11 40 X3IM

AVQ ¥3d SNOL 4O1DVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANATIAD




¢T'9€C 8'€v S6°9¢ 66°€V 8€'TCT 1V10L1 ANVYD
15°L 16°L SINId 1SIM
ot G'8T S'12 INIIYD 1SIM
86'VT 69°9 67’8 NMOLYINIVM
29'9 29'9 JAISANNNS
€1°0T €1°0T L
88T LT'S 1L°6 O3noy
L L MNVEIYO
8'0T 96°€ ¥8°9 a1vNOQ
LO'VT 8v'€ 65°0T N33YD ISYOH
182 IS'TT 6C'€T QYVN3H 1VH
9T VT 9LV v'6 INO1SAIYO
€€'6T 80°ZT ST'L Nsngia
'L T'L YOHONV SSOYD
88'S 96"V 76'0 SHNIYJS V31D
SL'ET 90°S 69°8 NOLAI1IVE
6't¢ 6' NOL4V
V101 AVAiY4| AVASYNHL| AVASINAIM AVasiniL AVANOW Y3ILINID
€20Z/0€/TT |€20Z/62/1T |€20T/82/TT |€C0T/LT/1T €2/L2/TT 40)3IM

AVd 43d SNO1 HO1IVdINOD

HLSVAA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHIAA)




1/ 441" 1V101 ANVYD
S0°cy SINId 1SIM
19°¢LT IN33YO 1SIM
€T°E9 NMOLYINTYM
EL’EY 3AISANNNS
€0°8Y SIINVT °LS
Lt°6S O3NOY
859°9¢ ANVE3HO
8L°LY ATVNO@IIN
8¢E'18 A334D ISHOH
LL 60T QYVN3H 1VH
¢5°0S ANOLSAIYD
v0°L0T Asng3aa
voov HOHINY SSOY)
66'v¢ SONIYS 4Vv3I1I
68°99 NO.1ATIIVE
€0'6vT NOl14V

€20C YIGWIANON HO4 STVLOL HO1OVdWO0D

HLSVA AI'TOS ALNNOD ANAHID




(@3sn 41) SA¥¥I XIM Y04 NMOHS ATNO INNOAY 1SOJ 310N+

86°1€T 8SLle 0 8718¢. 2'86¢ SIviolL
13Nd JOHS L'ey £°9C
SHONYL NOILYLS HIJSNVYHL €0°LL [AYA14
FIOIHIA SLHVd 7XINNY a8 £'99 0812 Pre9 adod [44vi4 8¢
HOSIANYIdNS 8%9 e 9042 9L¥9¢ ado4d 2coe LE
“INIVIN ¥3IN3O £6¢ 68l 9088 £693 ado4d (#4414 9¢
440 110y 8581 00ge 2’108 £5961 €6ELY HOVIN 20z SE
440 110y 99°2) 98¢ '86S 9£06S 2L198 MOVIN cecoz ve
HIMONW 88y 9c 9v0¥¢ 866€C 054 ayo4d (44014 €€
¥3AvO1 LNOH4 25'8¢ £08¢ 9'CeY cvoLL 6€¢89 MOV ceoe [45
AONHL F1ddvHO TTvLIW /ONTA 18711 9591 S9¢ 08¢rs ¢9CS TYNOILYNYILNI 120¢ 3
d3dv0o1 LNOY4 67°G €ls 6°CEL ¢00SS1 68YFSL AOVIN gloc 0¢
d3avoT INOH4 0 87eESE 8PeESE MOVIN rL0C 6C
"INIVIN /OINVYHOAW 0 S/L6LE G/l6le 0G6S-4 1002 8¢
IvL3IW/onW3a [4:h4 8eel Livl 145 allls 0se-d 0202 1z
*INIVIN /OINVYHOIW c9¢ v've 0lssse 8v1Gse 0sg-d €002 S¢
Iv13n/onw3aa el's S6lL1 9'L¢t 'L £eY09 8EC6S 0se-4 0zoe 4
(dIvd3yd NI) ¥3av01 LNO¥S 0 S/8vey S/8¥EY MOVIN 1002 £e
“INIVIN /OINVHO3IN 0oLt €16 ¥'9 €2910¢ £2500¢ 05¢-4 100C [44
d3Aav01 LNO¥A 0 000002 00000 MAOVIN 1002 |14
SILVIANI NYA 0 1€06CH Leoect NVA AASHO 100¢ (074
"LNIVIN /OINVHO3IW vl £'8S 180€€T Ssyeeee X ¥ 06¢-4 1002 6}
3440 110d 92, 69¢L cvve ¥89¢€S1 sieest MOVIN r10C Ll
440 7170d Les 0Lt ¥'sece PLIESL ¥SGCst MOVIN 7102 9l
440 110" €02 Syl €0vaLl 004541 AOVIN 14114 Gl
440 110y L'S 9801 8°961 128491 172991 AOVIN ¥710C 14
"LNIVIN /OINVHOIW 6L SCTL 950561 LECYEL v X ¥ 05¢-4 800¢ cl
A0NY1 dOHS 76°¢ -19% 0¢ [40) 24 £8¢¢ NOVIN £ec0c ol
440 710d 991 9'98 29198 96298 HOVIN 9002 6
3JI0A03Y /d3Av01 LNOHS prav4 (244 9'8€s G/9¥9) 9zce9l MAOVIN 810¢ 8
AL3IAINTA HINIVLINOD et 1'9s £€C9e 8G1¢ TYNOILYNS3LNI 600C yA
"INIVIA /OINVHOIW 16 [4Y¥ ¥4 619./2 0s¢-4 /661 9
"INIVIN ¥31IN3O 8¢l |73 £9Lv61 SE0E6L 0S5i-d L00¢ ]
MONYL MO0 0 88€0.¢ 88€04C dWNAa HI G861 14
HOSIAY3dNS oLot 108 162291 182191 0S¢-4 €102 €
HIAYOT LNOH4 0 £9818¢ £9818¢2 AOVIN 002 c
¥IAVYOT LNOHS 414 €8¢ §'08S 0L2PSL 9.€151 HAOVIN 6L0C 3
J01034Ia Sl S'c9 <6261 11581 [s}=[oF| [44V4 00
sjef EIETAT s|eb sjeb abeayt abeay
asn Au__m_n_v 3 m_m__s_ 1 £1S00 |9nd _oon__v:M:"_ w.Mm_\_ww_u_ mc_vr.u_ mc_cc__w_w_m INVIN dvy3IA #X0NYL

YIFINIAON v, UV3IA TVISId

140d3Y 39V /SYD JLSYM AIT0S ALNNOD INIFYD




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes November 1st, 2023
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room
Greeneville, Tennessee

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner
Paul Burkey-Commissioner

ALSO:

Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Erin Elmore — HR Director

Gary Rector- Highway Dept. Kevin Swatsell - Road Superintendent
Ray Allen — Chief Deputy Roger Woolsey- County Attorney
OTHERS:

Jennifer Castillo Gervasi- Greeneville Radio Spencer Morrel- Greeneville Sun

Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director
Kayla Crawford -Greene County Schools Budget Director

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday,
November 1st, 2023 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the October 4th, 2023 meeting was made by
Commissioner Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion was approved with no
opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:

For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by
Mayor Morrison.

RESOLUTIONS:

A. A resolution to amend the Greene County Schools General Purpose School Funds
budget $800,000 for changes in revenues & expenditures for the expenditures for the
FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was
seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion carried.

B. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the
Sheriff's department in the amount of $60,700 for the annual allocation of the THSO
Traffic Safety and Network Coordinator Grants for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Smithson and was seconded by
Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

C. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to budget $3,500 in grant revenue
and appropriations for the Bureau of Justice Assistance Bulletproof Vest Partnership
Grant for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by
Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion carried.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes November 1st, 2023
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room,
Greeneville, Tennessee

D. Aresolution to approve the Interlocal Cooperation agreement between Greene
County, Tennessee, the City of Tusculum, Tennessee, the Town of Greeneville,
Tennessee, and the Tusculum-Greeneville-Greene County, Tennessee Industrial
Development Board related to the Greene Valley Development Center property.
Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Peters and was seconded by
Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

E. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to authorize the Greene County
Mayor to apply for the Community Development Block Grant in the amount of
$1,000,000 for the improvement of Kinser Park for the FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was
made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner
Smithson. Motion carried.

F. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to budget for an Ag Enhancement
Grant application. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was
seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, December
6, 8:30 AM Held in the Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Quillen at 10:04 A.M. seconded by Commissioner
Burkey.

Respectfully submitted,
Regina Nuckols
Budget & Finance Secretary



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 25, 2023
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:

Kevin Morrison-Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director Erin Elmore- HR
William Dabbs-Comm. David McLain-School Dir Brad Peters-Comm.
Kathy Crawford-Comm. Roger Woolsey- County Atty

Also, Present:

Kim Peterson-TSC Leslie Jones- Clinic Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.
Gary Rector -Highway Dept. John Mcinturff-MM&B

Call to Order:
Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and was seconded by Commissioner Dabbs to
approve the minutes from September 27, 2023. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for September 2023. There was a total of 228 patients seen
(13 more than last year). There were 59 biometric physicals. There were 11 no shows, 5 were
provider visits and the others were just nurse visits. There were 907 prescriptions given out, more
than last year. Kara had her baby. There is a provider in office on Tuesday, Thursday and Friday
and Telehealth on Monday and Wednesday. Both ladies that are covering while Kara is on
maternity leave are doing great. Clinic is continuing to stay busy. All data has been extracted from
the old EMR and now waiting for the data to be uploaded to the new EMR. Employees are liking
the new system, especially the text message reminders of appointments. John MclInturff has the
Professional Liability renewal for the Clinic and will send soon.

Danny Lowery gave the financial reports for September 2023. Worker's Comp and Liability
continues to do well. Anxious to see how the employee fund looks like over the next few months
due to covered lives picking back up. Hospital chains in this area flexing a bit and wanting a little
more money and they are in negotiations with BCBS (Ballad) and Cigna (Covenant). These
negotiations go on from time to time and typically they work things out but just making everyone
aware of what's going on. Chris at BCBS thinks it will be worked out. Roger inquired about covered
lives...406 employees with a total of 815 lives. A motion to approve these reports was made by
County Attorney Woolsey. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Dabbs. Reports were
approved with no opposition.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 25, 2023
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Discussion:

Other Business.
No other business was discussed in Open Session.

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by Commissioner Crawford. Motion was
seconded by Commissioner Peters.

Claims:

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Crawford to
approve TSC-0001884. There was no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Peters to
approve TSC-0000828. There was no opposition.

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner Dabbs.
There was no opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Greene County Purchasing Committee
October 16, 2023, 5:30 p.m.
Chuckey Doak High School Classroom
Official Minutes

Members Present Others Present
Tim White Krystal Justis
Tim Smithson Spencer Morrell
Pam Carpenter Jim Green

Nick Gunter Max Lowe

Jeff Bible

Teddy Lawing

Chairman Tim White called the meeting of the Greene County Purchasing Committee to order
for the purpose of conducting county business.

Approval of Prior Minutes: Secretary Teddy Lawing presented the September 18, 2023,
minutes to the committee for review. Upon a motion by Pam Carpenter a second by Tim
Smithson, and an affirmative vote of the committee, the minutes were approved.

Approval of Bid 101-1225 Greene County Tire Collection and Recycling: Two bids were
received. Patriot Recycling of Bristol, TN and Liberty Tire Recycling of Knoxville, TN. Upon
motion by Pam Carpenter and a second by Jeff Bible, and an affirmative vote of the board, the
bid was awarded to Liberty Tire Recycling of Knoxville, TN. The bid includes $135.00 per ton
of used tires, $250.00 per ton for heavy equip bead size over 2” 4’ tall. Contaminated or dirty
tires $250.00 per ton and Tires on rims $2.50 each.

With no further business to conduct, upon a motion by Teddy Lawing and no objection,
meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully Submitted

Teddy Lawing
Secretary



10-19-23 Animal Control Committee

The Animal Control Committee met 10-19-23 at the Courthouse Annexwith Lyle
Parton calling the meeting to order. Present were Chase Murray, Jeff Bible, Lyle
Parton, Larkin Clemmer, Teddy Laws, Robin Quillen, and Chris Cutshall.
Minutes from the last meeting were read and Teddy accepted the minutes, with
Chase 2", All approved the minutes.

Discussion regarding the Truck purchase was made and Chris said Chevrolet
Trucks were ordered, but with no eta. Chris gave updates on the old Humane
Society building, with cameras now installed, trees removed, and Atmos has
installed the propane from the bottom of the hill to the building, but have not
completed the job. Chris has tried to contact someone with no response. The
HVACis working well, drains have been cleaned, and the roof is not started yet,
nor has the barn been started, due to a hold up of the Contractors license.

The rabies fund is up to $23771.00. Parvo is starting to get under control.
Discussion was made as to what animals will go to the old Humane Society
Building. Discussion was made about the existing building with unlevel flooring.
Chris is going to look into the cost of repairs for the existing building. The next
meeting will be held on January 18, 2024 at 3:30 in the Annex. Robin voted to
adjourn the meeting with Chase 2™,



911

3:30 PM 10/10/2023
Present

Hoot Bowers Kelly Dabbs

Pamela Carpenter Heather Sipe

Kevin Morrison Nelson Morales (Gvl Sun)
Barbara Britton (Tusculum) John Waddle

Tim Ward Calvin Hawkins

Jerry Bird Jon Waddell

Dustin Jeffers (Mosheim)
Josh Ferguson (Baileyton)

Absent

Alan Shipley
Danny Green

1st Hoot 2nd Teddy passed minutes for August
1st Hoot 2nd Pam passed minutes for September

Cash is down per John Waddle, up $300,000 from a year ago. No negative balances
(great shape) per John. Greenevile city only pays once a quarter.

Hoot 1st Dustin 2nd to pass treasurer report.

Kelly 5 in training at the present.

Gave update - Jerry

Heather helping on signing up to have smart 911.com Greene County

Info is very important # of occupants

When we go live, we will be ahead
100-125 health questions

Schools will be next couple of weeks Page 1



Jerry wil be having a meeting on -Recorder-(up to date) same company as before
Address policy update by Jerry

Contractors on board as of now

Submit insert

1st Hoot 2nd Josh passed this policy

New Business

John asked about computer back-up issue

We don't have a back-up internet

GL&P will be more update - Tim Ward accessed

$3,000 less a month (more reliable)

Adjourned at 4:15 PM per Hoot

Page 2



& EUETR IR FACT SHEET

What is Smart911?

Smartd11.s a service that allows residents to areate a free Safety Profile for therr nousehold that includes any
information they want 9-1-1 and first responders to have in the event of an emergency. Then. when anyone
in that housshold dials 9-1-1 from a phone associated with their Safety Profile, their profile 1s immediately
displayed to the 9-1-1 call taker providing additional information that can be used to facilitate the proper
response to the proper location. At a time when seconds count, Smart911 provides details that could impact

response the second an emergency call is placed, which could be the difference between life and death.

How does Smart911 work?

What citizens
create...

What 9-1-1 call
takers see...

How can | sign up?

You can sign up for Smart911 at www smart911.com or download the Smart91 1 App on the Apoie Store

or Google Play and create a Safety Profile for your household to give 9-1-1 valuable information about
yourself, family memoers, your home, pets and even vehicles that will display autcmatically on the 9-1-1
call taker's screen when you make an emergency call. It's private and secure and you control what

information is in your profile. These details can save seconds or even minutes during an emergency.

s Dowrload on the SETITON

* Google Play

S App Store

) Smarto11.com’



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, October
10, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam Riley, Chairman Kevin Morrison, County Mayor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Roger Woolsey County-Attorney
Gary-Reetor-Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Phillip Ottinger

Jason-Cobble

Beeky Rideout

Also participating: Interested citizens

The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. The Chairman asked if members
had received the draft minutes of the September 12, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Edwin
Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

178 N. Chuckey Ruritan Road rezoning request. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered recommending a request to rezone 178 N. Chuckey Ruritan Road (tax parcel 066-108.03)
from R-2, Medium Density Residential District, to B-2, General Business District, to permit operation
of a dog kennel and grooming facility. Staff stated the property, which had two access points,
contained a 5,000 sq. ft. block building that was constructed in 2001. Information was provided
outlining the potential noise levels that could be created by the facility, which, as per Pet Boarding
and Daycare Magazine (January 12, 2018) could be expected to reach 115 decibels. This level was
well above what would interfere with sleep and speech comprehension, although it could be reduced
with soundproofing and fencing/landscape buffers.

Staff stated that, based on Greene County tax maps, the existing building was located too close to the
front and left (northerly) side yard, and setback variances would have to be granted by the Board of
Zoning Appeals for the property to be used as proposed. The Planning Commission was informed
that, while it was not the role of the BZA to determine if the use should be permitted, they did have
to determine if the intent of the zoning regulations could still be met if variances were granted.

The applicant, Eddie Yokley, stated the written application was for a B-2 zone, but they had made a
verbal request at a later time for a zoning designation of B-3, Arterial Business District. Staff verified



this had been discussed, and since the staff member researching the request was not aware of the
change, the agenda and rezoning memo did not contain the updated information.

The Planning Commission discussed recommending rezoning to a B-3 zone, and its potential impact
on the area. A motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton, to recommend rezoning
the property to B-3, Arterial Business District, subject to approval of variances by the Board of Zoning
Appeals. The motion carried unanimously.

Harold Southerland Property subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
for the granting concept approval to a proposed revision of the Harold Southerland Property (tax
parcel 088-111.00) located adjacent to Riley Island Road in the 14 civil district. Staff stated the
request, which had been postponed at the September 12, 2023 meeting, had been brought back for
consideration as input had been obtained as per Planning Commission direction.

The proposal showed two long (900’ total), narrow (generally 147°), tandem lots, where the front lot
only had 27’ feet of frontage, and the rear lot was landlocked. The request, to take 0.5 acres from the
rear “lot” and add it to the front lot, had been considered an increase in the degree of nonconformity
for an illegal lot created not by a subdivision plat, but by an unapproved survey. Increasing the degree
of nonconformity was contrary to Planning Commission policy

Staff stated the history of the property was researched, beginning with the initial subdivision in 1966.
It was determined that the original lot, measuring roughly 147’ wide and 900’ deep, and containing
approximately three acres, was created by deed (Bk. 246 Pg.136) on 09/27/1966 (Map 1). Because
this occurred before adoption of County subdivision regulations in 1972, the initial lot was legal and
conforming. Further, on 12/23/1966 a deed was recorded (Bk. 249 Pg. 95) that cut out a 0.2 acre
portion of the three acre tract, and it was this deed that decreased the frontage for the remainder of
the property from 147 to 27° (Map 2). Once again, the lots were legal and conforming because they
were approved before adoption of subdivision regulations.

The deed that accompanied the 1996 survey only provided calls/bearings and distances for the front
lot, creating the rear “lot” by default. The survey listed information for both “lots”, but a note placed
on the survey by the then Building Commissioner: “OKed for front lot that joined road 1.08”,
indicated it was not intended to create a rear lot. The accompanying deed provided no information
on the rear “lot” at all.

Staff stated the tax map layout (Map 3) identified the front lot as parcel 111.00 (tax map 088). The
rear “lot”, which was under the same ownership as adjoining tax parcel 113.01, had been added to
that tax parcel, as is common practice by the Property Assessor’s Office. Parcel 112.00 was the lot
that was created in December 1966, decreasing overall lot frontage for parcel 111.00 to 27°.

Staff stated that the situation could best be resolved by submission of a plat showing the December
1966 property lines (Map 2), with the front area and the 0.5 acre area being designated as Lot 1. The
rear portion of property should be shown along with a note stating that the lot does not have road

2



frontage and must be combined with tax parcel 088-113.01. Staff recommended granting concept
approval, as

1. What was considered so egregious (creating a tract with only 27’ of frontage), was not initiated
by the 1996 survey and, in fact, was legal and conforming in 1966 when initially deeded.
2. The rear “lot” was creatcd as a separate lot by default.
3. Transferring the 0.5 acre portion from the landlocked rear “lot” to the front lot does not
increase the degree of nonconformity for an illegal lot. Instead, it decreases it for the rear
“lot”.
A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Edwin Remine, to grant concept approval, based
on reasons as stated by staff. The motion carried unanimously.

Proposed Dollar General Store (6205 Newport Highway). The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving the lot area for a proposed Dollar General Store, to be constructed on a
three acre site located at 6205 Newport Highway (tax parcel 133-005.01) in an A-1, General
Agriculture District. Staff stated the proposed 10,640 sq. ft. building, would be located on a lot
measuring 2.78 acres, which was adequate to meet the requirements for development, such as parking,
loading, setbacks, and buffers. A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to approve the lot size. The motion carried unanimously.

Replat of Lots 4 & 5 of Cold Springs Subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered approving the Replat of Lots 4 & 5 of Cold Springs SD, for one lot totaling 0.96 acres,
located adjacent to Horse Creek Park Road in the 1% civil district. Staff stated the plat met all
applicable requirements except for signatures, and recommended approval subject to the addition of
signatures. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to approve the plat,
subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable requirements. The motion
carried unanimously.

Teresa Jean Neas Cutshaw Property subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered approving the Teresa Jean Neas Cutshaw Property for 15 lots totaling 50.29 acres, located
at the intersection of St. James Road and Cedar Creek Rd. in the 3™ civil district. Todd Shelton,
project surveyor, stated that the road intersection was offset, in that the sections of Cedar Creek Road
on either side of St. James Rd, did not line up. To further complicate the issue, the segments of St.
James Rd. didn’t line up either where they crossed Cedar Creek Road. The property owners had
requested the installation of 4-way stop signs at the intersection, which was not approved because the
roads did not line up. Phillip Ottinger, a retired engineer, stated it would be problematic to have a 4-
way stop in that situation. Staffrecommended approving the plat subject to the addition of signatures,
as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by
Phillip Ottinger, to approve the plat, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other
applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.




Presidential View RV Ranch. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving a
preliminary site plan for the Presidential View RV Ranch, to be located on a portion of tax parcel
158-023.00 and accessed from Woolsey College Road near its intersection with Susong Rd. A copy
of the proposed site plan, which had been provided in the Planning Commission packet showed:

1. The bulk of the property lay anywhere from 300’ to more than 400’ from Woolsey College
Road, but double pipe stems provided direct access to Woolsey College Road.

2. The pipe stems were fifty (50) feet wide, as per the requirements of the Greene County
Subdivision Regulations, and each contained a twenty-five (25) foot w1de paved driveway so
that Woolsey College Road was accessed at two points.

3. All driveways and parking areas in the development would be asphalt.

4. A fifty (50) foot-wide building setback around all property lines;

5. Forty gravel RV sites measuring twenty (20) feet by eighty-five (85) feet, with twenty-five
(25) foot wide landscaped areas between each RV site;

6. A barn, pool, pickle ball court, gazebo, fire pit patio, and two “covered wagons” (with
dimensions);

7. Nine standard paved parking spaces (9°x20”) in front of the barn and “covered wagons”’;

8. A buffer zone fifty (50) feet wide (as required by the Greene County Zoning Resolution) along
the perimeter of the property, with one exception. A section near the “covered wagons” that
measured thirty-five (35) feet long, had been reduced to thirteen (13) feet in width. The
decrease was caused by the proposed location of a parking area.

Jennifer Adamac and Glenn Merklin, project developers, provided copies of the site plan, a landscape
plan with updated information, and visual representations of how the development would look.

Glenn Merklin stated their proposal was to create a resort, not an ordinary RV campground, where
views of mountains and the close proximity to Gatlinburg, Asheville, and other areas, would be a
draw for tourists. A timber framed barn, which would be used for check-ins, was a club house that
also provided bathrooms, showers, and laundry facilities. Water service would be provided by Glen
Hills, and septic approval would be through TDEC (the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation).

Discussion ensued concerning wind in the area and how that could impact the development. Glenn
Merklin stated they were having an engineer prepare a wind map for the project, and believed that six
feet tall trees, the size at planting as required by the Zoning Resolution, would probably be blown
over. They planned to request approval to plant smaller trees, such as a hybrid holly that would be
two feet to three feet tall at planting but had a strong root system and would grow two to three feet
per year, and to ask leniency on where to place the trees. Under the provision of the Zoning
Resolution, information on the buffer design, and the width, height, opacity, growing period to
maturity, time schedule for installation, and responsibility for perpetual maintenance of the buffer,
were required to be submitted to and approved by the Enforcing Officer (Building Coinmissioner).

4



Proposals for alternative buffering were also to be submitted to the Building Commissioner for
approval.

Kevin Swatsell, Greene County Highway Commissioner, questioned the route to be used for RV’s to
reach the site. He stated that the turns might be a little tight coming in from Susong Road to Woolsey
College Road, and really tight coming in from Kelley Gap Rd., but would work if drivers came in the
other way. There was discussion about problems with the much larger over the road trucks getting
stuck on some of the roads because they used “residential gps”, which did not provide adequate
information for road conditions. It was stated that sand trucks used Camp Creek Road. Glenn Merklin
stated that if drivers came in from Camp Creek Rd. they had a perfect angle to access the driveways.
Jennifer Adamac stated that information on the best access route could be texted or otherwise
provided to drivers.

Discussion ensued among the Planning Commissioners concerning how the use was permitted in the
A-1 (General Agriculture) zone as long as it met all applicable requirements. Tim Tweed stated one
of the requirements was approval by TDEC (the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation) for the drainage, soil erosion control, and sanitation plans. Granting preliminary
approval subject to approval by TDEC would allow the development to move forward at the local
level while TDEC reviewed the proposal and he worked out the issues with the buffer.

A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to grant preliminary approval to
the site plan subject to resolution of the buffer issue and approval by TDEC. The motion carried
unanimously.

Administrative minor_subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.

* Division of the James Sauceman, Jr. et ux Property, for two lots totaling 5.11 acres, located
adjacent to Kathy Avenue in the 9 civil district.

* Division of Tract 1R of The Rambo Heirs Property Replat Tract 1, for one lot totaling 3.44
acres, located adjacent to Ricker Road in the 22" civil district.

* Audrey Lamb Subdivision, for one lot totaling 1.2 acres, located adjacent to Chuckey
Highway in the 15" civil district.

* Division of a Portion of the Southerland Trust Property, for two lots totaling 6.76 acres,
located adjacent to East Fork Road in the 24" civil district.

A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton, to accept the list. The motion carried
unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the monthly
department activity report. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton, to accept
the report. The motion carried unanimously.




Other Business. Staff stated the Tennessee Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations
(TACIR) study on solar energy had been completed and was being reviewed by staff. Public meetings
would be set up where staff could discuss the study with interested persons.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to
adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:15 pm.

Approved as written: / /- / ‘!7/ “‘w&?j

Chairman/Vice Chairman: ( AN [ L / \ L/




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, July 25, 2023,

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Holly Brooks, Secretary Deborah-CollinsBuilding Dept:
Jason A. Smith, Member Kevin Morrison, County Mayor
Robert Wilhoit, Member Roger-Woolsey. County-Attorney

Bill Dabbs, Associate Member
David Crum, Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the June

27, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Jason Smith, to approve the
minutes as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Chandler Hunt, representing DG
Holdings, and Building Commissioner Tim Tweed.

7595 Erwin Highway. The Board considered a request to grant a variance reducing the parking
requirements for a proposed Dollar General Store, to be located at 7595 Erwin Highway (tax parcel
102-035.00), from 51 spaces to 38 spaces. Information was provided to the Board that 10,189 sq.
ft. of the 12,380 sq. ft. total footprint would be retail area. Article 502.5 Q of the Greene County
Zoning Resolution required a parking space for every 200 sq. ft. of retail floor space. While a
structure with slightly less than 10,200 sq. ft. required 51 parking spaces, DG Holdings
proposed to provide 38. Mr. Hunt stated that parking was always available to existing Dollar
General Stores, and 30-35 spaces, less than what was requested, were actually more than
adequate for the property. In addition: the larger parking area would create more runoff
than the smaller paved area needed for the 38 spaces requested; approving the request
would not be detrimental to zoning regulations; and the increased cost ($338,000 based on
a 2021 estimate) associated with the larger paved area would negatively impact the
development.

Tim Tweed, when asked by David Crum if a parking variance had ever been granted, said
“no”, and that it was unusual to see this type of request. Discussion ensued regarding the



parking standards and building code requirements, with David Crum stating the parking
standards needed to be reviewed and possibly updated.

Holly Brooks asked about the flow of traffic on Erwin Highway and if it would negatively
affected by the proposed development. Tim Tweed stated there should not be a negative
impact to traffic flow.

A motion was made by Jason Smith, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to grant the variance based on
the following rationale, as the request met the applicable requirements of Article 1004.3

Variance Requests:

1. Creating 13 parking spaces over and above what was needed will present an undue hardship
on the owner of the property, as it will increase development costs by an estimated
$26,000/space, or $338,000 total (based on 2021 estimates); and

2. Relief may be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without
substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution; and

3. Special circumstances were attached to this property which did not generally apply to other
property in the neighborhood, i.e., the proposed development on this property was part of a
very large development group who provided data to show that the additional parking spaces
were not needed.

The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to
adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 8:50 a.m.

Approved as written (date) [0 < F 20R3

Secretary \'! :’_' O DL
Chairman/Vice Chairman (j— ) ,5;7 d 7y g’éaﬂ



Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, October 31,
2023.

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Fimweed: Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
HeHy-BrooksSeeretary Pebeorah-CollinsBuitding Pept:
Jason A. Smith, Member heevir Morrbon-Count—Muvor
Robert Wilhoit, Member RegerWoolsey-County-Attorney
Bill Dabbs, Associate Member

Pavid-Crum—Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the July

25, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to approve the
minutes as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Jacob Ball and Planning Coordinator
Amy Tweed.

178 N. Chuckey Ruritan Road (front yard setback variance). The Board considered a
request to grant a variance to decrease the front yard setback for 178 N. Chuckey Ruritan
Road (tax parcel 066-108.03). A survey of the property showed that the existing structure
was 33.8 feet (rounded to 33’) from the front lot line, which was less than the requirement
(55 feet from the road centerline or 30 feet from the edge of the right-of-way, whichever was
greater). In addition, the applicant proposed to add a covered porch eight feet in width to a
small offset concrete area. The porch would not extend the width of the building.

The Board was informed that the applicant proposed to use the building as a dog
grooming/kennel facility, which would require the property to be rezoned to a commercial
zone. The Planning Commission had recommended zoning the site B-3, Arterial Business
District, which would be considered by the Greene County Legislative Body at their
November 20, 2023 meeting. If zoned B-3, the setback requirement was fifty (50) feet from
the front lot line, which would require a variance of twenty-five (25) feet.



Staff explained the possibility that the property could also be considered for rezoning to B-
2, General Business District, which had a front yard setback requirement of 55 feet from the
road centerline. This would necessitate a variance of thirteen (13) feet.

The Board discussed the request, and reviewed four options presented by staff.

Option 1: grant a thirteen (13) foot variance;

Option 2: grant a twenty-five (25) foot variance;

Option 3: deny approval of a thirteen (13) foot variance;
Option 4: deny approval of a twenty-five (25) foot variance.

A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to approve Option 1, to grant
a variance of thirteen (13) feet, decreasing the front yard setback requirement to forty-two
(42) feet, based on the following rationale:

o Relief may be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without
substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution, as the structure is
existing, and the variance is needed to bring the structure into compliance;

e Special circumstances are attached to this property (existence of a commercial structure built
in a residential zone which has apparently never been used for residential purposes, and the
building has been in violation of the setback since its construction in 2001) which do not
generally apply to other property in the neighborhood.

* Not granting the variance would result in exceptional practical difficulties to or exceptional
and undue hardship upon the owner of such property as the only way to bring the structure into
compliance is either approval of a variance or demolition of the building.

The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Jason Smith, to
adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Approved as written (date) /- 2% ~200X.3

Secretary d—a]Q.UM PJ@)O m")

Chairman/Vice Chairman %f; % "@&}M
/ / 4




October 10, 2023, Range Board Meeting
Chairman Ward called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.

Member McAffee made a motion to accept the minutes from the last meeting as written. Member
Holt seconded the motion, and it passed with all members in agreement.

Old Business:

Update on the road project: Clifford Lawing told the board that the road is ready for rock. Mayor
Morrison advised the board that he drove around the entire road last week and it is in very good
shape.

Sheriff Holt is going to have Adam Arrington come to the administrative building and replace the
ceiling tiles.

There was no new information on the broadband internet service. Chairman Ward and Mayor
Morrison are going to make contact with the G.E.A. before the next meeting.

Dave Peurifoy made a motion about charging agencies from outside Greene Cunty to use the
range for training. The motion is as follows:

There will be a charge for any agency outside of Greene County (Greene County Sheriff’s
Department, Greeneville Police Department, Mosheim Police Department, Baileyton Police
Department, and the TWRA) a fee for the use of the range. The fee will be the same as the
current fee schedule that WSCC is charged, which is $10 per day per shooter. These fees will
start on January 1, 2024.

The motion was seconded by member McA ffee and passed with all members in favor. Mayor
Morrison is going to have a letter drafted and sent to all agencies currently using the range.

Member Davis and Holt were asked by Chairman Ward to research the cost of Apple Air Tags for
GPS tracking to be used on the UTVs.

There were no new updates for the control panels for the turning targets on the upper range.

New Business

Clifford Lawing brought up a safety concern about the new rifle range. He told the board that the
way it is set now, he is worried that an accidental discharge from a rifle would be in the direction
of the administration building and the other ranges on the property. This concern was tabled until
the next meeting to give members to consider solutions.



Member Davis asked the board if they would have an issue if the Greeneville Police Department

was to host a munitions instructor’s school at the range on a Monday or Tuesday when the range

is closed. The school would consist of shooting off flash-bang distraction devices and CN/CS gas
devices. The board gave approval for the use.

Mayor Morrison brought an issue to the board about the Tennessee Wildlife Association’s
concerns about the three trap and skeet fields that they funded. These fields were to be used for
shooters who belonged to specific trap and skeet organizations to promote the growth of trap and
skeet shooting. Mayor Morrison and member Strom are going to make contact with the
Tennessee Wildlife Association for more information about how we can bring the range into
compliance with the agreement and report back to the board at the next meeting.

The next meeting was set for December 5, 2023, at 8:30 a.m.

Motion to adjourn by member Davis. Motion carried.



3iva

— dﬁmy;d_

3IISSIANNIL ‘INIIYD 40 ALNNOD FHL 40 MyT 1D

JENLYNDIS

PG

ALIHNS VNO

§cee-glz-eey

€815-6£9-¢2v

ysvi-ezv-e2y

2666-86L-E2F

aiiN 9505-929-£2¥

L1858-S25-£2¥
1127-861-€2¢
8111-€28-¢2V

BLLL-EZ8-CTY

699V£Y2.€ NL STUAINITHO

j AMH JTTIAJHSY £0§
LWYESYLLE NL ITIAINITNHD

., ... 3NV NONNVHCH 00%
ZZ6vEVLiE NI ITTIIAINTINO

1S NIVIN S 00}

€12€608.€ N1 AVAAQIN

. Q¥ NMOLY3110d 66}
Y08ESYLLE NL STHAINITNO

. ASHOUNHO M bLL
ovvySY.LIE NL ITIAINIINO
AMH NOSNHOI M3YANY 3 SL2p
820¥SYL.E NL ITUAINITHS
an1g WNINOSAL £LLL
$08€SYL.€ NL ITUAINIIUO
1S HOMNHO M V1L

62905b2.¢ NI ITUAINTIND
AMH NOSNHOr MIMANY 3 L18¢
ZLSISYL2€ NL 31TIAINTIUD
.. GA1g ¥3si L9sL
LS60Sv22€ N1 ITTAINITNO
AMH NOSNHO Ma¥ANV 3 L¥8z
L20£20909 T ODOVIIHD

... 1S SAvAV M 626

€vZ2€ N1 3TIIAINITYO

QY S¥3LIVM OLE

€V22€ N1 ATIAINITNO

. aqdsy3aiivmols
0rbSPLLE NL ITIIAINITND
AMH NOSNHOI MINANY 3 SbL¥

16C0-8.5-€2¥
¢l _..—..cow-m e
VLTANIA A
0vSiL-clée-cev
0Z¥9-0Lv-¢ev
L1802-182-¢2¥
25€0-255-€2v
wmom-www-mm.v
vLLL-187-¢Cy

€020-0.t-¢2v

9v81-S25-¢Th

ETA YA YA oA 4

8L.17-€78°¢Ty

8.17-£28-¢Tv

180Z-18.1-€2v

0188-9¢9-€2v

29Z¥ib9.e NL ADISNHD

_ QY NOSLY390d 02
60€S1L192¢ NL AIMONHD
1D 3ISOYINING 1t
0Z05818.€ NL WISHSOW

M Q¥ AMONLNIM Q10 0512
0L8Sv.Ze N1 ITUAINIIHO
AMH NOLYOH s¢zs

L6LS1P92E NL AIMONHD

N7 AVMNITNO Sii

19291492 NL AIMONHD
... _NT3LLV 06¢
ZL€9SYLLE N1 F1IAINIINO

= Had ST1IH NVIANI Zg)
2ZLPSPLLE NL 3TTAINIIYD
HA LSTYOTIH €1
§929L¥9.¢ NI ATMONHD

Mid AIMONHD S919.

6018¢Y2.¢ NL ITTIIAINIIYO
AMMd SONINAS N9 6¥22
6952522 NL ITUAINIIND
N7 M3340 AGNVD SiE
1S9%Sv22¢ 1 3TTIAINIIHO
... 40831nr 602

£v22¢ NL ITIAINIIHO

. aysyaLvmore

€P2¢ NL ITIAINIINO

o QY SYALTVAA OLE
2966€v2.¢ NL ITIIAINITIND
40 YINOSSOUD 08

€V2/€ NL ITTIAINIIND

QY IAVD M¥ITHD ¥va3D 529

VIATAS NVMOXN ‘9i
:.:__aw VINOL <._ ‘51

¥ AV3S T 3SIN3G VL
SNITI0Y NVSNS AT¥ANV st
SQUVHORS NIWANS 21
HITIEM W VIAVH _.:
SILSNr 1aNWVS 0L

| A3SOr "N VI3ONV ‘6

- SOIN0dowuo4
INAYM AYVHOVZ 8
NVINIHOS INOL 2
w.mm.:_.“__.o VNIV "9
A310NA NNV _mu_.Em__._ 'S
TIVHSLND NNAT ALINY b
TIVHSLND NNAT ALINY €

HSYD vIligor 'z

H3IN3IdYVYD
NIMATIVE VI3NVd "L

AL3¥NS 3INOHJ SS3NISNg

*XdO€ ODNINYIAOD HHIL A0 ONILIAW €202 ‘8T dHENEDEA FHL ONI¥YNd 2ITdNd X¥VION
40 HOIJJ0 HHI OL JHLOITE TIHEM SNIMOTIOL THIL LVHL HIVYLIS 40 X¥UVITIOAS HHL

$8340av ssaNisng

3INOHJ JNOH

SS3¥aav 3IN0OH

OL ZRJATLYED XdHYEH I HIASSHANNIL ‘ENTTIOD J0 ALNNOD HHL 40 MJATD ¥ SY

OITdNd SHATYVION J0 NOIIDHTH JI0O ALVDIATILEHD

JWYN



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO REMOVE CROW FLY LANE FROM THE OFFICIAL
GREENE COUNTY ROAD LIST
(First Reading)

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane is located in the 24" Civil District of Greene
County, Tennessee and is presently a county road on the official Greene County Road
List maintained by the Greene County Highway Department; and

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane intersects with the Old Ashville Highway on each
end; at the north end it intersects with the Old Ashville Highway close to Link Hills
Road and at the south end it intersects with the Old Ashville Highway close to Kinser
Park Road; and

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane runs through the property originally owned by
James C. Morelock and his wife, Shirley A. Morelock; James C. Morelock is deceased
and his spouse Shirley A. Morelock now solely owns said property pursuant to the
doctrine of tenants by the entireties as dictated by Tennessee law; and

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane is maintained by the County Highway Department
and is approximately .18 mile in length with Shirley A Morelock owning all property on
each side of the road for its entire length; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Morelock has requested by written petition that Crow Fly
Lane be removed from the Greene County Road List and no longer considered a county
road to be maintained by the county road department; and

WHEREAS, after review of this road by the Greene County Legislative Body,
it appears that it would be in the best interest of the individual owning all the property .

contiguous to Crow Fly Lane and the citizens of Greene County as a whole to remove

A.




I‘ Crow Fly Lane from the Greene County Road List subject to the reservation of utility

‘ easements if any for the benefit of Greene County residents.

. NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body, meeting in regular session on the 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative that Crow Fly Lane be removed from

the official Greene County Road List with the reservation of utility easements for the

benefit of the citizens of Greene County.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if this resolution passed on this and a
second reading, that the Greene County Road Department have no further responsibly

|
‘ to maintain Crow Fly Lane.
|
|

Tim White
Sponsor County Mayor
' County Clerk County Attorney

Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781




A PETITION TO REMOVE CROW FLY LANE FROM THE OFFICIAL GREENE
COUNTY ROAD LIST AND TO CLOSE ROAD TO PUBLIC

We, the undersigned, would like to remove and close to public traffic CROW FLY
LANE, located in the 24™ Civil District of Greene County, Tennessee. Crow Fly Lane is on the
official County Road list and is being maintained by the Greene County Highway Department.
The undersigned property owners would like Crow Fly Lane to be a private road and the road to
be maintained by the property owners. We would like to request the removal of the above-
named road from the official county road list and to close the road to public traffic. Thank you.

NAME __ ADDRESS PHONE NO.

ey A DR octl L2 Loy 92-547) WW//zézf

(Be,lnq ‘+he sSame. person as 5Arrle_u|A MOre.chKU
7 20-25 3 % 7254

—}é&’:“% M ’@(ﬂf/zm/¢ S O] 202F




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $850 TO THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FOR
FUNDS RECEIVED FROM VARIOUS SOURCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff's Department (Department) received five hundred
dollars ($500) in donations from Ermco Components for representation during their

family day event and a three hundred fifty dollars ($350) donation from Wal-Mart,
and;

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being present and a majority
voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below.

INCREASE IN REVENUES

44570 Contributions and Gifts $ 850
Total Increase in Revenues $ 850
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54110 Sheriff Department
316  Contributions $ 350
451 Uniforms 500
Total Increase in Sheriff Department Appropriations $ 850

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor o Sponsor
County Clerk \County Attorney

v



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $4,385 TO THE SHERIFF’'S DEPARTMENT FOR
FUNDS RECEIVED FROM AAA BAIL BONDING FOR INMATE TRANSPORTATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriffs Department (Department) received four
thousand three hundred eighty-five dollars ($4,385) from AAA Bail Bonding for the
transport of an inmate from Rhode Island back to Greene County for prosecution,
and;

WHEREAS, the Department requests these funds be appropriated to offset the overtime
incurred for the transportation of the inmate from Rhode Island back to Greene
County, and;

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being present and a majority
voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below.

INCREASE IN REVENUES

44170 Miscellaneous Refunds
Total Increase in Revenues

4,385
4,385

A ARz

INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54110 Sheriff Department
187 Overtime 3 4,385
Total Increase in Sheriff Department Appropriations $ 4,385

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
& :@\v A
County Clerk Couhty Attorney



A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE $12,600 FOR TRAINING WITH INTEGRITY K-9
FOR THE K-9 UNIT AND THE PURCHASE OF DATA PROCESSING EQUIPMENT
FROM THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT RESTRICTED FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Sheriff's Department collects fees and donations to establish and maintain
a restricted account to support the purchase of law enforcement equipment and
support of the K-9 division (division), and;

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff's Department wishes to use funding from its

restricted account in the amount of three thousand six hundred dollars ($3,600) to for

the K-9 unit to train with Integrity K-9 and purchase of data processing equipment,
and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting
in a regular session on this 18" day of December, 2023 a quorum being present and
a majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below:

DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE

34625 Committed for Public Safety $ 12,600
Total Decrease in Fund Balance $ 12,600
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54110 Sheriff's Department
399 Other Contracted Services $ 3,000
709 Data Processing Equipment 9,600
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 12,600

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
)\ & e~ Q
County Clerk Gounty Attorney

'D.



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO
THE JAIL IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,734 FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE TRAINING
EQUIPMENT GRANT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Jail will receive the Training Equipment Grant (Grant) as long as funding is
available and Greene County qualifies, and;

WHEREAS, the Grant has limitations as to how the funding can be spent, and;

WHEREAS, the Jail requests to expend the allocation of fourteen thousand seven hundred
thirty-four dollars ($14,734), and:;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the county legislative body of
Greene County, meeting in regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being

present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget for the Jail be
amended as follows:

INCREASE IN REVENUE

46290 Other Public Safety Grants $ 14,734

Total Increase in Revenue $ 14,734

INCREASE IN BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS

54210 JAIL
709 Data Processing Equipment $ 6,714
716 Law Enforcement Equipment 8,020
Increase in Appropriations - Jail $ 14,734
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 14,734
Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk County Attorney

E.



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO
THE JAIL IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,327 FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE MENTAL
HEALTH TRANSPORTATION GRANT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Jail will receive annual allocations from the Mental Health Transportation
Grant (Grant) as long as funding is available and Greene County qualifies, and;

WHEREAS, the Grant has limitations as to how the funding can be spent, and;

WHEREAS, the Jail requests to expend the allocation of thirty-four thousand three
hundred twenty-seven dollars ($34,327), and:;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the county legislative body of
Greene County, meeting in regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget for the Jail be amended as follows:

INCREASE IN REVENUE

46290 Other Public Safety Grants $ 34,327

Total Increase in Revenue $ 34,327

INCREASE IN BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS

54210 JAIL
187 Overtime $ 34,327
Increase in Appropriations - Jail $ 34,327
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 34,327

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk County Attorney



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO
APPROPRIATE AN INCREASE IN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH GRANT OF $8,400
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health has increased the County Direct Health
Grant (Grant) by eight thousand four hundred dollars ($8,400) from seven hundred
fifty-three thousand two hundred fifty-six dollars ($753,256) to seven hundred sixty-

one thousand six hundred fifty-six dollars ($761,656) to the Greene County Health
Department, and;

WHEREAS, the Greene County Health Department wishes to amend the budget to
account for these changes in grant revenues in professional fees with the budget
line-item amounts as required by the grant restrictions,

THEREFORE, let the General Fund Budget be amended as follows:
INCREASE IN BUDGETED REVENUE

46310 Health Department Programs $ 8,400
Total Increase in Budgeted Revenues $ 8,400
INCREASE IN BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS

55190 OTHER LOCAL HEALTH SERVICES

399 Other Contracted Services $ 8,400
Total Increase in Budgeted Appropriations $ 8,400

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as above.

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk Cdunty Attorney



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE GREENE COUNTY ELECTION
COMMISSION RECEIVED AS A REIMBURSEMENT FROM VENDOR SUPPLYING
ELECTRONIC POLLBOOKS AND SOFTWARE TO THE
GREENE COUNTY ELECTION COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the Greene County Election Commission purchased electronic pollbooks
and software to conduct elections for Greene County from one of the two principal
providers/vendors that supply electronic pollbook systems to almost all counties who utilize an
electronic pollbooks system in the State of Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, those electronic pollbooks and software purchased by the Greene County
Election Commission in 2019 were partially utilized in the 2020 election cycle and fully
utilized in the 2022 election cycle but the equipment and software has issues requiring the poll
workers and administrators for the Greene County Election Commission to expend more time
and effort in holding the elections that was expected or reasonable; and

WHEREAS, the vendor understood and acknowledged that there were issues with the
equipment and software and the vendor waived setup fees and site support fees that the election
commission was obligated to pay as per the agreement; and

WHEREAS, in that some of the issues in dealing with the equipment and software
remained unresolved at the end of the 2022 election cycle, the Greene County Election
Commission through the County Attorney’s office requested a full refund and a return of the
funds paid to the vendor for the electronic pollbooks and software; and

WHEREAS, and after negotiations with the vendor, the Election Commission agreed to
accept $67,948.00 and coupled with a waiver of fees for setup and site support owed to the
vendor, the negotiated settlement would make the Election Commission whole as it relates to
the purchase of the electronic pollbooks and software; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Election Commission now will need to utilize those

reimbursement funds to purchase new electronic pollbook equipment and software for the

upcoming election cycle. ‘ '
g




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey

204 N. Cutler Street |
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone; 423-798-1779 |
Fax: 423-798-1781

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 18" day of December 2023, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that $67,948.00 received as reimbursement from the former
electronic pollbook and software vendor be allocated to the Greene County Election

Commission to purchase new electronic pollbooks and software.

Budget and Finance

Sponsor County Mayor
County Clerk County Allo ney




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO REAPPROPRIATE
FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,000 TO THE UT EXTENSION OF AGRICULTURE
DEPARTMENT FROM THE SOIL CONSERVATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE ADDITION OF A
4-H POSITION SPONSORED IN PART BY TSU FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, Anthony Shelton, the Greene County Director for the UT Extension
Institute of Agriculture (UT Ag), has requested support for an additional 4-H agent that
will be financially split between Greene County (43%) and Tennessee State University
(67%) and;

WHEREAS, the additional agent (agent) will be responsible for supporting the
current 4-H agent and primarily focus on 4" — 8t grade students to prepare them for
life skills such as, dependability, responsibility, leadership and other abilities and;

WHEREAS, the agent will also develop after school groups and judging teams
that include forestry judging, public speaking events, livestock judging and showing
competitions, honor clubs, and all-star 4-H events and;

WHEREAS, seeing and agreeing with the need, the esteemed commissioner,
John Waddle, in his capacity as the Director of the Greene County Soil Conservation
department has graciously volunteered to reduce his budget by an open position to
fund this request going forward and:;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the county legislative body of
Greene County, meeting in regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum
being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the General Fund - #101
budget be amended as follows:

DECREASE IN BUDGETED SOIL CONSERVATION APPROPRIATIONS

57500 SOIL CONSERVATION

133 Para-Professionals $ 22,750
201  Social Security 1,400
204 Pension 2,000
207 Health Insurance 8,450
212 Medicare 400

Total Decrease in Appropriations 35,000

INCREASE IN BUDGETED AG EXTENSION APPROPRIATIONS
57100 AG EXTENSION

140 Salary Supplements 22,750
201 Social Security 1,400
204 Pension 2,000
207 Health Insurance 8,450
212 Medicare 400

Total Increase in Appropriations 35,000

I




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO REAPPROPRIATE
FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,000 TO THE UT EXTENSION OF AGRICULTURE
DEPARTMENT FROM THE SOIL CONSERVATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE ADDITION OF A
4-H POSITION SPONSORED IN PART BY TSU FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor

RC)“\L_- UC’"\;

County Clerk [County Attorney &



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $610,000 TO THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FOR THE PURCHASE OF TWO AMBULANCES WITH POWERLOADS
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Emergency Medical Services Department (EMS), consistent
with the ambulance replacement schedule provided to the County Commission,
requests the funding to purchase two ambulances due to the anticipated shortage
caused by production delays; and

WHEREAS, current projections indicate that patient charges will exceed the
budgeted expenditure amount and; .

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the county legislative body of
Greene County, meeting in regular session this 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum
being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the General Fund - #101
budget be amended as follows:

DECREASE IN UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

39000 Unassigned Fund Balance $ 610,000
Total Decrease in Unassigned Fund Balance $ 610,000
INCREASE IN BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS
55130 AMBULANCE/EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
718 Motor Vehicles 3 610,000
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 610,000

EMS Governing Board

County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk dounty Attorney

J.



QUOTE

Northwestern Emergency

Vehicles

Greene County EMS
815 W. Summer Street
Greeneville, TN 37743

Ship Via Terms

Net on
Acceptance

11/9/23 David Hudler Destination

Quantity Item Deascription Unit Price
2024 Chevy Diesel C3500 Type I 4X2 AEV
1 Ambulance per your specs. With Liquid Spring $232,511.00

Rear Suspension

** Price does not include Stryker Equipment **

**Units are being purchase through HGAC**

TOTAL $232,511.00

Northwestern Emergency Vehides P.O. Box 790 Jefferson, NC 28640
Phone: (800) 536-8488  Fax: (336) 246-8978 E-mail: david@nwev.com




stryker

Greene County- PowerSystem
Quote Number: 10816585

Version: 1
Prepared For: GREENE COUNTY Rep: Lacey Barr
Atin; Email: lacey.barr@stryker.com
Phone Number:

Quote Date: 11/09/2023

Expiration Date: 12/09/2023

Conlract Start: 11/08/2023

Contract End: 11/08/2024

Price Totals:

Estimated Sales Tax (0.000%): $0.00
Freight/Shipping: $745.07
Grand Total: $70,370.81

Prices: In effect for 30 days
Terms: Net 30 Days

Terms and Conditions: ) . )
Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, pricing, and documentation
approval, Legal documentation must be signed before your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon

techwab stryker.comvTerms_Caonditians/index himi,

Stryker Medical - Accounts Receivable - i sabledisingeer com - PO BOX 93308 - Chicago, IL 60673-3308



stryker

Greene County- PowerSystem

Quote Number: 10818585

Verslon: 1
Prepared For: GREENE COUNTY Rep: Lacey Barr
Atin; Emall: lacey.barr@stryker.com
Phone Number:
Quote Date: 11/08/2023
Expiration Date: 12/08/2023
Contract Start:  11/08/2023
Contract End: 11/08/2024
Delivery Address End User - Shipping Bill To Account
Name: GREENE COUNTY Name: GREENE COUNTY Name: GREENE COUNTY
Account# 20040696 Account #: | 20040606 Account#: 20040586
Address: 204 N CUTLER ST STE 202 Address: 204 N CUTLER ST STE 202 Addrees:
GREENEVILLE GREENEVILLE
Tennessea 37745-3846 Tennessee 37745-3846
Equlpment Productse:
# Product Description um Qty  Sell Price Total
1.0 660706560001 6307 POWER PRO 2, HIGH CONFIG PCE 1 $31,601.24 $31,601.24
3.0 639005580003 MTS PWLD EXCLUDES FLOOR PLATE PCE 1 $27,914.50 $27.914.50
Equipment Total: $50,605.74
Trade In Credit:
Product Description Qty Credit Ea, Total Credit
TR-SPCOT-PP2 TR-SYK PCOT TO PP2 1 -$3,000.00 -$3,000.00
TR-SMFAST-PL TRADE-IN-STRYKER SAE COMPLIANT MANUAL FASTENER 1 -$1,500.00 -$1,500.00
TOWARDS PURCHASE OF POWERLOAD
ProCare Products:
# Product Description Qty Sell Price Total
21 POWERPRO-PROCARE Power Pro 2 for 8507 POWER PRO 2, HIGH CONFIG 1 $5,996.25 $5,996.25
11/10/2023 - 11002028
2.2 POWERLOAD-PROCARE Power Load for MTS POWER LOAD 1 $8,523.75 $8,523.75
117102023 - 11082028
ProCare Total: $14,520.00

Stryker Medical - Acocounts Recaivable - Hte ilaEhstry - PO BOX 083308 - Chiocago, IL 60873-3308



A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF GREENE COUNTY,
TENNESSEE APPROVING AN ECONOMIC IMPACT PLAN FOR THE MOSHEIM
CROSSING DEVELOPMENT AREA

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Board of the Town of Greeneville and Greene County,
Tennessee (the "Board") has prepared an economic impact plan (the "Economic Impact Plan") regarding a
multi-use commercial development to include hotels, restaurants, retail stores and related facilities, as well
as a wastewater collection system and other infrastructure (collectively, the "Project");

WHEREAS, the area subject to the Economic Impact Plan includes certain tracts of real property
generally located off of Exit 23 of Interstate 81 at approximately 13290 through 13690 W. Andrew Johnson
Highway, Greene County, Tennessee, all as more particularly described in the Economic Impact Plan
(collectively, the "Plan Area");

WHEREAS, the Economic Impact Plan would permit certain tax increment incentives, through
financing or reimbursement (the "Tax Increment Incentive"), to be provided in accordance with the
Economic Impact Plan in an amount not to exceed the maximum amount authorized by the Economic
Impact Plan pursuant to Chapter 53, Title 7 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Tax Increment Incentive would be used to pay the costs of traffic
improvements, parking areas, road improvements, sidewalks or other public improvements that are
available for public use, wastewater improvements, utility improvements, storm water and drainage
improvements and other infrastructure serving the Project (the "TIF Eligible Costs") relating to the
construction and installation of the Project and costs relating to the Tax Increment Incentive; and

WHEREAS, upon adoption of the Economic Impact Plan, the incremental property tax revenues
(the "TIF Revenues") that result from the development of the Plan Area under the Economic Impact Plan
will be allocated to the Board to be used for the Tax Increment Incentive; and

WHEREAS, prior to the consideration of this Resolution, a public hearing has been conducted by
the Board as required by, and in compliance with, applicable law, including the Act; and

WHEREAS, any financing undertaken under the Economic Impact Plan shall not represent or
constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit or the taxing power of the Board, the Town of Greeneville
or Greene County, Tennessee.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the IDB has approved and submitted the Economic Impact
Plan to the County Commission of Greene County, Tennessee for approval in accordance with Tenn. Code
Ann, § 7-53-312.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 18™ day of December 2023, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the Economic Impact Plan, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
A, being in the interests of the citizens of Greene County, Tennessee, is hereby approved by the County
Commission and the officers of the County are authorized to take all appropriate action to carry out the
terms of the Economic Impact Plan.



Budget & Finance County Mayor
Sponsor

Reo 0 ) ok

County Clerk County Aktorney




EXHIBIT A

[economic impact plan]

36840199.1



INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF THE
TOWN OF GREENEVILLE AND GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

ECONOMIC IMPACT PLAN
FOR

MOSHEIM CROSSING DEVELOPMENT AREA

I. Authority for Economic Impact Plan

Industrial development corporations (“IDBs”) are authorized under Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-
53-312 to prepare and submit to cities and counties an economic impact plan with respect to an
area that includes a project within the meaning of Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-53-101 and such other
properties that the IDB determines will be directly improved or benefited due to the undertaking
of a project. Tennessee Code Annotated § 7-53-312 also authorizes cities and counties to apply
and pledge certain incremental tax revenues, which arise from the area subject to the economic
impact plan, to the IDB to promote economic development, to pay the cost of projects or to pay
debt service on bonds or other obligations issued by the IDB to pay the costs of projects.

Il. The Project

Mosheim Crossing Development, LLC, JPP Holdings LLC, an affiliate or member thereof
or an assignee approved by the Board (collectively, the “Developer’), has acquired or proposed to
acquire certain tracts of real property generally located off of Exit 23 of Interstate 81 at
approximately 13290 through 13690 W. Andrew Johnson Highway, Greene County, Tennessee
(within the Town of Mosheim, Tennessee). Such property consists of approximately 29.63 acres
and is ideally situated for commercial development. The Developer has proposed to develop a
multi-use commercial district that is expected to include hotels, restaurants, retail stores and related
facilities, as well as a wastewaler collection system and other utilities and infrastructure o serve
the district and other adjoining properties. The district will be designated by the Developer as the
Mosheim Crossing Development, and such commercial retail facilities and wastewater system
described in this paragraph are collectively referred to herein as the “Project.” The Project is an
eligible project within the meaning of Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-53-101(15).

In order to make the Project financially feasible, the Developer has requested that Greene
County, Tennessee (the “County”) approve, as part of this Economic Impact Plan, the use of a tax
increment incentive through The Industrial Development Board of the Town of Greeneville and
Greene County, Tennessee (the “Board™) pursuant to Title 7, Chapter 53 of Tennessee Code
Annotated to provide funds to pay a portion of the costs of the Project. The tax increment incentive
would be used to pay for public improvements including, but not limited to, the wastewater
collection system, road and traffic improvements, parking to support the Project, storm water and
drainage improvements and other utility improvements that are necessary for the development of

the Project
EXHIBIT

A



II1. Boundaries of Plan Area

The area that would be subject to this Economic Impact Plan, and to the tax increment
financing provisions described below, includes only the property on which the Project will be
located. The area that will be subject to this Economic Impact Plan (the “Plan Area™) is shown on
Exhibit A attached hereto. A list of the parcels included in the Plan Area is also attached as part
of Exhibit A. The Plan Area is hereby declared to be subject to this Economic Impact Plan, and
the Project is hereby identified as the project that will be located within the Plan Area.

IV. Financial Assistance to Project

The Board will provide financial assistance to the Project by applying the tax increment
incentive in the manner described below to pay or reimburse the Developer for the payment of all
or a portion of certain eligible costs that will be incurred in connection with the development of
the Plan Area. These costs are expected to primarily relate to the construction and installation of
public infrastructure to be made in or adjacent to the Plan Area that is necessary to serve the Project
and other development in the Plan Area. For these purposes, public infrastructure shall have the
meaning given to such term in Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-23-102(16), which includes roads, streets,
publicly-owned or privately-owned parking lots, facilities or garages, traffic signals, sidewalks or
other public improvements that are available for public use, utility improvements and storm water
and drainage improvements, whether or not located on public property or a publicly-dedicated
easement. The costs of such public infrastructure is referred to in this Economic Impact Plan as
“Eligible Costs.”

The Board, subject to the terms of a development agreement to be negotiated with the
Developer, will pay and/or reimburse all or a portion of the cost of such public infrastructure or
other approved costs upon receipt of adequate documentation of such costs. The Board and the
Developer will enter into a development agreement with respect to the scope of the public
improvements and the cost of the public improvements to be paid or reimbursed and/or the
payment or reimbursement of any other approved costs.

V. Expected Benefits to the County

Numerous benefits will accrue to the County as a result of the development of the Plan
Area. The development of commercial and retail establishments, such as the Project, will assist
the County and the Board in promoting economic development. When companies select locations
for manufacturing, distribution and office facilities, a significant factor that is considered by site
selection firms is the quality of life for the companies' employees in each community being
considered as a possible location. By providing a wider array of retail and restaurant choices in
the County, the Project will assist the Board with economic development recruiting and help
expand the economic base of the County.

The County is also expected to receive substantial additional taxes as a result of the
development of the Plan Area. The ad valorem real property taxes for the Plan Area for the year
2022 were $1,381.21 for the County, which are the base taxes relating to the Plan Area.



Development of the Plan Area will increase the value of the real property within the Plan Area,
leading to an increase in ad valorem real property taxes. Following the reappraisal of the Project
after construction is completed, the combined annual real property taxes payable to the County are
expected to be approximately $339,900. Of this total, the base taxes described above plus
approximately $36,390.77 in taxes that are allocable to paying debt service on the County's general
obligation debt will be allocated to the County. These additional taxes will immediately benefit
the County. Once the tax increment financing described below is paid, the remaining incremental
property tax revenues will be payable to the County, and the County will benefit from those
incremental taxes at that point and for years to come. The County will also benefit from additional
personal property taxes.

Furthermore, the County is expected to receive substantial additional sales tax revenues as
a result of the development of the Project. When the Project is fully developed, the annual local
sales tax revenue is projected to be $705,000 and the annual hotel and motel tax revenue is
projected to be no less than $300,000. Additionally, the Project is expected to support a total of
365 new direct jobs and 620 indirect jobs. The total wage impact from the project is expected to
generate $5,750,000 in payroll annually. Moreover, the construction of the Project is expected to
have a one-time economic impact of over $44,150,000 on the County’s economy.

VI. Distribution of Property Taxes and Tax Increment Financing

a. Distribution of Taxes. Real property taxes imposed on the real property located within
the Plan Area shall be allocated and distributed as provided in this subsection. The taxes assessed
by the County on the real property within the Plan Area will be divided and distributed as follows
in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-53-312(c) and Title 9, Chapter 23 of the Tennessee Code
Annotated, being the Uniformity in Tax Increment Financing Act of 2012 (the “Tax Increment
Act”):

i. The portion of the real property taxes payable with respect to the Plan Area
equal to the year prior to the date of approval of this Economic Impact Plan (the “Base Tax
Amount”) shall be allocated to and, as collected, paid to the County as all other taxes levied
by the County on all other properties; provided, however, that in any year in which the
taxes on the property within the Plan Area are less than the Base Tax Amount, there shall
be allocated and paid to the County only the taxes actually imposed.

ii. The excess of real property taxes over the Base Tax Amount (the “TIF
Revenues”) shall be allocated and, as collected, paid into a separate fund of the Board,
created to hold such payments until the tax proceeds in the fund are to be applied (A) to
pay Eligible Costs relating to development within the Plan Area in order to promote
economic development and/or (B) to pay debt service on the obligations expected to be
issued by the Board to finance Eligible Costs.

This allocation is subject to the provisions of Tenn. Code Ann. §7-53-312(j) and Tax Increment
Act, which requires that taxes levied upon property within the Plan Area for the payment of debt
service of the County shall not be allocated to the Board and is further subject to the retention or
payment of any applicable administrative expenses and fees of the Board or the County consistent



with any policies of any of such entities and/or to be paid under the development agreement to be
entered into between the Developer and the Board. In connection with the foregoing, two percent
(2%) of the TIF Revenues shall be paid to the Trustee of the County for administrative expenses
in administering this Economic Impact Plan as permitted under Tenn. Code Ann. §9-23-105.

The Board shall make all calculations of TIF Revenues on an aggregate basis as permitted
by the Tax Increment Act.

Allocations of TIF Revenues by the County shall be made (i) as to TIF Revenues derived
from non-delinquent taxes, within sixty (60) days of the date such taxes are due without penalty
for each tax year and (ii) as to TIF Revenues derived from delinquent taxes, within sixty (60) days
from when such taxes are collected by the County. As permitted under Tenn. Code Ann. §9-23-
103, interest on delinquent taxes shall be retained by the County and shall not be allocated to the
Board under this Economic Impact Plan.

b. TIF Obligations. In order to pay certain Eligible Costs, the Board expects to use all or
a portion of the incremental tax revenues that it will receive as a result of the adoption of this
Economic Impact Plan to pay debt service on obligations that may be issued by the Board to
finance such costs. This tax increment financing would be structured as follows:

i. The Board may borrow funds through the issuance and sale of notes, bonds or
other obligations of the Board. The Board shall pledge all or a portion of the TIF Revenues
allocated to the Board pursuant to this Economic Impact Plan to the payment of such notes,
bonds or other obligations, including, without limitation, principal and interest thereon. In
no event will the obligations issued by the Board be considered a debt or obligation of the
County in any manner whatsoever, and the source of the funds to satisfy the Board’s
payment obligations thereunder shall be limited solely to the TIF Revenues and shall
otherwise be non-recourse to the Board.

1i. The proceeds of the notes, bonds or obligations shall be used to pay Eligible
Costs, costs of issuances relating to notes, bonds or obligations and capitalized interest on
the notes, bonds or other obligations to the extent permitted by the IDB Act.

iii. Any tax increment financing may be refinanced by the Board at any time as
permitted by the IDB Act, and upon such refinancing, available tax increment revenues
shall be applied to the payment of such refinancing debt to the extent such tax increment
revenues were to be used to pay the debt that is being refinanced.

¢. Direct Payment. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Board may
apply TIF Revenues directly to pay or reimburse Eligible Costs without the necessity of issuing
any notes, bonds or other obligations pursuant to any development agreement entered into between
the Board and the Developer.

d. Maximum Amount. The aggregate principal amount of notes, bonds and obligations
issued by the Board as described in subsection (b) above together with the maximum amount of
Eligible Costs that the Board agrees to pay as described in subsection (c) above shall not in any




event exceed $6,000,000.

e. Time Period. Taxes on the real property within the Plan Area will be divided and
distributed as provided in this Economic Impact Plan for a period not in excess of twenty (20) tax
years commencing with respect to the real property taxes assessed for the tax year commencing
January 1, 2025, but, in any event, such allocations shall cease when there are not Eligible Costs,
including debt service, to be paid from the TIF Revenues. No TIF Revenues shall be allocated to

the Board with respect to the real property taxes assessed prior to the tax year commencing January
1,2025.

f.  Finding of Economic Benefit. The Board, by submission of this Plan, and the County,
by the adoption of this Economic Impact Plan, find that the use of the TIF Revenues, as described
herein, is in furtherance of promoting economic development in the County.

VII. Approval Process

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-53-312, the process for the approval of this Economic
Impact Plan is as follows:

a. The Board holds a public hearing relating to this Economic Impact Plan after publishing
notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the County at least two (2) weeks
prior to the date of the public hearing. The notice must include the time, place and purpose of the
hearing as well as notice of how a map of the subject area may be viewed by the public. Following
such public hearing, the Board may submit this Economic Impact Plan to the County for its
approval.

b. The governing body of the County must approve the Economic Impact Plan. This
Economic Impact Plan may be approved by resolution of the County Commission, whether or not
the local charter provisions of the governing body provide otherwise. If the County makes any
changes to this Economic Impact Plan in connection with its approval hereof, such changes must
be approved by the Board.

¢. Once this Economic Impact Plan has been approved by the governing body of the
County, this Economic Impact Plan and related documentation shall be filed with the local taxing
officials and the Comptroller of the State as required by the Tax Increment Act and annual
statements of incremental tax revenues allocated to the Board shall be filed with the State Board
of Equalization as required by the Tax Increment Act. The Board will also comply with all other
procedural requirements of the Tax Increment Act and other applicable laws.



RESOLUTION TO ALLOCATE FUNDS TO MONITOR AND ENFORCE THE
OBLIGATION OF BUSINESSES/ENTITIES REQUIRED TO REPORT,
COLLECT, AND REMIT PRIVILEGE TAXES FOR PROVIDING LODGING
AND/OR ACCOMMODATIONS TO TRANSIENTS IN GREENE COUNTY, TN

WHEREAS, in 1997 the General Assembly for the State of Tennessee passed a
Private Act authorizing the legislative body of Greene County to levy privilege tax upon
the privilege of occupancy in any hotel of each transient in an amount not to exceed
' three (3%) percent of the consideration charged by the operator which Private Act was
ratified by the Greene County Legislative Body pursuant to statute; and
| WHEREAS, in 2004, that Private Act was amended by the General Assembly
for the State of Tennessee authorizing the legislative body of Greene County to levy

privilege tax upon the privilege of occupancy in any hotel of each transient in an

| amount not to exceed seven (7%) percent of the consideration charged by the operator
which amended Private Act and was ratified by the Greene County Legislative Body
pursuant to statute on the 19" day of April, 2004; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A. 67-4-102(2), the term hotel includes private,

public, and government vwned holtels, inns, tourist camps, tourist courts, tourist cabins,

Greene County Attomey . o ) ) _
Roger A. Woolsey motels, short term rental units, primitive and recreational vehicle camp sites and
204 N. Cutler Street

i | . . . .
g;zir:gl;_,719§j;;;5 campgrounds, or any other place in which room, lodging or accommodations are

Fax: 423-798-1781
furnished to transients for consideration; and

WHEREAS, it appears that while the vast majority of the traditional

motels/hotels are reporting and paying the privilege tax imposed to the office of the

County Clerk, most tourist camps, tourist courts, tourist cabins, motels, short term rental

L.




Greene County Attorney
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

units, B&B operators, R V parks, primitive and recreational vehicle camp sites and
campgrounds are not reporting nor paying the privilege tax required by law; and

WHEREAS, in order to ensure compliance with the privilege tax on transients
and to guarantee that all entities that provide transients with lodging or accommodations
are treated fairly and equally, it appears that it would be in the best interest of the
citizens and tax payers of Greene County to enact accounting and enforcement practices
to certify that each business/entity providing lodging to transients take notice of the
requirement that they comply with state and local legislation requiring said entity to
obtain a business license, to file a report of the consideration each business/entity has
received for providing lodging to transients and remit the privilege taxes collected to the
office of the Greene County Clerk; and

WHEREAS, in order to enforce the provisions of the enacted privilege tax
above described, an allocation of $30,000.00 from the County General Fund to
Department of Inspections and Regulations is needed to provide for the enforcement of
the motel/hotel privilege tax by the recruitment and hiring of an individual on a part-
time basis to inspect, monitor, and assist in the enforcement and collections of the
applicable motel/hotel privilege tax beginning January 1, 2024.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 18" day of December, 2023, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that $30,000.00 be allocated to the

Department of Inspections and Regulations to facilitate the hiring of part-time personnel




Greene County Attomey
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone; 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

to investigate, monitor and assist in the enforcement and collection of privilege taxes

due from the various businesses in Greene County who provide short term lodging for

transients as provided by statute.

Budget & Finance Committee

Sponsor County Mayor
County Clerk County Attbrney




